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PART |
tem 1. BUSINESS.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains statem#rasare not historical facts and are considerediarddooking within the meanin
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Actl&B5. These forward-looking statements containgmtigns of our future results of operations
or our financial position or state other forwarddking information. In some cases you can identiésé forward-looking statements by words
such as "anticipate," "believe," "could," "estimatéexpect,” "intend," "may," "should," and "wouldt similar words. You should not rely on
forward-looking statements because they involve knowruakdown risks, uncertainties and other factors, safwhich are beyond our
control. These risks, uncertainties and other fextoay cause our actual results, performance oiea@ments to differ materially from the
anticipated future results, performance or achiegata expressed or implied by the forward-lookirgeshents. Some of the factors that might
cause these differences are described under Item"Résk Factors." You should carefully review altloése factors, and you should be aware
that there may be other factors that could caussehdifferences. These forward-looking statemeeats bhased on information, plans and
estimates at the date of this report, and, excepeguired by law, we undertake no obligation tdate any forward-looking statements to
reflect changes in underlying assumptions or fagtaew information, future events or other changes.

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, refezes to "the Company," "Watts Water," "we," "us™our" refer to Watts Water

Technologies, Inc. and its consolidated subsidsarie
Overview

Watts Regulator Co. was founded by Joseplv&its in 1874 in Lawrence, Massachusetts. WattguRitor Co. started as a small machine
shop supplying parts to the New England textildswf the 19th century and grew into a global maoturer of products and systems focused
on the control, conservation and quality of watett the comfort and safety of the people using atté/Water Technologies, Inc. was
incorporated in Delaware in 1985 and became thenp@ompany of Watts Regulator Co.

Our strategy is to be the leading proviofewvater quality, water conservation, water satatgd water flow control products for the
residential and commercial markets in North Amednd EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Africa) and xpa&nd our presence in Asia. Our
primary objective is to grow earnings by increassates within existing markets, expanding into mearkets, leveraging our distribution
channels and customer base, making selected aampssireducing manufacturing costs and advocdtinthe development and enforcemer
industry standards.

We intend to continue to expand organichajhintroducing products in existing markets, bjamcing our preferred brands, by developin
new complementary products, by promoting plumbiodecdevelopment to drive sales of safety and wptality products and by continually
improving merchandising in both the do-it-yourg@fY) and wholesale distribution channels. We coudilly target selected new product and
geographic markets based on growth potential, diietpour ability to leverage our existing distrilaut channels. Additionally, we continually
leverage our distribution channels through theomhtiction of new products, as well as the integratibproducts of our acquired companies.

We intend to continue to generate incremlegriowth by targeting selected acquisitions, botbur core markets as well as new
complementary markets. We have completed 36 atiguisisince divesting our industrial and oil and fasiness in 1999. Our acquisition
strategy focuses on businesses that manufactuieriae brand name products that address our thefrveater quality, water conservation,
water safety, water flow control and comfort anldted complementary markets. We target businebsgsvill provide us with one or more of
the following: an entry into new markets, an inae# shelf space with existing customers, straagdnames, a new or improved technology
or an expansion of the breadth of our product oftgs.




We are committed to reducing our manufaetyand operating costs through a combination afufecturing in lower-cost countries,
using Lean and Six Sigma to drive continuous imprognt across all key processes, and consolidatindiverse manufacturing operations in
North America, EMEA and Asia. We have a number ahofacturing facilities in low-cost regions such as Mexico, China, Bulgaria and
Tunisia. In recent years, we have announced segkeiadl restructuring plans to reduce our manufaogufootprint in order to reduce our costs
and to realize additional operating efficiencies.

Our products are sold to wholesale distdlaiand dealers, major DIY chains and originaligapent manufacturers (OEMs). Most of our
sales are for products that have been approved veglglatory standards incorporated into staterandicipal plumbing, heating, building and
fire protection codes in North America and Eurdpde have consistently advocated for the developrmedtenforcement of plumbing codes
and are committed to providing products to meesarsandards, particularly for safety and contabve products.

Additionally, a majority of our manufactag facilities are 1ISO 9000, 9001 or 9002 certifigcthe International Organization for
Standardization.

Our business is reported in three geogragpdgments: North America, EMEA and Asia. The dbations of each segment to net sales,
operating income and the presentation of certdierdinancial information by segment are reportetiiote 16 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements and in "Management's Discosaiol Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuft®©perations” included elsewhere in

this report.

Products

We have a broad range of products in terhuiesign distinction, size and configuration. Waessify our many products into four universal
product lines. These product lines are:

. Residential & commercial flow control productsaeiudes products typically sold into plumbing amd Water applications such
as backflow preventers, water pressure regulaimgyerature and pressure relief valves, and theatiosnixing valves. In
2012, 2011 and 2010, residential & commercial ftamatrol products accounted for approximately 5438p%nd 51%,
respectively, of our total sales.

. HVAC & gas products—includes hydronic and electdating systems for under-floor radiant applicatjdrydronic pump
groups for boiler manufacturers and alternativeg@neontrol packages, and flexible stainless steehectors for natural and
liquid propane gas in commercial food service asidential applications. In 2012, 2011 and 2010AB\& gas products
accounted for approximately 31%, 33% and 34%, sy, of our total sales. HVAC is an acronym fagating, ventilation
and air conditioning.

. Drains & water re-use products—includes drainagelpects and engineered rain water harvesting solsifior commercial,
industrial, marine and residential applications2012, 2011 and 2010, drains & water re-use pradamtounted for
approximately 10%, 9% and 10%, respectively, oftotal sales.

. Water quality products—includes point-of-use anahpof-entry water filtration, conditioning and $egrevention systems for

both commercial and residential applications. Watelity products accounted for approximately 5% total sales in each
2012, 2011 and 2010.

Customers and Markets
We sell our products to plumbing, heating anechanical wholesale distributors, major DIYinkand OEMs.

Wholesalers. Approximately 63%, 63% and 64% of our sale20t2, 2011 and 2010, respectively, were to whodedisitributors for
commercial and residential applications. We relycommissioned




manufacturers' representatives, some of which miaiat consigned inventory of our products, to miagke product lines. Additionally, vario
water quality products are sold to independentedsdahroughout North America.

DIY Chains. Approximately 13%, 13% and 16% of our sale20d2, 2011 and 2010, respectively, were to DIY ehaDur DIY chains
demand less technical products, but are highlyptaeeto innovative designs and new product ideas.

OEMs. Approximately 24%, 24% and 20% of our sale0t2, 2011 and 2010, respectively, were to OEM8$Idrth America, our
typical OEM customers are water heater manufactuard equipment and water systems manufacturedéngeféow control devices and other
products. Our sales to OEMs in EMEA are primardybbiler manufacturers and radiant system manufaictuOur sales to OEMs in Asia are
primarily to boiler, water heaters and bath manufars including manufacturers of faucet and shqweducts.

In 2012, 2011 and 2010, no customer acealfar more than 10% of our total net sales. Oprtém customers accounted for
approximately $309.3 million, or 21%, of our totedt sales in 2012; $290.4 million, or 20%, of et net sales in 2011; and $273.6 million,
or 22%, of our total net sales in 2010. Thousaridgh®r customers constituted the balance of otisales in each of those years.

Marketing and Sales

For product sales, we rely primarily on eoissioned manufacturers' representatives, soméiighwnaintain a consigned inventory of our
products. These representatives sell primarilyidonping and heating wholesalers or service DIYesdn North America. We also sell
products for the residential construction and hoepair and remodeling industries through DIY plungpretailers, national catalog distributi
companies, hardware stores, building material taitlad retail home center chains and through plaghand heating wholesalers. In addition,
we sell products directly to wholesalers, OEMs pridate label accounts in EMEA and to a lesserrexteNorth America.

Manufacturing

We have integrated and automated manufagteapabilities, including a brass and bronze fisynmachining, plastic extrusion and
injection molding and assembly operations. Our fyroperations include metal pouring systems, aatantore making, brass forging and
brass and bronze die-castings. Our machining dpagsateature computer-controlled machine toolsh¥sgeed chucking machines with
robotics and automatic screw machines for machihiogze, brass and steel components. We have @u/astecent years to expand our
manufacturing capabilities to ensure the availgbdf the most efficient and productive equipméntresponse to the federal Reduction of L
in Drinking Water Act (see Item 1A. Risk Factonsge expect to commit approximately $20.0 milliorcapital spending ($7.0 million spent in
2012 and $13.0 million expected to be spent in 20d:3a new foundry and machinery in the U.S. toduce lead free products. The foundry
cost and related equipment are expected to be cesionied during the second quarter of 2013. Wearaitted to maintaining our
manufacturing equipment at a level consistent witlrent technology in order to maintain high lev&igjuality and manufacturing efficiencit

Capital expenditures and depreciation fmheof the last three years were as follows:

Years Ended
December 31

2012 2011 2010

(in millions)
Capital expenditure $ 30.6 $ 22 $ 24.¢
Depreciatior $ 336 $ 33.C $ 30t




Raw Materials

We require substantial amounts of raw niaeto produce our products, including bronzesbraast iron, stainless steel, steel, plastic,
and components used in products, and substandiblbf the raw materials we require are purchaseohfoutside sources. The commodity
markets have experienced tremendous volatility twepast several years, particularly with respecopper. The market prices of many
commodities increased throughout 2010. During 28f&t copper prices increased to historic highly éathe year, and then trended
downward in the second half of 2011. The averagethtp copper spot price decreased approximately%from December 2010 to
December 2011. In 2012, increases in the firsttqguand third quarter were offset by more modepaiteng in the second quarter and fourth
guarter. Bronze and brass are copper-based allbgstact that we source internationally a significamount of raw materials means that
several months of raw materials and work in proegssnoving through our business at any pointietiWe are not able to predict whether
commodity costs, including copper, will significgnincrease or decrease in the future. If commodiitsts increase in the future and we are nc
able to reduce or eliminate the effect of the aosteases by reducing production costs or implemgrgrice increases, our profit margins cc
decrease. If commodity costs were to decline, wg experience pressures from customers to reducsedling prices. The timing of any price
reductions and decreases in commodity costs magligot As a result, our margins could be affected.

With limited exceptions, we have multipleopliers for our commodities and other raw matsri#e believe our relationships with our
key suppliers are good and that an interruptiosujpply from any one supplier would not materiafifiget our ability to meet our immediate
demands while another supplier is qualified. Weutady review our suppliers to evaluate their sgritus. If a supplier is unable to meet our
demands, we believe that in most cases our inwepfaiaw materials will allow for sufficient timetidentify and obtain the necessary
commodities and other raw materials from an altersaurce. We believe that the nature of the conitimedand other raw materials used in
business are such that multiple sources are génexalilable in the market.

Code Compliance

Products representing a majority of ouesare subject to regulatory standards and codecemiient, which typically require that these
products meet stringent performance criteria. Steadwlare established by such industry test andicatibn organizations as the American
Society of Mechanical Engineers (A.S.M.E.), the &iian Standards Association (C.S.A.), the AmerBaadiety of Sanitary Engineers
(A.S.S.E.), the University of Southern Californiaurdation for Cross-Connection Control (USC FC88, international Association of
Plumbing and Mechanical Officials (I.A.P.M.0.), Fary Mutual (F.M.), the National Sanitation Foundat(N.S.F.) and Underwriters
Laboratory (U.L.). Many of these standards areripomted into state and municipal plumbing andihgabuilding and fire protection codes.

National regulatory standards in Europe/\myr country. The major standards and/or guidelthas our products must meet are AFNOR
(France), DVGW (Germany), UNI/ICIN (Italy), KIWA (&therlands), SVGW (Switzerland), SITAC (Sweden) ®RAS (United Kingdom).
Further, there are local regulatory standards regucompliance as well.

Together with our commissioned manufacgin@presentatives, we have consistently advodatdtle development and enforcement of
plumbing codes. We maintain stringent quality col&nd testing procedures at each of our manufiactdiacilities in order to manufacture
products that comply with code requirements. Wéelelthat product-testing capability and investnmiemnglant and equipment is needed to
manufacture products that comply with code requinetst Additionally, a majority of our manufacturifagilities are 1ISO 9000, 9001 or 9002
certified by the International Organization for i&ardization.




New Product Development and Engineeril

We maintain our own product developmerit stkesign teams, and testing laboratories in Ndutierica, EMEA and Asia that work to
enhance our existing products and develop new ptedWe maintain sophisticated product developraadttesting laboratories. Research
development costs included in selling, general,administrative expense amounted to $20.7 millg29.9 million and $18.6 million for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 ctase.

California, Louisiana, Maryland and Vermdiaive recently implemented laws that require gépj pipe and plumbing fittings and
plumbing fixtures sold in those states that conmeglispense water for human consumption to comtaimore than 0.25% lead content, which
is generally referred to as lead free. On Janua®p41, the federal government enacted a similathat will take effect nationwide in January
2014. We have invested considerable resourcestioegrast several years to develop lead free vessibour plumbing products to comply
with the new laws, and we have successfully intoeduour lead free product offerings in MarylandlifGenia, Louisiana and Vermont. We
expect to commit approximately $13 million in capithrough the second quarter of 2013 to complegecbnstruction of our new lead free
foundry to meet expected lead free demand for matyrts sold in the U.S.

Complying with these new requirements orationwide basis will pose a significant challefgieus. The transition to comply with the
expected requirements may cause our material tosisrease as suppliers of alternative lead fretals are currently limited. We may not
succeed in passing through these cost increases tmustomers. We may also experience technicdleciges in our manufacturing process in
converting our present manufacturing operatiori0@% lead free products. In addition, we could hditfeculty providing sufficient quantities
of our lead free compliant products to meet natidevdemand and we could be left with potentiallgabte traditional leaded product
inventories if customers convert to lead free dfifgs faster than anticipated.

Competition

The domestic and international marketsafater safety and flow control devices are intenselypetitive and require us to compete
against some companies possessing greater finamaaketing and other resources than ours. Dueetdteadth of our product offerings, the
number and identities of our competitors vary bydorct line and market. We consider quality, brarefgrence, delivery times, engineering
specifications, plumbing code requirements, ptieehnological expertise and breadth of productroffes to be the primary competitive fact
We believe that new product development and proengineering are also important to success in titemndustry and that our position in
industry is attributable in part to our abilitydevelop new and innovative products quickly anddapt and enhance existing products. We
continue to develop new and innovative productsniosance our market position and are continuingifmément manufacturing and design
programs to reduce costs. We cannot be certairothafforts to develop new products will be suséaisor that our customers will accept our
new products. Although we own certain patents aadeimarks that we consider to be of importancegaveot believe that our business and
competitiveness as a whole are dependent on angfang patents or trademarks or on patent or tresttk protection generally.

Backlog

Backlog was approximately $84.5 milliorFabruary 8, 2013. We do not believe that our barkloany point in time is indicative of
future operating results and we expect our entiresoit backlog to be converted to sales in 2013.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012, we employed agprately 5,900 people worldwide. With the exceptadrour tekmar subsidiary in Canada,
none of our employees in North America or Asia@reered by




collective bargaining agreements. In some Europeantries, our employees are subject to traditioatibnal collective bargaining
agreements. We believe that our employee relationgood.

Available Information

We maintain a website with the addnessv.wattswater.comThe information contained on our website is motuded as a part of, or
incorporated by reference into, this Annual ReparForm 10-K. Other than an investor's own inteateess charges, we make available free
of charge through our website our Annual ReporForm 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and aurreports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to these reports, as soon as reas@mablicable after we have electronically filed sacaterial with, or furnished such material
to, the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Executive Officers and Director

Set forth below in alphabetical order dme mames of our executive officers and directdesy respective ages and positions with our
Company and a brief summary of their business éxpee for at least the past five years:

Executive Officers Age Position

Srinivas K. Bagepall 46 President, North Americ

J. Dennis Cawt 62 Group Managing Director, EME.

David J. Coghlai 53 Chief Executive Officer, President and Direc

Dean P. Freeme 49 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Kenneth R. Lepage 42 General Counsel, Executive Vice President of Adstiation
and Secretar

Elie Melhem 50 President, Asii

Non-Employee Directors

Robert L. Ayers(2)(3 67 Director

Bernard Baert(1)(3 63 Director

Kennett F. Burnes(1)(: 70 Director

Richard J. Cathcart(2)(: 68 Director

W. Craig Kissel(2)(3 62 Director

John K. McGillicuddy(1)(3 68 Chairman of the Board and Direc!

Merilee Raines(1)(3 57 Director

Q) Member of the Audit Committee
(2 Member of the Compensation Committee

(3) Member of the Nominating and Corporate Governamna@ittee

Srinivas K. Bagepallioined our Company in October 2011 and was appoiBtesident, North America. From 2006 to Septer2béd.,
Mr. Bagepalli was the President and General Manafjiiree global companies within Danaher Corporasi Industrial Technologies Group,
including Setra Systems, Inc., Sonix, Inc. and &map. During his time with Danaher, Mr. Bageps#b served as the President of Sensors ¢
Controls, Asia. Danaher Corporation is a globaliess that designs, manufactures and markets giofed, medical, industrial, and
commercial products and services. Mr. Bagepallikedrfor General Electric Company from 1994 to 200bile with General Electric,
Mr. Bagepalli served as the Executive Vice Predideid Segment Manager at GE Infrastructure Sersidgnspection Technologies from
2003 to 2006, Manager, Mergers and AcquisitionsERtindustrial Systems from 2001 to 2003, Managesifess Development: Strategy and
Growth at GE Corporate from 2000 to 2001 and Pt®egration & Manufacturing Group Leader at GEfowoate Technology Center from
1994 to 1999.




J. Dennis Cawtgined our Company in 2001 and was appointed Giapaging Director, EMEA. Prior to joining our Compa he was
European President of PCC Valve and Controls, sidiv of Precision Castparts Corp., a manufactofeomponents and castings to the
aeronautical industry, from 1999 to 2001. He hao alorked for approximately 20 years for Keystorad¥& International, a manufacturer and
distributor of industrial valves, where his mostest position was the Managing Director Northermdpe, Middle East, Africa and India.

David J. Coghlarwas appointed Chief Executive Officer, Presidemt Birector in January 2011. He previously servedwasChief
Operating Officer from January 2010 to January 28id as President of North America and Asia fromeJ2008 to January 2010. Prior to
joining our Company, Mr. Coghlan served as Vicesitent, Global Parts for Trane Inc., a global mantifrer of commercial and residen
heating, ventilation and air conditioning equipmdram April 2004 through May 2008. He also helge®l management positions within the
Climate Control Technologies segment of Ingersah& Company Limited, a manufacturer of transparngterature control units and
refrigerated display merchandisers, from 1995 toebegber 2003. Before joining Ingersoll-Rand, Mr. Blag worked for several years with the
management consulting firm of McKinsey & Co. inlbdhe United Kingdom and United States.

Dean P. Freemajoined our Company in October 2012 and was appoiBtecutive Vice President and Chief Financial €ffiin
November 2012. Mr. Freeman previously served agog¥iice President of Finance and Treasurer of Blewe Corporation from Octob
2009 to October 2011. Also while at Flowserve, Fheeman served as Vice President, Finance and Einiafcial Officer of the Flowserve
Pump Division from 2006 to October 2009. Flowseasva leading global provider of fluid motion anchtwl products and services, producing
engineered and industrial pumps, seals and vabreshl as a range of related flow management sesvierior to Flowserve, Mr. Freeman
served as Chief Financial Officer, Europe for Thany Works Corporation. Mr. Freeman also serwefihiancial executive and management
roles of progressive responsibility with United fieologies Corporation and SPX Corporation.

Kenneth R. Lepageas appointed General Counsel and Secretary a@éhepany in August 2008 and Executive Vice Presidént
Administration in December 2009. Mr. Lepage oridiingined our Company in September 2003 as Assigieneral Counsel and Assistant
Secretary. Prior to joining our Company, he wasragr partner at the law firm of Hale and Dorr L{#w Wilmer Cutler Pickering Hale and
Dorr LLP).

Elie Melhemoined our Company in July 2011 as President, Adia.Melhem was previously the Managing DirectorGffina for Aristor
Thermo Group, a global manufacturer of heating lastdvater products, from 2008 to July 2011. Prinjoining Ariston, Mr. Melhem spent
eleven years with ITT Industries in China wherenkl several management positions, including sgragPresident of ITT's Residential and
Commercial Water Group in China and President dfdWater Technology Group in Asia.

Robert L. Ayerdias served as a director of our Company since @c@®06. He was Senior Vice President of ITT Indestand Preside
of ITT Industries’ Fluid Technology from OctoberdBuntil September 2005. Mr. Ayers continued teb®loyed by ITT Industries from
September 2005 until his retirement in Septemb8626uring which time he focused on special prajéot the company. Mr. Ayers joined
ITT Industries in 1998 as President of ITT Indwestriindustrial Pump Group. Before joining ITT Inttiess, he was President of Sulzer
Industrial USA and Chief Executive Officer of Sul&ingham, a pump manufacturer. Mr. Ayers served diector of T-3 Energy
Services, Inc. from August 2007 to January 2011.

Bernard Baertvas elected as a member of our Board of Directofsuigust 2011. Mr. Baert has served as Senior Fresident and
President, Europe and International of PolyOne @@aton since January 2010. Mr. Baert served ago8&¥ite President and General
Manager, Color and Engineered Materialsurope and China for PolyOne Corporation from 2@0Becember 2009 and as Vice President
General Manager, Color and Engineered Materials-efigiand China from 2000 to
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2006. From 1995 to September 2000, Mr. Baert waseta Manager, Color—Europe for M.A. Hanna Compdhg,predecessor to PolyOne
Corporation. PolyOne Corporation is a worldwidevpder of specialty polymer materials, services aalditions. Prior to joining M.A. Hanna,
Mr. Baert was General Manager, Europe for Hexcep@ation and spent 17 years with Owens Corningrevhe served as a plant manager
and held various positions in the areas of costroband production.

Kennett F. Burnebecame a director of our Company in February 2809Burnes is the retired Chairman, President ahigiExecutive
Officer of Cabot Corporation, a global specialtynficals company. He was Chairman from 2001 to M2688, President from 1995 to
January 2008 and Chief Executive Officer from 2@®January 2008. Prior to joining Cabot Corporaiiod987, Mr. Burnes was a partner at
the Boston-based law firm of Choate, Hall & Stewattere he specialized in corporate and busines$danearly 20 years. He is a director of
State Street Corporation, a member of the DanagF&hbncer Institute's Board of Trustees and a hoamber of the New England
Conservatory. Mr. Burnes is also Chairman of thaB®f Trustees of the Schepens Eye Researchubestit

Richard J. Cathcarhas served as a director of our Company since @c@®07. He was Vice Chairman and a member of tderdBof
Directors of Pentair, Inc. from February 2005 uhid retirement in September 2007. Pentair is ardified manufacturing company consisting
of two operating segments: Water Technologies asghifical Products. He was appointed President ief Operating Officer of Pentair's
Water Technologies Group in January 2001 and searvitht capacity until his appointment as Vice @han in February 2005. He began his
career at Pentair in March 1995 as Executive ViesiBlent, Corporate Development, where he idedtifiater as a strategic area of growth. In
February 1996, he was named Executive Vice Presa@hPresident of Pentair's Water Technologiesi@rBrior to joining Pentair, he held
several management and business development paesitioing his 20-year career with Honeywell Int¢éioraal Inc. He is a director of
Fluidra S.A.

W. Craig Kisselvas elected as a member of our Board of Directofsavember 2011. Mr. Kissel previously was emplopgdrane Inc.
(formerly known as American Standard Companieg) linam 1980 until his retirement in September 20D8ring his time at Trane, Mr. Kissel
served as President of Trane Commercial Systems2@04 to June, 2008, President of WABCO Vehiclet@d Systems from 1998 to 2003,
President of Trane's North American Unitary Prod@&toup from 1994 to 1997, Vice President of Margbf Trane's North American
Unitary Products Group from 1992 to 1994 and heldous other management positions at Trane frond 198991. Trane is a leading
worldwide supplier of air conditioning and heatiygstems, and WABCO is a leading worldwide suppfecommercial vehicle control
systems. From 2001 to 2008, Mr. Kissel served a&r@lan of Trane's Corporate Ethics and Integrityi@il, which was responsible for
developing the company's ethical business standishdKissel also served in the U.S. Navy from 1933978. Mr. Kissel has served as a
director of Chicago Bridge & Iron Company since M309. Chicago Bridge & Iron Company engineers @structs some of the world's
largest energy infrastructure projects.

John K. McGillicuddyhas served as a director of our Company since 2003vas employed by KPMG LLP, a public accountiingnf
from 1965 until his retirement in 2000. He was tdddnto the Partnership at KPMG LLP in June 19Here he served as Audit Partner, SEC
Reviewing Partner, Partner-in-Charge of ProfessdiBnactice, Partner-in-Charge of College Recruiting Partner-in-Charge of Staff
Scheduling. He is a director of Brooks Automatibt,. and Cabot Corporation.

Merilee Rainedas served as a director of our Company since Bepf011. Ms. Raines has served as Chief Fina@dfaler of IDEXX
Laboratories, Inc. since October 2003. Prior tool@iog Chief Financial Officer, Ms. Raines held sevenanagement positions with IDEXX
Laboratories, including Corporate Vice Presiderfiofince, Vice President and Treasurer of Finabirector of Finance, and Controller.
IDEXX Laboratories develops, manufactures and ithistes diagnostic and information technology-basediucts and services for companion
animals, livestock, poultry, water quality and fasafety, and human point-of-care diagnostics. MBn&s recently announced that she will be
retiring from IDEXX Laboratories in May 2013.




Product Liability, Environmental and Other Litigatin Matters

We are subject to a variety of potentiabliities connected with our business operatiomduding potential liabilities and expenses
associated with possible product defects or fadlamed compliance with environmental laws. We mainpaoduct liability and other insurance
coverage, which we believe to be generally in ag@oce with industry practices. Nonetheless, sustrance coverage may not be adequate t
protect us fully against substantial damage claims.

Contingencies
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Settleme

On October 13, 2011, we entered into deseéint with the Securities and Exchange Commig&&tC) to resolve allegations concerning
potential violations of the U.S. Foreign Corrupaéices Act (FCPA) at Watts Valve Changsha Co.,, (f6WV), a former indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Watts Water in China. Undertérens of the settlement, without admitting or dagythe SEC's allegations, we consentec
to entry of an administrative cease-and-desistrardder the books and records and internal conpralgisions of the FCPA. We also agreed tc
pay to the SEC $3.6 million in disgorgement anguatgment interest, and $0.2 million in penalties.

The amounts paid by us in connection withgettlement were fully accrued as of Decembe2310. We anticipate that this settlement
resolves all government investigations concerniMgVG sales practices and potential FCPA violations.

Environmental Remediatic

We have been named as a potentially refilergarty with respect to a limited number of itlBed contaminated sites. The levels of
contamination vary significantly from site to sée do the related levels of remediation effortsuiimmental liabilities are recorded based on
the most probable cost, if known, or on the estdahinimum cost of remediation. Accruals are netdiunted to their present value, unles:
amount and timing of expenditures are fixed anidiod) determinable. We accrue estimated environaidiabilities based on assumptions,
which are subject to a number of factors and uaggies. Circumstances that can affect the religiaind precision of these estimates include
identification of additional sites, environmentagulations, level of cleanup required, technologiesilable, number and financial condition of
other contributors to remediation and the timegaknver which remediation may occur. We recognizanges in estimates as new remediatio
requirements are defined or as new information tresoavailable.

Asbestos Litigatiol

We are defending approximately 42 lawsinitdifferent jurisdictions, alleging injury or déeés a result of exposure to asbestos. The
complaints in these cases typically name a largebau of defendants and do not identify any paréicWatts Water products as a source of
asbestos exposure. To date, we have obtained é&didrim every case before it has reached trishlise discovery has failed to yield evidence
of substantial exposure to any Watts Water products

Other Litigation
Other lawsuits and proceedings or claimisirey from the ordinary course of operations, @&s® pending or threatened against us.
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS.

Current economic cycles, particularly those invatg reduced levels of commercial and residentialrsteand remodeling, may continue to
have an adverse effect on our revenues and operatesults.

We have experienced and expect to contmeperience fluctuations in revenues and opagatisults due to economic and business
cycles. The businesses of most of our customerscpiarly plumbing and heating wholesalers and Bamprovement retailers, are cyclical.
Therefore, the level of our business activity hasrbcyclical, fluctuating with economic cycles. Tkeeent economic downturn may also affect
the financial stability of our customers, which baffect their ability to pay amounts owed to thegndors, including us. We also believe our
level of business activity is influenced by comni@rand residential starts and renovation and resfiiegl, which are, in turn, heavily influenc
by interest rates, consumer debt levels, changdsposable income, employment growth and conswaaidence. The current credit market
conditions may prevent commercial and residentigblers or developers from obtaining the necessapjtal to continue existing projects ol
start new projects. This may result in the delagancellation of orders from our customers or piénustomers and may adversely affect ou
revenues and our ability to manage inventory levaifiect customer receivables and maintain prioifitg. Recent conditions in the housing
and debt markets caused a significant reducti@einmercial and residential starts and renovati@hramodeling. These conditions adversely
impacted our revenue and profit over the last fodive years. In 2012, U.S. residential marketgareto recover, with commercial construc
still lagging. Further, sovereign debt concernsinithe Euro Zone are negatively impacting the alv@conomic vitality of the region. If these
conditions continue or worsen in the future ohi turrent U.S. residential recovery were to digsipour revenues and profits could decrease
or trigger additional goodwill, indefinite-lived tangible assets, or lorliyed asset impairments and could have a mateffiadteon our financie
condition and results of operations.

We face intense competition and, if we are not atdgespond to competition in our markets, our renges may decrease.

Competitive pressures in our markets cauldersely affect our competitive position, leadiog possible loss of market share or a
decrease in prices, either of which could resutiénreased revenues and profits. We encountesimtssmpetition in all areas of our business.
Additionally, we believe our customers are attemgptio reduce the number of vendors from which {gghase in order to reduce the size an
diversity of their inventories and their transaotosts. To remain competitive, we will need toeistvcontinually in manufacturing, product
development, marketing, customer service and stigpol our distribution networks. We may not havificient resources to continue to make
such investments and we may be unable to maintaicampetitive position. In addition, we anticip#itat we may have to reduce the prices ¢
some of our products to stay competitive, potelyti@sulting in a reduction in the profit margirrfand inventory valuation of, these products.
Some of our competitors are based in foreign camand have cost structures and prices in foreugrencies. Accordingly, currency
fluctuations could cause our U.S. dollar costedlpots to be less competitive than our competifmeiucts which are priced in other
currencies.

Changes in the costs of raw materials could redwee profit margins. Reductions or interruptions ithe supply of components or finished
goods from international sources could adverselyeat our ability to meet our customer delivery contments.

We require substantial amounts of raw nialterincluding bronze, brass, cast iron, steelgladtic, and substantially all of the raw
materials we require are purchased from outsidecesuThe costs of raw materials may be subjecihamge due to, among other things,
interruptions in production by suppliers and chanigeexchange rates and worldwide price and derfevads. We typically do not enter into
long-term supply agreements. Our inability to obtsipplies of raw materials for our products abfable costs could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition or tessaf operations by decreasing our profit margiftee commodity markets have experienced
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tremendous volatility over the past several yegaasticularly copper. Should commodity costs inceesisbstantially, we may not be able to
recover such costs, through selling price increasesir customers or other product cost reductiaéch would have a negative effect on our
financial results. If commodity costs decline, waynexperience pressure from customers to reducsetlirg prices. Additionally, we contini

to purchase increased levels of components arshfidi goods from international sources. In limitases, these components or finished good:
are single-sourced. The availability of componemid finished goods from international sources cbelddversely impacted by, among other
things, interruptions in production by suppliengpgliers' allocations to other purchasers and @avs lor regulations.

Government regulations could limit or delay our dity to market or sell our products and could affeaw material sourcing and/or increa:
our raw material costs.

In January 2011, the President of the dn8tates signed tHeeduction of Lead in Drinking Water Aowvhich will reduce the permissible
weighted average lead content in faucets, fittengs valves used in potable water applications f8énto 0.25% nationwide beginning in
January 2014. The new law is consistent with lavas tecently went into effect in California, Verntpklaryland and Louisiana. We have
introduced lead free products for sale in Califarnfermont, Maryland and Louisiana, and offer géaselection of lead free compliant valves
and fittings. Complying with these new requiremesmsa nationwide basis will pose a significant tdrade for us. The transition to comply
with the requirements may cause our material dostscrease as suppliers of alternative lead fretals are currently limited. We may not
succeed in passing through these cost increases ttustomers. We may also experience technicdlecigges in converting our present
manufacturing operations to produce more leadgreducts. Further, we may experience delays ire¥pected timing for commissioning our
new lead free foundry. In addition, we could haiféallty providing sufficient quantities of our é&l free compliant products to meet
nationwide demand and we could be left with potdiytiobsolete traditional leaded product inventsifecustomers convert to lead free
offerings faster than anticipated. These requirédmeould have a material effect on our financiaiditon and results of operation.

Section 1502 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Stieeform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (theddBrank Act) requires the SEC to
establish new disclosure and reporting requiremegarding specified minerals originating in thenizeratic Republic of the Congo or an
adjoining country that are necessary to the funetity or production of products manufactured bynpanies required to file reports with the
SEC. The final rules implementing these requiresieat released recently by the SEC, could affegtaay at competitive prices and
availability in sufficient quantities of mineralsed in the manufacture of our products. In addijtimtause our supply chain is complex, we
may face commercial challenges if we are unablestdy sufficiently the origins for all metals us@dour products through the due diligence
procedures that we implement and otherwise mayrbeabliged to disclose publicly those efforts wighgard to conflict minerals. Moreover,
we may encounter challenges to satisfy those custmho require that all of the components of aodpcts be certified as conflict free,
which could place us at a competitive disadvanttge are unable to do so.

Implementation of our acquisition strategy may noé successful, which could affect our ability todrease our revenues or our profitabilit

One of our strategies is to increase owemaes and profitability and expand our businessutih acquisitions that will provide us with
complementary products and increase market shamifexisting product lines. We cannot be certhat we will be able to identify, acquire
or profitably manage additional companies or susftily integrate such additional companies withsuibstantial costs, delays or other
problems. Also, companies acquired recently artiérfuture may not achieve revenues, profitabditgash flows that justify our investmen
them. We have faced increasing competition for &itipn candidates, which has resulted in signifidacreases in the purchase prices of
many acquisition candidates. This competition, gaedresulting purchase price increases, may limit

12




the number of acquisition opportunities availablei$, possibly leading to a decrease in the raggavith of our revenues and profitability. In
addition, acquisitions may involve a number of siskcluding, but not limited to:

. inadequate internal controls over financial repgrtand our ability to bring such controls into cdiaupce with the requirements
of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 timely manner;

. adverse short-term effects on our reported dimgraesults;

. diversion of management's attention;

. investigations of, or challenges to, acquiskidyy competition authorities;

. loss of key personnel at acquired companies;

. unanticipated management or operational problenhsgat liabilities; and

. potential goodwill, indefinite-lived intangible as, or long-lived asset impairment charges.

We are subject to risks related to product defeethjch could result in product recalls and could kject us to warranty claims in excess of
our warranty provisions or which are greater thamécipated due to the unenforceability of liabilitymitations.

We maintain strict quality controls and gedures, including the testing of raw materials safetty testing of selected finished products.
However, we cannot be certain that our testing milieal latent defects in our products or the nefrom which they are made, which may
not become apparent until after the products haemIsold into the market. We also cannot be cetttaihour suppliers will always eliminate
latent defects in products we purchase from thecgofdingly, there is a risk that product defecth @dcur, which could require a product
recall. Product recalls can be expensive to impigraad, if a product recall occurs during the prittuwvarranty period, we may be required to
replace the defective product. In addition, a pobdecall may damage our relationship with our costrs and we may lose market share with
our customers. Our insurance policies may not ctheecosts of a product recall.

Our standard warranties contain limits amdges and exclusions of liability for consequéni@ganages and for misuse, improper
installation, alteration, accident or mishandlingile in the possession of someone other than usm@ieincur additional operating expenses fif
our warranty provision does not reflect the actust of resolving issues related to defects inppaducts. If these additional expenses are
significant, it could adversely affect our busindssancial condition and results of operations.

We face risks from product liability and other lawis, which may adversely affect our business.

We have been and expect to continue tabgst to various product liability claims or otHawsuits, including, among others, that our
products include inadequate or improper instructifm use or installation, or inadequate warningscerning the effects of the failure of our
products. If we do not have adequate insurancemtractual indemnification, damages from thesentdaivould have to be paid from our as:
and could have a material adverse effect on owltsesf operations, liquidity and financial conditi. Like other manufacturers and distributors
of products designed to control and regulate flaidd gases, we face an inherent risk of exposypeottuct liability claims and other lawsuits
in the event that the use of our products resnlseirsonal injury, property damage or businessrugpéion to our customers. Although we
maintain strict quality controls and procedures|uding the testing of raw materials and safetyingsf selected finished products, we cannot
be certain that our products will be completeleffeom defect. In addition, in certain cases, W o@ third-party manufacturers for our
products or components of our products. Althoughaee product liability and general insurance cager we cannot be certain that this
insurance coverage will continue to be availableg@t a reasonable cost, or, if available, wilaHequate to cover any such liabilities.
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For more information, see "ltem 1. Business—Prodligtbility, Environmental and Other Litigation Mats."
Economic and other risks associated with internatal sales and operations could adversely affect business and future operating resul

Since we sell and manufacture our prodwetddwide, our business is subject to risks assediavith doing business internationally. Our
business and future operating results could be éditmy a variety of factors, including:

. unexpected geo-political events in foreign coustirewhich we operate, which could adversely affeahufacturing and our
ability to fulfill customer orders. Although our mafacturing operations have not been materiallgciéfd to date, we can give
assurance that future operations will not be adgiafected by unforeseen political events in iigmecountries;

. trade protection measures and import or exjpehsing requirements, which could increase outsaosdoing business
internationally;

. potentially negative consequences from changesxitetvs, which could have an adverse impact orpoofits;

. difficulty in staffing and managing widespread agérns, which could reduce our productivity;

. costs of compliance with differing labor regulasoespecially in connection with restructuring ouerseas operations;

. laws of some foreign countries, which may not pebtair intellectual property rights to the sameeexias the laws of the United
States;

. unexpected changes in regulatory requiremertshimay be costly and require time to implement] a

. foreign exchange rate fluctuations, which caallkb materially affect our reported results. A jmortof our sales and certain

portions of our costs, assets and liabilities anmeathinated in currencies other than U.S. dollard,the percentage of our
revenues denominated in a particular currency nedynatch the percentage of our expenses denomiimatedt currency.
Approximately 48.3% of our sales during the yeateshDecember 31, 2012 were from sales outsideedftB. compared to
48.7% for the year ended December 31, 2011. Weotqumadict whether currencies such as the Euroadian dollar or Chine:
yuan will appreciate or depreciate against the ddBar in future periods or whether future foreigxchange rate fluctuations
will have a positive or negative impact on our néed results.

Our ability to achieve savings through our restrugtng plans may be adversely affected by local riegions or factors beyond the control «
management.

We have implemented a number of restruatupians, which include steps that we believe apessary to reduce operating costs and
increase efficiencies throughout our manufacturgades and distribution footprint. Although we haemsidered the impact of local
regulations, negotiations with employee represasasyt the timing of capital expenditures necessagyepare facilities and the related costs
associated with these activities, factors beyordctintrol of management may affect the timing dsdefore affect when the savings will be
achieved under the plans. Further, if we are netessful in completing the restructuring projentthie time frames contemplated or if
additional issues arise during the projects thdt@ibts or disrupt customer service, then our ¢ipgraesults could be negatively affected.
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Future operating results could be negatively affedtby the resolution of various uncertain tax paeits and by potential changes to ti
incentives.

In the ordinary course of our businessietage many transactions and calculations wheraltimate tax determination is uncertain.
Significant judgment is required in determining ewarldwide provision for income taxes. We periodlicassess our exposures related to our
worldwide provision for income taxes and believattive have appropriately accrued taxes for conticigs. Any reduction of these contingent
liabilities or additional assessment would incre@isdecrease income, respectively, in the periath sietermination was made. Our income tax
filings are regularly under audit by tax authostend the final determination of tax audits coudchimaterially different than that which is
reflected in historical income tax provisions amdraals. As issues arise during tax audits we adustax accrual accordingly. Additionally,
we benefit from certain tax incentives offered layigus jurisdictions. If we are unable to meetrbguirements of such incentives, our inability
to use these benefits could have a material negeaffect on future earnings.

We are currently a decentralized company, which ggats certain risks.

We are currently a decentralized comparhicivsometimes places significant control and decisnaking powers in the hands of local
management. This presents various risks such asskhef being slower to identify or react to prebis affecting a key business. Additionally,
we are implementing in a phased approach a compéhg/initiative to selectively standardize and wgmbgr our enterprise resource planning
(ERP) systems. This initiative could be more chagjlag and costly to implement because divergergdggystems currently exist. Further, if
the ERP updates are not successful, we could suhstantial business interruption, including outfitglto perform routine business
transactions, which could have a material adveffeeteon our financial results.

The requirements to evaluate goodwill, indefiniter¢d intangible assets and long-lived assets fopaimment may result in a write-off of all
or a portion of our recorded amounts, which woulggatively affect our operating results and finantieondition.

As of December 31, 2012, our balance sihe&tded goodwill, indefinite-lived intangible asseamortizable intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment of $508.2 million1®million, $104.8 million, and $223.6 million,geectively. In lieu of amortization, we are
required to perform an annual impairment revievaath goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assen performing our annual reviews in
both 2012 and 2011, we recognized non-cashgreharges of approximately $0.4 million and $billion, respectively, as impairments of :
indefinite-lived intangible assets. In 2012 and R0Ae recognized pre-tax non-cash goodwill impaitraharges of $1.0 million and
$1.2 million related to our Blue Ridge Atlantic Erprises, Inc. (BRAE) reporting unit within our NlorAmerica segment. We are also require
to perform an impairment review of our long-livessats if indicators of impairment exist. In 2012, icognized a pre-tax non-cash charge o
$1.6 million to write down long-term assets. In 20Wve recognized pre-tax non-cash long-lived asggairment charges of $14.8 million
related to our Austroflex Rohr-Isoliersysteme Gmtdstroflex) operations within our EMEA segment.efé can be no assurances that future
goodwill, indefinite-lived intangible assets or ethong-lived asset impairments will not occur. Yéform our annual test for indications of
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets mmment in the fourth quarter of our fiscal yeaisooner if indicators of impairment exist.

The loss or financial instability of a major custoen could have an adverse effect on our results pémtions.

In 2012, our top ten customers accounte@pproximately 21% of our total net sales withame customer accounting for more than 10%
of our total net sales. Our customers generallynatebligated to purchase any minimum volume ofipicts from us and are able to terminate
their relationships with us at any time. In additiocreases in the prices of our products cowddltén a reduction in orders from our
customers. A significant reduction in orders framgchange in terms of contracts with, any signiftaaustomers could have a material adverse
effect on our future results of
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operations. Furthermore, some of our major custerae¥ facing financial challenges due to markelimiexs and heavy debt levels; should thes
challenges become acute, our results could be imitexdversely affected due to reduced ordersamuityment delays or defaults.

Certain indebtedness may limit our ability to paividiends, incur additional debt and make acquisiti®and other investments.

Our revolving credit facility and other s@nindebtedness contain operational and finareoaknants that restrict our ability to make
distributions to stockholders, incur additional tliebd make acquisitions and other investments sinessatisfy certain financial tests and
comply with various financial ratios. If we do mogintain compliance with these covenants, our twesicould declare a default under our
revolving credit facility or senior notes and ondébtedness could be declared immediately due ayabfe. Our ability to comply with the
provisions of our indebtedness may be affectediaynges in economic or business conditions beyondantrol. Further, one of our strategies
is to increase our revenues and profitability axgbed our business through acquisitions. We mayiregapital in excess of our available ¢
and the unused portion of our revolving creditifgcto make large acquisitions, which we would geaily obtain from access to the credit
markets. There can be no assurance that if a tangeisition is identified that we would have acdessufficient capital to complete such
acquisition. Given the current condition of theditenarkets, should we require additional debtriitiag above our existing credit limit, we
cannot be assured such financing would be avaitablis or available to us on reasonable econormiaste

A break-up of the Euro Zone and its common currency couldve a material effect on our business prospectgmtions, financial
condition and cash flow.

Approximately 40% of our annualized condated sales are generated in the Euro Zone. Sgneilebt concerns within certain European
countries could precipitate a break-up of the EAone. Leaders from key European countries havegsegpsolutions to the issue, but a
comprehensive program addressing all pan Europaacecns has not yet been identified. There arev@eu of scenarios that could occur a
which countries may leave the Euro Zone and itglsinurrency. A sovereign country's decision td theé Euro Zone would, among other
things, trigger a redenomination of monetary assetsliabilities into a new national currency, migpt that country's banking system and ct
affect various commercial contracts that were emithssuming a standard Eurocurrency. We would pesex to potential devaluation of our
asset base and our operating results, we couldierpe liquidity issues within a given country amd could be subject to disputes over
business transactions with various third partiesr taow contractual obligations should be settled.d&hnot be assured that the Euro Zone wi
continue as presently constructed nor can we daterthe breadth and scope of a potential breakftipeoEuro Zone.

One of our stockholders can exercise substantidluence over our Company.

Our Class B Common Stock entitles its hridde ten votes for each share and our Class A Gontock entitles its holders to one vote
per share. As of January 31, 2013, Timothy P. Hosreeficially owned approximately 18.6% of our ¢atgling shares of Class A Common
Stock (assuming conversion of all shares of Cla&@oBimon Stock beneficially owned by Mr. Horne iftlass A Common Stock) and
approximately 99.2% of our outstanding shares as€B Common Stock, which represents approximé&&B32 of the total outstanding
voting power. As long as Mr. Horne controls shasggesenting at least a majority of the total vpiower of our outstanding stock, Mr. Ho
will be able to unilaterally determine the outcoafenost stockholder votes, and other stockholdéiiswat be able to affect the outcome of ¢
such votes.
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Conversion and sale of a significant number of skearof our Class B Common Stock could adversely @ffae market price of our Class
Common Stock.

As of January 31, 2013, there were outstena8,661,416 shares of our Class A Common Stadk6a588,680 shares of our Class B
Common Stock. Shares of our Class B Common Stogklraaonverted into Class A Common Stock at ang tim a one for one basis. Under
the terms of a registration rights agreement wapect to outstanding shares of our Class B Con8tmek, the holders of our Class B
Common Stock have rights with respect to the regfisin of the underlying Class A Common Stock. Uritiese registration rights, the holders
of Class B Common Stock may require, on up to tacasions that we register their shares for pubbale. If we are eligible to use Form S-3
or a similar shorferm registration statement, the holders of Clagddgnmon Stock may require that we register thearesh for public resale |
to two times per year. If we elect to register ahgres of Class A Common Stock for any public affgrthe holders of Class B Common St
are entitled to include shares of Class A CommawkSinto which such shares of Class B Common Staai be converted in such
registration. However, we may reduce the numbehafes proposed to be registered in view of madaditions. We will pay all expenses in
connection with any registration, other than und#ing discounts and commissions. If all of the ifalasle registered shares are sold into the
public market the trading price of our Class A Coomn$tock could decline.

ltem 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.
Item 2. PROPERTIES.

As of December 31, 2012, we maintained adprately 32 principal manufacturing, warehouse distribution centers worldwide,
including our corporate headquarters located irttNandover, Massachusetts. Additionally, we mamtaiimerous sales offices and other
smaller manufacturing facilities and warehouse® piincipal properties in each of our three geodgi@apegments and their location, principal
use and ownership status are set forth below:

North America:

Location Principal Use Owned/Leasec
North Andover, MA Corporate Headquarte Owned
Burlington, ON, Canad Distribution Owned
Chesnee, S! Manufacturing Owned
Export, PA Manufacturing Owned
Franklin, NH Manufacturing/Distributior Owned
Kansas City, K¢ Manufacturing Owned
St. Pauls, N( Manufacturing Owned
San Antonio, TX Warehouse/Distributio Owned
Spindale, NC Distribution Cente Owned
Kansas City, MC Manufacturing/Distributior Leasec
Peoria, AZ Manufacturing/Distributior Leasec
Reno, NV Distribution Cente Leasec
Springfield, MO Manufacturing/Distributior Leasec
Vernon, BC, Canad Manufacturing/Distributior Leasec
Woodland, CA Manufacturing Leasec
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Europe, Middle East and Africa:

Location Principal Use Owned/Leasec
Eerbeek, Netherlanc EMEA Headquarters/Manufacturit Owned
Biassono, Italy Manufacturing/Distributior Owned
Hautvillers, Franci Manufacturing Owned

Landau, German Manufacturing/Distributior Owned

Mery, France Manufacturing Owned

Plovdiv, Bulgaria Manufacturing Owned

Vildjberg, Denmark Manufacturing/Distributior Owned

Virey-Le-Grand, Franc Manufacturing/Distributior Owned

Gardolo, Italy Manufacturing Leasec

Godersdorf, Austrii Manufacturing/Distributior Leasec

Monastir, Tunisie Manufacturing Leasec

Rosieres, Franc Manufacturing/Distributior Leasec

Sorgues, Franc Distribution Cente Leasec

Asia:

Location Principal Use Owned/Leasec
Shanghai, Chin Asian Headquartel Leasec
Ningbo, Beilun District, Chini  Distribution Cente Leasec
Ningbo, Beilun, Chin; Manufacturing Owned
Taizhou, Yuhuan, Chin Manufacturing Owned

Certain of our facilities are subject tortgages and collateral assignments under loan imgms with long-term lenders. In general, we
believe that our properties, including machineop|$ and equipment, are in good condition, wellnt@hed and adequate and suitable for the;
intended uses.

ltem 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We are from time to time involved in varsolegal and administrative proceedings. See ItetBusiness—Product Liability,
Environmental and Other Litigation Matters," whistincorporated herein by reference and see Nate 14

ltem 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.
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PART I

tem5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STORHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

The following table sets forth the high doa sales prices of our Class A Common Stock enNkw York Stock Exchange during 2012
and 2011 and cash dividends paid per share.

2012 2011
High Low Dividend High Low Dividend
First Quartel $ 423t $ 3497 $ 011 $ 40.7¢ $ 3491 $ 0.11
Second Quarte 41.5¢ 31.61 0.11 39.0¢ 32.1: 0.11
Third Quartel 40.2¢ 30.8¢ 0.11 36.9¢ 24.4¢ 0.11
Fourth Quarte 43.3¢ 36.4¢ 0.11 38.21 24.31 0.11

There is no established public trading reafkr our Class B Common Stock, which is held nmbers of the Horne family. The principal
holders of such stock are subject to restrictiangransfer with respect to their shares. Each shiaoeir Class B Common Stock (10 votes per
share) is convertible into one share of Class A @omStock (1 vote per share).

On February 19, 2013, we declared a guprdéridend of eleven cents ($0.11) per share ameritstanding share of Class A Common
Stock and Class B Common Stock.

Aggregate common stock dividend paymen0it2 were $16.0 million, which consisted of $1&illion and $3.0 million for Class A
shares and Class B shares, respectively. Aggregateon stock dividend payments in 2011 were $16ll&om which consisted of
$13.3 million and $3.0 million for Class A sharesl&Class B shares, respectively. While we presémtiynd to continue to pay comparable
cash dividends, the payment of future cash dividetepends upon the Board of Directors' assessrhent earnings, financial condition,
capital requirements and other factors.

The number of record holders of our Classofnmon Stock as of January 31, 2013 was 200. Uih#ar of record holders of our Class B
Common Stock as of January 31, 2013 was 8.

We satisfy the minimum withholding tax @altion due upon the vesting of shares of restristedk and the conversion of restricted stocl
units into shares of Class A Common Stock by autmaléy withholding from the shares being issuetuianber of shares with an aggregate
market value on the date of such vesting or comwerfat would satisfy the withholding amount due.

The following table includes informationtivrespect to shares of our Class A Common Stottkhwid to satisfy withholding obligations
during the quarter ended December 31, 2012.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

(d) Maximum Number (or

(a) Total (c) Total Number of Approximate Dollar
Number of Shares (or Units) Value) of Shares (or
Shares (or (b) Average Purchased as Part of Units) that May Yet Be
Units) Price Paid per Publicly Announced Purchased Under the
Period Purchased Share (or Unit) Plans or Programs Plans or Programs
October 1, 2012 -
October 28, 201 275 % 38.0i — —
October 29, 2012 -
November 25, 201 — — — —
November 26, 201-
December 31, 201 4,311 $ 41.1¢ — —
Total 4,58¢ $ 41.01 — —

19




Performance Grapt

Set forth below is a line graph comparing tumulative total shareholder return on our Chag&mmon Stock for the last five years with
the cumulative return of companies on the Stané&aPdor's 500 Stock Index and the Russell 2000 Indéx chose the Russell 2000 Index
because it represents companies with a marketatizption similar to that of Watts Water. The grggsumes that the value of the investment
in our Class A Common Stock and each index was $t@&cember 31, 2007 and that all dividends weiresested.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Watts Water Technologies, Inc., the S&P 50idex
and the Russell 2000 Index

$180 -
5160 -
$140 - /
=
$120 - QR
-E‘ ------------ —'L_.___,.-—-"-- 'ﬁ
-5 . —
5100 e A — — — A
$80 - e ez R=
e L Tt —
$60 - SRS
540 -
520 -
50 ' . i . i
12/07 12/08 12/09 12H0 1211 12H2
—8— Watts Water Technologies, Inc. — & — S&P 500 ---G--- Russell 2000

* $100 invested on 12/31/07 in stock or index, intigdeinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year endirag@&mber 31.

Cumulative Total Return

12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11 12/31/12

Watts Water Technologies, |i 100.0( 85.31 107.6C 129.1: 122.3t 155.5¢
S & P 500 100.0( 63.0( 79.61 91.67 93.61 108.5¢
Russell 200( 100.0( 66.21 84.2( 106.8: 102.3¢ 119.0¢

The above Performance Graph and related informasioall not be deemed "soliciting material” or to'lfiked” with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, nor shall such informatiomberporated by reference into any future filingden the Securities Act of 1933
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amendedptto the extent that we specifically incorperiatby reference into such filing.
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ltem 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The selected financial data set forth bedtvould be read in conjunction with our consoliddteancial statements, related Notes thereto
and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fird@ondition and Results of Operations" includeddn.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

(Amounts in millions, except per share and casiddivd information)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
12/31/12(1)(6 12/31/11(2)(6’ 12/31/10(3)(6 12/31/09(4)(6’ 12/31/08(5)(6

Statement of
operations data:

Net sales $ 1,445.¢ $ 1,428.0 $ 1,274.¢ $ 1,225.¢ $ 1,431.
Net income fron
continuing operatior 70.€ 64.4 63.1 41.C 45.2

Income (loss) from
discontinued
operations, net of

taxes (2.2) 2.C (4.9 (23.€) 1.4
Net income 68.4 66.4 58.¢ 17.4 46.€
DILUTED EPS
Income (loss) per shai

Continuing

operations 1.9¢ 1.72 1.6¢ 1.1C 1.2

Discontinued

operations (0.0¢€) 0.0t (0.12) (0.69) 0.0

NET INCOME 1.9C 1.7¢ 1.57 0.47 1.2¢
Cash dividends declar

per common shal $ 044 $ 044 $ 044 $ 044 $ 0.4
Balance sheet data (a

year end):

Total asset $ 1,709.C $ 1,694.( $ 1,646.. $ 1,599.. $ 1,660.:
Long-term debt, net of
current portior $ 3075 $ 397.¢ % 378.C $ 304.C $ 409.¢

Q) For the year ended December 31, 2012, net incoome éontinuing operations includes the following ped-tax costs:
restructuring charges of $5.3 million, goodwill astther long-lived asset impairment of $3.4 millioret legal and
customs costs of $2.5 million, an adjustment togéi@ on sale of Tianjin Watts Valve Company LIBWYVC) of
$1.6 million, retention charges related to our ferr@hief Financial Officer of $1.5 million, and harge of $0.4 million
for costs related to the 2012 acquisition of tekméset by a pre-tax gain for an earn-out adjusinoé $1.0 million.
Additionally, net income includes tax benefits timtg $0.7 million, primarily related to a tax lava@ange in Italy. The net
after-tax cost of these items was $8.0 million.

(2) For the year ended December 31, 2011, netirdacludes the following net pre-tax costs: regtrting charges of
$10.0 million, intangibles and goodwill impairmetiitarges of $17.4 million, pension curtailment cleargf $1.5 million,
separation costs related to our former Chief Exeeu®fficer of $6.3 million, and costs related tar @cquisition of
Danfoss Socla S.A.S (Socla) in France of $5.8 amlbffset by pre-tax gains of $1.2 million for aare-out adjustment,
$7.7 million related to the sale of TWVC in Chinade$1.1 million from legal settlements. Additionalhet income
includes a tax benefit of $4.2 million relatingthe sale of TWVC offset by a $1.1 million tax chaiig EMEA related to
our France restructuring. The net after-tax coshese items was $17.0 million.

3 For the year ended December 31, 2010, net incoone éontinuing operations includes the following pet-tax costs:
restructuring charges of $14.1 million, intangilstgpairment charges of $1.4 million, and costs egldb acquisitions and
other items of $7.1 million offset by ptax gains of $4.5 million primarily for product hidity and workers compensatic
accrual adjustments. Additionally, net income inigs a tax benefit of $4.3 million related to thiease of a valuatio
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(4)

®)

(6)

allowance in EMEA offset by a tax charge of $1.Hiom relating to the repatriation of earnings rgnized upon our
decision to dispose of a China subsidiary. The-dfte cost of these items was $10.3 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, net incoohedes the following net pre-tax costs: restructyrcharges of
$18.9 million and intangible impairment charge$8f3 million, offset by pre-tax gains on the sdl@ianjin Tanggu
Watts Valve Co. Ltd. (TWT) in China of $1.1 millipfavorable product liability and workers compermagccrual
adjustments of $4.9 million and legal settlemerit$1lo5 million. Additionally, net income includegax charge of

$3.9 million relating to previously realized taxnedits, which were expected to be recaptured asualtrof our decision t
restructure our operations in China. The afteretast of these items was $16.7 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, netrirdacludes the following net pre-tax costs: restiting charges of
$5.7 million, goodwill impairment charges of $22dillion and minority interest income of $0.2 milioThe after-tax
cost of these items was $21.2 million.

In December 2012, we disposed of the stock of Ftan@orporation. Results from operations and a tossisposal are
recorded in discontinued operations for 2012 arfdl2th September 2009, the Company's Board of Rire@pproved
the sale of its investment in CWV and subsequestlgt CWV in January 2010. Results from operatioth @stimated loss
on disposal are included net of tax for CWYV in disiinued operations for 2010, 2009 and 2008. In 129, the
Company liquidated its TEAM Precision Pipework, LEEAM) business. Results from operation and wsslisposal
are included net of tax from the deconsolidatiom &AM in discontinued operations for 2011, 201002@nd 2008. In
September 1996, we divested our Municipal Watenu@mf businesses, which included Henry Pratt, Jalores
Company and Edward Barber and Company Ltd. Costeapenses related to the Municipal Water Group2€d.1,
2010, 2009 and 2008 relate to legal and settlenwsts associated with the James Jones Litigatidrotrer
miscellaneous costs. Discontinued operating incfloss) for 2011 and 2010 include an estimatedesatht reserve
adjustment in connection with the FCPA investigatid CWV (see Note 14) and in 2010 and 2009, iredudgal costs
associated with the FCPA investigati
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL GONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

We are a leading supplier of products & in the water quality, water safety, water flamnirol and water conservation markets in both
North America and EMEA with a growing presence &igA For over 138 years, we have designed and raetowéd products that promote
comfort and safety of people and the quality antseovation of water used in commercial and resideapplications. We earn revenue and
income almost exclusively from the sale of our pieid. Our principal product lines include:

. Residential & commercial flow control productsaeiudes products typically sold into plumbing armd Wwater applications such
as backflow preventers, water pressure regulaimgyerature and pressure relief valves, and theatiosnixing valves.

. HVAC & gas products—includes hydronic and electdating systems for under-floor radiant applicatjdrydronic pump
groups for boiler manufacturers and alternativegyneontrol packages, and flexible stainless sterhectors for natural and
liquid propane gas in commercial food service agidential applications. HVAC is an acronym for tivea ventilation and air
conditioning.

. Drains & water re-use products—includes drainagelucts and engineered rain water harvestingisakifor commercial,
industrial, marine and residential applications.

. Water quality products—includes point-of-use anahpof-entry water filtration, conditioning and $egrevention systems for
both commercial and residential applications.

Our business is reported in three geogagdgments: North America, EMEA and Asia. We distte our products through three primary
distribution channels: wholesale, do-it-yourself{Dand original equipment manufacturers (OEMS).

We believe that the factors relating to future growth include our ability to continue t@ke selective acquisitions, both in our core
markets as well as in new complementary markegsilatory requirements relating to the quality andservation of water, safe use of water,
increased demand for clean water, continued enfogaé of plumbing and building codes and a healtgnemic environment. We have
completed 36 acquisitions since divesting our itriaisand oil and gas business in 1999. Our actjoisstrategy focuses on businesses that
manufacture preferred brand name products thatadarur themes of water quality, water conservatiater safety and water flow control
and related complementary markets. We target bssasethat will provide us with one or more of tbkoiving: an entry into new markets, an
increase in shelf space with existing customergva or improved technology or an expansion of tleadth of our water quality, water
conservation, water safety and water flow controbpcts for the commercial, industrial and resiggmharkets.

Products representing a majority of ouesare subject to regulatory standards and codecemfient, which typically require that these
products meet stringent performance criteria. Tlogretvith our commissioned manufacturers' repretigatg we have consistently advocated
for the development and enforcement of such plumbodes. We are focused on maintaining stringealitg§control and testing procedures at
each of our manufacturing facilities in order tomatacture products in compliance with code requéets and take advantage of the resulting
demand for compliant products. We believe thatpttoeluct development, product testing capability emvestment in plant and equipment
needed to manufacture products in compliance vatteaequirements, represent a competitive advarfitages.

Our performance in 2012 was mixed, drivgmifferent opportunities and challenges withinleaegion in which we participate. In North
America, we saw sequential quarterly improvemenindu2012 as the U.S. residential marketplace bégaacover. However, the commercial
market continued to lag. In EMEA, we experiencedkats of growth in certain pan European produ@djrsuch as
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specialty drains, and in certain countries, sucBasnany. Our EMEA business also further expantieskiles into Eastern Europe and the
Middle East. Other parts of Europe, such as Italy more recently France, were significantly affddtg the general economic downturn. In
Asia, we had solid growth as we expanded our saldsmarketing efforts.

Overall, sales grew organically by 0.7%aspared to 2011. Organic sales growth excludesrpacts of acquisitions, divestitures and
foreign exchange from year-over-year comparisons bélieve this provides investors with a more c@tgpunderstanding of underlying sales
trends by providing sales growth on a consistesisb®rganic sales in North America and Asia grevit 9% and 18.0%, respectively, but
were substantially offset by a reduction in EMEAamic sales of 1.5%.

Operationally, much of the focus in the UrS2012 concerned our transition to lead freaelpotion. Our operating results were negatively
impacted, especially in the first half of 2012 aslegan the transition process. The additionakasste driven by preproduction runs,
vendor/material recertification, increased mater@dts and some production inefficiencies causethéyransition. In the first half of 2013, we
expect that our U.S. operations may experiencemental costs related to the commissioning of ew iead free foundry, currently schedt
to come on line in the second quarter of 2013. ifrtpact of commaodity costs during 2012 was somewrhatd, especially with our most
important raw material, copper. We saw spot casteese in the first and third quarters, only tatalsomewhat in the second and fourth
quarters. Pricing, in turn, was fairly stable, aligh we experienced some pricing pressures inicggegraphies and in certain product line
North America. In Europe, we were able to seledyiviecrease pricing for certain products. Howewee, believe the economic uncertainty
Europe may continue affecting how our competitoesmicing in end markets.

We continually review our business and ienpent restructuring plans as needed. We recenthplsted restructuring projects in the U.S.
and Europe which have shut down and consolidatadineof our operations. Please see Note 4 of thed\to Consolidated Financial
Statements for a more detailed explanation of estructuring activities.

Acquisitions and Disposals

On December 21, 2012, we disposed of thetanding shares of Flomatic Corporation (Flomatiz) third party in an all cash
transaction. Flomatic was acquired as part of thefBss Socla S.A.S. (Socla) acquisition in April 20Flomatic specializes in manufacturing
various valves for the well water industry, a proidine not core to our business. The operatinglte®f Flomatic have been classified in
discontinued operations for 2012 and 2011. A n&t lin disposal of approximately $3.8 million waarged to discontinued operations in
2012.

On January 31, 2012, we completed the aitgpri of tekmar Control Systems (tekmar) in a shaurchase transaction. A designer and
manufacturer of control systems used in heatingtilation, and air conditioning applications, teknmexpected to enhance our hydronic
systems product offerings in the U.S. and Canala.iffitial purchase price paid was CAD $18.0 millisvith an earn-out based on future
earnings levels being achieved. The initial purehasce paid was equal to approximately $17.8 orillbased on the exchange rate of Cane
dollar to U.S. dollars as of January 31, 2012. fhital purchase price will not exceed CAD $26.2 iwiill

Recent Developments

On February 19, 2013, we declared a gquprdéridend of eleven cents ($0.11) per share ameritstanding share of Class A Common
Stock and Class B Common Stock.
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Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year Efdlecember 31, 2011

Net Sales. Our business is reported in three geograplimsats: North America, EMEA and Asia. Our net salesach of these
segments for the years ended December 31, 2012(ridwere as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended % Ch
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011 6 Change to
Consolidated
Net Sales % Sales Net Sales % Sales Change Net Sales
(Dollars in millions)
North America $ 835.( 57.€% $ 810.¢ 56.8%$ 24.1 1.7%
EMEA 583.¢ 40.2 595.k 417  (11.7) (0.6)
Asia 26.¢ 1.8 21.7 1.5 5.1 0.3
Total $ 1,445.¢ 100.% $ 1,428.: 100.(%$ 17.t 1.2%

The change in net sales was attributabieedollowing:

Change As a % Change As a %
of Consolidated Net Sales of Segment Net Sales
North North North
America EMEA Asia Total America EMEA Asia  Total America EMEA Asia
(Dollars in millions)

Organic $ 15.2$ (8.9$3.9% 10  1.1% (0.6% 0.2% 0.7% 1.9% (1.5)% 18.(%

Foreign

exchange (0.5 (44.0) 0.5 (449 — 3) — (3.3 0.1) (749 2.2
Acquisitions 9.7 411 0.7 51kt 0.€ 2¢ 01 3¢ 1.2 6.8 3.2
Total $ 2413%$(11.D$5.18% 17 1.7% (0.8% 0.2% 12% 3.% (2.0% 23.2%

Organic net sales in 2012 into the Northehice wholesale market increased by $4.0 millior).6%, compared to 2011. Minimal
increases were noted in our four major productgmates ranging from 0.2% in water quality product2.0% in HVAC and gas products.
Organic sales into the North American DIY markeR012 increased $11.2 million, or 6.9%, compare®0bl, primarily due to increased
product sales of $8.5 million in residential andneoercial flow control products and $2.1 millionvirmter quality products.

Organic net sales in the EMEA wholesalekatwere essentially flat compared to 2011. Whdéesales increased $5.7 million due to
stronger plumbing and valves sales into the MiditHist and Eastern Europe, and increased drain@alepan European basis by $1.0 million.
However, those gains were offset by wholesale safsctions of $3.5 million in Italy and $2.1 milfi in France, both due to a poor overall
economy, and a reduction of pre-insulated pipe petedsales of $1.1 million. Organic sales into@EM market in 2012 decreased by
$6.2 million, or 2.2%, compared to 2011. The dexlvas primarily due to decreased sales in the Naedjion of $6.2 million from lower
demands by heating pump and electrical heating faaturers, lower sales in France and Italy of $8ifion and $1.4 million, respectively,
due to the economic slowdown, and a reduction mpoerinsulated piping lines of $2.3 million. Dews were offset by increased sales of
$8.4 million related to our drains product line.

The net decrease in sales due to foreighange was primarily due to the depreciation offbeo and the Canadian dollar against the
dollar. We cannot predict whether these currengitsappreciate or depreciate against the U.S.addil future periods or whether future
foreign exchange rate fluctuations will have a presior negative impact on our net sales.

Acquired net sales in EMEA and Asia relatethe Socla acquisition and in North America waue to tekmar.
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Gross Profit. Gross profit and gross profit as a percentadfsales (gross margin) for 2012 and 2011 werelbss:

Year Ended
December 31
2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Gross profit $ 517t % 512.¢
Gross margit 35.8% 35.%

Consolidated gross margin was fairly stabl2012 as compared to 2011, but varied by gedyrdp North America, gross margin
declined due to non-commodity cost increases akasehanufacturing inefficiencies driven by pregurotion costs and outsourcing costs
caused by certain U.S. plants transitioning to liead production. North America gross margin wae affected by product mix as DIY sales
grew faster than wholesale sales and there wesetsed price concessions to meet market competiblamth America gross margin increased
during the second half of 2012 as lead free relatsts abated. EMEA gross margin increased as aeahpa 2011, partially due to acquisition
accounting charges of $4.7 million made in 201&dnnection with the Socla acquisition and partidiye to better product mix and improved
pricing in 2012.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpenseSelling, general and administrative expenseS@8&A expenses, for 2012 increased
$7.2 million, or 1.9%, compared to 2011. The inseetn SG&A expenses was attributable to the follgwi

(in millions) % Change
Organic $ 14 0.4%
Foreign exchang (10.5) (2.8
Acquisitions 16.2 4.2
Total $ 7.2 1.€%

The net organic increase in SG&A expensas minimal from 2011 to 2012. Increases in protesdiservices of $6.4 million, insurance
costs of $4.4 million, variable selling and salelsted costs of $2.8 million were offset by lowergonnel related costs of $7.7 million, lower
depreciation and amortization of $2.9 million, an#i1.6 million reduction in other expenses. Prafess service costs increased due to highet
legal fees and legal settlement costs, and IT axndelated projects undertaken in 2012. Insuransesdncreased due to higher product liability
charges in North America. Personnel costs werecesiin 2012 primarily due to the separation cagtsiired in 2011 for the former Chief
Executive Officer and lower retirement costs in 204lated to the 2011 pension freeze, and depr@ciahd amortization costs were lower in
2012 principally due to the asset write-downs takeAustroflex in 2011.

The decrease in SG&A expenses from foreigrthange was primarily due to the depreciatiomefEuro against the U.S. dollar. Acquired
SG&A costs related to the Socla and tekmar acduist Total SG&A expense, as a percentage of sakes26.6% in 2012 and 26.4% in 2011

Restructuring and Other ChargesIn 2012, we recorded a net charge of $4.3 anilprimarily for severance and other costs incuagd
part of our previously announced restructuring paiots, as compared to $8.8 million for 2011. Foramendetailed description of our current
restructuring plans, see Notes 4 and 5 of Not&otwsolidated Financial Statements in this Annuadd®eon Form 10-K.

Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Asset ImpamnCharges. In 2012, we recorded asset impairment char§#8.d million, including
$1.7 million for impairment charges on long-livessats in North America that were ultimately soldiny 2012, a $1.0 million goodwill
impairment charge for BRAE, a $0.4 million impaimmeharge for a North America trade name and $0ll&mfor asset write-downs in
Europe. The goodwill impairment was based on hisabresults being below our expectations and actan in the expected future cash flows
to be generated by BRAE. See the analysis for ¢lae y
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ended December 31, 2011 compared to the year éhalgginber 31, 2010, for details of the 2011 goodavill other long-lived asset
impairment charges. See also Note 2 of Notes tes@mated Financial Statements in this Annual Repor-orm 10-K, for additional
information regarding these impairments.

(Gain On) Adjustment to Disposal of Businesin 2011, we booked a net gain of approxima#aly? million relating primarily to the
recognition of currency translation adjustmentsiitésy from the sale of TWVC. In 2012, we recordedadjustment of $1.6 million to decre
the gain.

Operating Income. Operating income by geographic segment for 20122011 was as follows:

% Change to

Year Ended Consolidated
December 31 December 31 Operating
2012 2011 Change Income
(Dollars in millions)

North America $ 96.5 $ 111€¢ $ (15.9) (12.9%
EMEA 52.€ 28.7 23.€ 20.4
Asia 6.5 12.2 (5.7 (4.9
Corporate (32.2) (35.9 3.€ 3.1
Total $ 1232 $ 116.7 $ 6.7 5.7%

The change in operating income was attaiblet to the following:

Change asa % o Change asa % o
Consolidated Operating Income Segment Operating Income
North North North
America EMEA Asia Corp. Total America EMEA Asia Corp. Total America EMEA Asia Corp.
(Dollars in millions)
Organic $ (149% 443$34% 3€$(B.0 (129% 3.8% 2% 3.1% (25% (12.9% 15.%% 27.% (10.1)%

Foreign

exchange 02 (44 01 — (45 (0.2) (3.8) 0.1 — (3.9 (0.2) (159 0.8 —
Acquisitions i 3t — — 5¢C 1% 3. — — 4.2 1% 122 — —
Restructuring

impairmen

charges ar

other (20 204 (929 — 9.2 .7 172 (7.9 — 7. .7 71.1 (75.9) —
Total $ (15.)$% 23.£$(5.7% 3.€$ 6.7 (12.9% 20.2% (4.9% 3.1% 5.7% (13.5% 83.2% (46.7)% (10.1)%

The decrease in consolidated organic ojpgraicome was due primarily to a reduction in gragargin in North America and a sales
volume decline in EMEA, for reasons previously disged. Their impact was offset partially by a reiducin acquisition costs in Europe
related to the 2011 Socla acquisition. Acquiredratieg income relates to the Socla and tekmar adpns.

The reduction in restructuring, impairmeharges and other from 2011 to 2012 is primarilyadr by reduced impairment, and
restructuring costs, offset by a reduced dispoail, @s previously discussed.

The net decrease in operating income framign exchange was primarily due to the depremati the Euro against the U.S. dollar. We
cannot predict whether the Euro will appreciatdepreciate against the U.S. dollar in future peviodwhether future foreign exchange rate
fluctuations will have a positive or negative impan our operating income.

Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased $1.2 million, d¥4iii 2012 compared to 2011, primarily due to aelase in the amour
outstanding under our revolving credit facility threas used to partially finance the Socla acquisith 2011. See Note 10 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annuadd®eon Form 10-K, for additional information redarg financing arrangements.

Other Expense (Income), NetOther expense (income), net decreased $1.®Bmiil 2012 compared to 2011, primarily due to a
reduction in foreign currency transaction losses$ afavorable customs settlement in Asia in 2012.
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Income Taxes. Our effective tax rate for continuing operaancreased to 29.6% in 2012 from 29.3% in 201 % pimary cause of the
lower rate in 2011 was the tax benefit realizeddnnection with the disposition of our TWVC fagjlin China. This was partly offset by the
release of a tax reserve in 2012 following to thmpletion of a European tax audit.

Net Income From Continuing OperationNet income from continuing operations for 2@zs $70.6 million, or $1.96 per common
share, compared to $64.4 million, or $1.72 per comsshare, for 2011. Results for 2012 include nietrdbx charges of $8.0 million, or $0.22
per common share; including restructuring and otie¢rcharges of $0.07, goodwill and other longdiasset impairments of $0.07, a charge tc
adjust the TWVC gain of $0.04, retention costsdor former Chief Financial Officer of $0.03, negj#d/customs settlement charges of $0.02,
and other net credits of $0.01, primarily related tfavorable tax adjustment due to a change i2 20ltalian tax rules.

Results for 2011 include net after-tax gearof $17.0 million or $0.46 per common shareuigiog goodwill and asset impairment
charges of $0.35, restructuring and other char@®df8, acquisition and due diligence costs of &0alcharge related to our former Chief
Executive Officer's separation agreement of $0aldension curtailment loss of $0.02, offset by ia ga the disposal of TWVC of $0.30 and
other net gains of $0.02 primarily related to eatrand legal adjustments.

The depreciation of the Euro and Canad@tadagainst the U.S. dollar in 2012 resulted imegative impact on our operations of $0.09
per common share compared to 2011. We cannot preblather the Euro, Canadian dollar or Chinese yulirappreciate or depreciate aga
the U.S. dollar in future periods or whether futtoeeign exchange rate fluctuations will have aifes or negative impact on our net income.

Income (Loss) From Discontinued Operationg.oss from discontinued operations in 2012 aR$8illion, or ($0.06) per common share,
was related primarily to the operations and dispoSklomatic. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolideéfathncial Statements.

Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Year Erdleckmber 31, 2010

Net Sales. Our business is reported in three geograplymsats: North America, EMEA and Asia. Our net satesach of these
segments for the years ended December 31, 20120drtdwere as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 201 December 31, 201 CChange to
onsolidated
Net Sales % Sales Net Sales % Sales Change Net Sales
(Dollars in millions)
North America $ 810« 56.€% $ 785.t 61.6%$ 254 2.%
EMEA 595.¢ 41.7 468.: 36.€ 127.2 9.¢
Asia 21 iLE 20.¢ 1.€ 0.6 0.1
Total $ 1,428.: 100.% $ 1,274.¢ 100.(% $ 153.t 12.(%
The change in net sales was attributabieedollowing:
Change As a % Change As a %
of Consolidated Net Sale of Segment Net Sale

North North North
America EMEA  Asia Total America EMEA  Asia Total America EMEA  Asia

(Dollars in millions)

Organic $ 222% B8€S$ (1.§$ 29.C 1.8% 0.6% (0.)% 2.2% 2.8% 1.5% (8.79)%
Foreign

exchange 3.1 24.( 0.¢ 28.C 0.2 1.¢ 0.1 2.2 0.4 5.1 4.3
Acquisitions 0.1 94.€ 1.8 96.£ — 74 0.1 743 — 20.2 8.7
Total $ 254 8% 1272 % 09 $ 153F 2.t% 9.% 0.1% 12.% 3.2% 27.2% 4.3%
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Organic net sales in 2011 into the Northeticen wholesale market increased by $26.6 milliwr.3%, compared to 2010. This increase
was primarily due to improved recovery of commoditsts across our four principal product lines Mattger increases in residential and
commercial flow control products sales of approxieha$16.0 million and in drains and water re-usedpicts of approximately $5.7 million.
Organic sales into the North American DIY markeR011 decreased $4.4 million, or 2.6%, compare2Di®, primarily due to decreased
product sales approximating $4.3 million, mostlyésidential and commercial flow control products.

Organic net sales increased in the Européeniesale market by $2.8 million, or 1.0%, complae2010. Wholesale sales increased
marginally due to stronger sales in drains andimpsatated pipe products along with increased satesEastern Europe and geographic
expansion into the Middle East. Increases weresbffartially by lower unit sales into southern Eagpespecially the Italian marketplace.
Organic sales into the European OEM market in 20¢feased by $9.2 million, or 4.9%, compared to®pdmarily due to increased sales in
hydronic under-floor manifold packages offset byéo sales in heat pump and solar packages, whitibéen driven by renewable energy
subsidies which either were reduced or had expired.

The net increase in sales due to foreigih@mnge was primarily due to the appreciation offheo and the Canadian dollar against the
U.S. dollar. We cannot predict whether these caissnwill appreciate or depreciate against the doBar in future periods or whether future
foreign exchange rate fluctuations will have a presior negative impact on our net sales.

Acquired net sales in Europe related toSbela and Austroflex acquisitions and in North Aitee were related to the Blue Ridge Atlantic
Enterprises, Inc. (BRAE) acquisition.

Gross Profit. Gross profit and gross profit as a percentatfsales (gross margin) for 2011 and 2010 werelbsfs:

Year Ended
December 31,

2011 2010
(Dollars in millions)

Gross profit $ 5128 $ 464.¢

Gross margit 35.% 36.5%

Gross margin decreased 0.6 percentagespai2011 compared to 2010 for a variety of reas@reswere unable to completely recover
commodity cost increases in Europe and in the Nantlerican DIY market. We incurred acquisition acating adjustments of $4.7 million in
connection with the Socla acquisition and experenoefficiencies in the first half of 2011 as éuwench plant consolidation project was being
completed. Productivity initiatives were also offsesome extent by higher inbound freight costs.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpenseSelling, general and administrative expenseS@8&A expenses, for 2011 increased
$40.9 million, or 12.1%, compared to 2010. The éase in SG&A expenses was attributable to theviatig:

(in millions) % Change
Organic $ 8.4 2.5%
Foreign exchang 6.5 1.€
Acquisitions 26.C 7.7
Total $ 40.¢ 12.1%

The organic increase in SG&A expenses wiasguily due to separation costs of our former CHrecutive Officer of $6.3 million, an
increase of approximately $4.4 million in variabkdling costs due to the increase in year-over-gakss, and an increase in IT costs of
approximately $3.0 million due
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primarily to the implementation of a new enterprissource planning system (ERP system) and ottending costs, offset by approximately
$7.0 million in lower legal costs. The increas&SB&A expenses from foreign exchange was primatily th the appreciation of the Euro
against the U.S. dollar. Acquired SG&A costs ralatethe Socla, Austroflex and BRAE acquisitionstal SG&A expenses, as a percentag
sales, remained constant at 26.4% in both 2012am@.

Restructuring and Other Chargesln 2011, we recorded a net charge of $8.8 emilprimarily for severance and other costs incua®d
part of our previously announced restructuring paots, as compared to $12.6 million for 2010. Forcae detailed description of our current
restructuring plans, see Notes 4 and 5 of Not€&otwsolidated Financial Statements in this Annugdd®eon Form 10-K.

Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Asset ImpannCharges. In 2011, we recorded asset impairment charfg@é a4 million, including
$14.8 million for impairment charges on long-livassets at Austroflex, $1.4 million in goodwill dlothg-lived intangible asset impairments at
BRAE and $1.2 million of impairment charges in e@itEuropean trade names. The long-lived assegaodwill impairments were based on
historical results being below our expectationgautain economic conditions in Europe related tatfaflex, and a reduction in the expected
future cash flows to be generated by these entitie®010, the impairment charges of $1.4 milliefate to write-downs of certain trade names
in Europe. See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidatedrigigh Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10eK additional information regarding

these impairments.

(Gain On) Adjustment to Disposal of Businesin 2011, we recorded a net gain of approxinye$@L7 million relating primarily to the
recognition of currency translation adjustmentsiitgsy from the sale of TWVC.

Operating Income. Operating income by geographic segment for 201dL.2010 was as follows:

% Change to

Year Ended Consolidated
December 31 December 31 Operating
2011 2010 Change Income
(Dollars in millions)
North America $ 111¢ $ 106« $ 5.2 4.6%
EMEA 28.7 437  (15.0 (13.2)
Asia 12.2 (0.5  12.7 11.1
Corporate (35.9 (35.9 (0.9 (0.9
Total $ 116.7 $ 1142 $ 2E 2.2%

The change in operating income was attaiblet to the following:

Change as a % o Change as a % o
Consolidated Operating Income Segment Operating Income
North North North
America EMEA Asia Corp. Total America EMEA  Asia Corp. Total America EMEA Asia  Corp.
(Dollars in millions)
Organic $ 1€$ (6.2% 4.4% (0.9%(0.9) 16% (B.4Y% 3.8% (0.9% (0.4% 1.7% (14.9% 880.(% (1.1)%

Foreign

exchange 0.7 2€ 0z — 3t 0.€ 2.2 0.z — 3.1 0.7 6.C 40.C —
Acquisitions 0.2 2¢ (02 — 24 (0.2 25 (0.2 — 21 (0.39) 6.€ (40.0) —
Restructuring

impairmen

charges ar

other 3. (149 83 — (3.0 26 (125 7.z — (2.9 2.8 (32,7 1,660. —
Total $ 5.2$ (15.0%$12.7$ (0.9% 2.5 46% (13.1)%11.1% (0.H% 2.2% 4.% (34.9%2,540.% (1.1)%

The decrease in consolidated organic ojpgraicome was due primarily to a reduction in grogargins and an increase in SG&A
expenses, for reasons discussed above. Acquirgdtopeincome relates to the Socla, Austroflex BRAE acquisitions.

The net increase in operating income fromeifin exchange was primarily due to the appremiatif the Euro and Canadian dollar against
the U.S. dollar. We cannot predict whether thesesogies
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will appreciate or depreciate against the U.S.adall future periods or whether future foreign exatpe rate fluctuations will have a positive or
negative impact on our operating income.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased $3.0 million, 02%3.in 2011 compared to 2010, primarily due toramease in the
amounts outstanding during the year on our revgleiredit facility that was used to partially fin@nhe Socla acquisition and interest incurred
for all 2011 from the June 2010 issuance of $75I0om of senior notes. See Note 10 of Notes to &midated Financial Statements in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, for additional inforrioat regarding financing arrangements.

Other Expense (Income), NetOther expense (income), net increased $2.9omiih 2011 compared to 2010, primarily becauseitpr
currency transactions resulted in net losses i 2@hile in 2010 net gains were recognized.

Income Taxes. Our effective rate for continuing operationsm@ased to 29.3% in 2011 from 33.2% in 2010. Thmamy cause of the
decrease was due to the tax benefit realized inexion with the disposition of our TWVC facility iChina.

Net Income From Continuing OperationNet income from continuing operations for 2@lds $64.4 million, or $1.72 per common
share, compared to $63.1 million, or $1.69 per comishare, for 2010.

Results for 2011 include net after-tax glearof $17.0 million or $0.46 per common shardpitiog goodwill and asset impairment
charges of $0.35, restructuring and other charg®df8, acquisition and due diligence costs of &0alcharge related to our former Chief
Executive Officer's separation agreement of $0aldension curtailment loss of $0.02, offset by ia ga the disposal of TWVC of $0.30 and
other net gains of $0.02 primarily related to eatramnd legal adjustments.

Results for 2010 include net after-tax gearof $10.3 million or $0.28 per common shareluigiag restructuring charges of $0.26, due
diligence costs of $0.11, and other charges ofSi@fiset by a tax adjustment of $0.07 and a protiailaility and workers compensation
accrual adjustment of $0.07.

The appreciation of the Euro and Canad@ladagainst the U.S. dollar in 2011 resulted {positive impact on our operations of $0.07
common share for 2011 compared to 2010.

Income (Loss) From Discontinued Operationgncome from discontinued operations in 2011 pamarily attributable to a reserve
adjustment of $1.7 million, or $0.05 per commonrgheelated to the FCPA investigation originallgaeded in 2010. The adjustment reflects
the final disposition of the FCPA investigationeS¢otes 3 and 14 of Notes to Consolidated Finaigtatements for additional discussion of
this matter.

Liquidity and Capital Resource
2012 Cash Flows

In 2012, we generated $131.9 million ofrclem operating activities as compared to $127ildam in 2011. We generated approximat
$104.8 million of free cash flow (a non-GAAP finaaaneasure, which we reconcile below, definedetscash provided by continuing
operating activities minus capital expendituresgmceeds from sale of assets), compared to &g ftow of $105.6 million in 2011. Free
cash flow as a percentage of net income from coimtgnoperations was 148.4% in 2012 as compare64d% in 2011.

In 2012, we used $42.7 million of net c&mhinvesting activities, including $17.5 milliooif the purchase of tekmar and $30.6 million of
cash for capital equipment, partially offset by preceeds from the sale of buildings and equipro&fi8.5 million. We anticipate investing
approximately $41.0 million in capital equipment2®13 to improve our manufacturing capabilities.
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In 2012, we used $80.7 million of net c&sim financing activities. Our most significant basutlays included $65.8 million for the
repurchase of two million shares of Class A commstmek and $16.0 million to fund dividend paymeifepayments of long-term debt related
to amounts borrowed under our credit agreemen®ir2 Zor operating purposes and repayments relat2611 borrowings for the purchase of
Socla.

On June 18, 2010, we entered into a cegiidement (the Credit Agreement) among the Compamtgin subsidiaries of the Company
who become borrowers under the Credit AgreementkB®& America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, swilige lender and letter of credit
issuer, and the other lenders referred to theféia.Credit Agreement provides for a $300 milliamefyear, senior unsecured revolving credit
facility which may be increased by an additiongb@illion under certain circumstances and sulietihe terms of the Credit Agreement. -
Credit Agreement has a sublimit of up to $75 millia letters of credit.

Borrowings outstanding under the Creditéament bear interest at a fluctuating rate permnegual to (i) in the case of Eurocurrency
rate loans, the British Bankers Association LIB@ierplus an applicable percentage, ranging fro%.# 2.30%, determined by reference tc
our consolidated leverage ratio plus, in the cdseidain lenders, a mandatory cost calculatedgoriance with the terms of the Credit
Agreement, or (ii) in the case of base rate loantssaving line loans, the highest of (a) the fed&ratls rate plus 0.5%, (b) the rate of interest i
effect for such day as announced by Bank of AmeNCA. as its "prime rate,"” and (c) the British Bans Association LIBOR rate plus 1.0%,
plus an applicable percentage, ranging from 0.7®%30%, determined by reference to our consolitltecrage ratio. In addition to paying
interest under the Credit Agreement, we are algoired to pay certain fees in connection with theglit facility, including, but not limited to, a
facility fee and letter of credit fees.

The Credit Agreement matures on June 18520/e may repay loans outstanding under the Chgpidement from time to time without
premium or penalty, other than customary breakagéscif any, and subject to the terms of the Grdgreement.

As of December 31, 2012, we held $271.8anilin cash and cash equivalents. Our abilityuladf operations from cash and cash
equivalents could be limited by market liquidityvasll as possible tax implications of moving progg@cross jurisdictions. Of this amount,
approximately $131.8 million of cash and cash eglents were held by foreign subsidiaries. Our Wgrations currently generate sufficient
cash flows to meet our domestic obligations. We hksve the ability to borrow funds at reasonablerest rates, utilize the committed funds
under our Credit Agreement or recall intercompa@ank. However, if amounts held by foreign subsiéswere needed to fund operations in
the United States, we could be required to accndepay taxes to repatriate these funds. Such changg include a federal tax of up to 35.0%
on dividends received in the U.S., potential stateme taxes and an additional withholding tax fe#o foreign jurisdictions of up to 10.0%.
However, our intent is to permanently reinvest stributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries and waak have any current plans to repatriate
them to fund operations in the United States.

Covenant compliance

Under the Credit Agreement, we are requiioeshtisfy and maintain specified financial ratéosl other financial condition tests. The
financial ratios include a consolidated interestezage ratio based on consolidated earnings bafoome taxes, interest expense, depreciatio
and amortization (Consolidated EBITDA) to consai@thinterest expense, as defined in the Credité&gsnt. Our Credit Agreement defines
Consolidated EBITDA to exclude unusual or non-reagrcharges and gains. We are also required tatainia consolidated leverage ratio of
consolidated funded debt to Consolidated EBITDAn&idated funded debt, as defined in the Crediedment, includes all long and short-
term debt, capital lease obligations and any tleters of credit that are outstanding. Finally, ave required to maintain a consolidated net
worth that exceeds a minimum net worth calculat@onsolidated net worth is defined as the totatldtolders' equity as reported adjusted for
any cumulative translation adjustments and goodmiiairments.
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As of December 31, 2012, our actual finahetios calculated in accordance with our Créditeement compared to the required levels
under the Credit Agreement were as follows:

Actual Ratio Required Level
Minimum level
Interest Charge Coverage Re 7.24 10 1.0C 3.50 to 1.0C

Maximum leve
Leverage Ratit 0.96 to 1.0C 3.2510 1.0C

Minimum level
Consolidated Net Wort $946.6 millior $783.2 million

As of December 31, 2012, our actual fixedrge coverage ratio calculated in accordance auitlsenior note agreements compared to th
required ratio therein was as follows:

Actual Ratio Required Level
Minimum level
Fixed Charge Coverage Ra 5.37t0 1.0(  2.00to 1.0(

In addition to the above financial ratitd® Credit Agreement and senior note agreementsicoaffirmative and negative covenants that
include limitations on disposition or sale of asserohibitions on assuming or incurring any liensassets with limited exceptions and
limitations on making investments other than thesenitted by the agreements.

We have several note agreements as fullftailed in Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated FimgrStatements. These note agreements
require us to maintain a fixed charge coverage i@&tconsolidated EBITDA plus consolidated rentenge during the period to consolidated
fixed charges. Consolidated fixed charges areuhea consolidated interest expense for the peaiaticonsolidated rent expense.

As of December 31, 2012, we were in conmgkawith all covenants related to the Credit Agreetrand had $265.4 million of unused anc
available credit under the Credit Agreement and&8&4illion of stand-by letters of credit outstarglion the Credit Agreement. There were no
borrowings outstanding under the Credit Agreeméitewember 31, 2012. In January 2013, a stand#®yr lef credit was reduced by
$5 million.

We generated $1.4 million of net cash frguerating activities of discontinued operation2@12 related primarily to a legal settlement
regarding the disposal of a former Chinese subisidi#@e generated $8.1 million of net cash from stireg activities of discontinued operatic
resulting primarily from proceeds received upondisposal of Flomatic in December 2012.

Working capital (defined as current asets current liabilities) as of December 31, 20E2 %448.0 million compared to $528.9 million
as of December 31, 2011. The decrease was printhréyto a $75 million private placement note pagalle in May 2013 being classified as ¢
current liability at December 31, 2012. The rati@orrent assets to current liabilities was 2.2 tas of December 31, 2012 compared to 2.¢
as of December 31, 2011, reduced by the note payablassification. We expect to repay the priyddeement note with either cash on hand
or borrow from our credit facility, or a combinatiof both.

2011 Cash Flows

In 2011, we generated $127.4 million ofrclem operating activities as compared to $113l4am in 2010. We generated approximat
$105.6 million of free cash flow (a non-GAAP finaalaneasure, which we reconcile below, definedetscash provided by continuing
operating
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activities minus capital expenditures plus procdent® sale of assets), compared to free cash fio@d.0 million in 2010. Free cash flow as a
percentage of net income from continuing operativas 164.0% in 2011 as compared to 144.2% in 2010.

In 2011, we used $188.2 million of net casim investing activities primarily for the purceof Socla and for capital equipment.

In 2011, we used $23.9 million of net cérsim financing activities. Borrowings and repayngeptimarily related to funds borrowed uni
our credit agreement for the purchase of Soclatlagal partially repaid. Other cash outflows inclug2d.2 million used to repurchase one
million shares of Class A common stock during 2@hd for $16.3 million of dividend payments.

2010 Cash Flows

In 2010, we generated $113.4 million ofrckiem operating activities. We generated approitya$91.0 million of free cash flow. Free
cash flow as a percentage of net income from coimgnoperations was 144.2% in 2010.

In 2010, we used $57.2 million of net c&sim investing activities primarily for the purcleasf Austroflex and for capital equipment. We
elected to participate in a settlement offer froBSJ)AG (UBS) for all of our outstanding auctioneaecurities (ARS) investments. Under the
terms of the settlement offer, we were issued sithyt UBS entitling the holder to require UBS toghase the underlying ARS at par value
during the period from June 30, 2010, through 24I8012. We elected to exercise this right in 2840 received $6.5 million from UBS in
settlement of all outstanding ARS investments.ddion, during 2010, we invested in nine-monthtifieates of deposits totaling
approximately $4.0 million.

In 2010, we generated $6.9 million of reste from financing activities primarily from issgi$75.0 million, 10-year private placement
notes in June (the Notes), partially offset byrgayment of $50.0 million in private placementasoand $16.4 million of dividend payments.

The Notes were issued pursuant to a Notehase Agreement (the 2010 Note Purchase Agreenv@atyvill pay interest on the
outstanding balance of the Notes at the rate &%.per annum, payable semi-annually on June 1®aedmber 18 until the principal on the
Notes shall become due and payable. We may, aipiion, upon notice, subject to the terms of the®Rote Purchase Agreement, prepa
any time all or part of the Notes in an amountlas$ than $1 million by paying the principal amophis a make-whole amount (as defined in
the 2010 Note Purchase Agreement).

The 2010 Note Purchase Agreement inclugesational and financial covenants, with which we rquired to comply, including, among
others, maintenance of certain financial ratios @strictions on additional indebtedness, liensa@isgdositions. Events of defaults under the
2010 Note Purchase Agreement include failure topgmwith the financial and operational covenantsswell as bankruptcy and other
insolvency events. If an event of default occurd @rcontinuing, then a majority of the note hotdkeave the right to accelerate and require us
to repay all the outstanding notes under the 204i@ Rurchase Agreement. In limited circumstanags) acceleration is automatic.

Nor-GAAP Financial Measures

We believe free cash flow to be an appaiprsupplemental measure of our operating perfacmbacause it provides investors with a
measure of our ability to generate cash, to regdyy dnd to fund acquisitions. Other companies n&diyd free cash flow differently. Free cash
flow does not represent cash generated from operattivities in accordance with GAAP. Thereforstibuld not be considered an alternative
to net cash provided by operations as an indicatfaur performance. Free cash flow should alsdoeatonsidered an alternative to net cash
provided by operations as defined by GAAP. The castversion rate of free cash flow to net inconeenficontinuing operations is also a
measure of our performance in cash flow generation.
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A reconciliation of net cash provided bytiouing operations to free cash flow and calcalatf our cash conversion rate is provided
below:

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)

Net cash provided by continuing operatis $ 131.¢ $ 127« $ 113.
Less: additions to property, plant, and equipn (30.6) (22.€) (24.¢)
Plus: proceeds from the sale of property, plard,

equipmen S 0.8 2.2
Free cash flov $ 104.¢ $ 105.¢ $ 91c
Net income from continuing operatic—as

reportec $ 706 $ 644 $ 63.1
Cash conversion rate of free cash flow to net

income from continuing operatiol 148.4% 164.% 144.2%

Our net debt to capitalization ratio, a #®AAP financial measure used by management, demieasl0.7% for 2012 from 13.9% for
2011. The decrease in the ratio resulted from bagiy generated through operations during 2012chwherves to reduce net debt.
Management believes this to be an appropriate soppital measure because it helps investors unddrsta ability to meet our financing
needs and as a basis to evaluate our financialtgtey Our computation may not be comparable teratbmpanies that may define net debt to
capitalization differently.

A reconciliation of long-term debt (inclugj current portion) to net debt and our net deloiajuitalization ratio is provided below:

December 31

2012 2011

(in millions)
Current portion of lon-term debi $ 771 $ 2.C
Plus: lon¢-term debt, net of current portic 307.t 397.¢
Less: cash and cash equivale (271.9) (250.€)
Net debi $ 1126 $ 148

A reconciliation of capitalization is prold below:

December 31

2012 2011

(in millions)
Net debi $ 112.¢ $ 148
Total stockholders' equit 939.t 919.¢
Capitalizatior $ 1,052 $ 1,068.¢
Net debt to capitalization rat 10.7% 13.€%
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Contractual Obligations
Our contractual obligations as of Decen8#r2012 are presented in the following table:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1- 3 years 4 -5 years 5 years
(in millions)
Long-term debt obligations, includiny
current maturities(g $ 3846 $ 771 9 44 $ 2281 $ 75.C
Operating lease obligatiol 27.¢ 9.5 12.¢ 3.2 2.3
Capital lease obligations( 9.8 1.2 2.3 2.t 3.8
Pension contribution 16.5 1.3 2.8 2.6 9.5
Interest 81.c 20.2 35.C 14.¢ 11.€
Earnout payments( 5.2 1.3 3.7 0.2 —
Other(b) 39.t 36.€ 14 0.¢ 0.3
Total $ 564.€ $ 147t $ 622 $ 252« $ 102t

(@) as recognized in the consolidated balance sheet

(b) includes commaodity and capital commitments, CEQagatjon costs and other benefits at December 312

We maintain letters of credit that guararger performance or payment to third parties toetance with specified terms and conditions.
Amounts outstanding were approximately $34.8 millis of December 31, 2012 and $34.9 million asaxfdinber 31, 2011, respectively. Our
letters of credit are primarily associated withuresice coverage and, to a lesser extent, foreigthpses and generally expire within one year
of issuance. These instruments may exist or exyitteout being drawn down; therefore they do notessarily represent future cash flow
obligations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Except for operating lease commitmentshasxe no off-balance sheet arrangements that haaegeasonably likely to have a current or
future effect on our financial condition, changedinancial condition, revenues or expenses, regfloperations, liquidity, capital expenditu
or capital resources that is material to investors.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies and Key Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated finahstatements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requirasagement to make judgments,
assumptions and estimates that affect the amoeptsted. A critical accounting estimate is an agstion about highly uncertain matters and
could have a material effect on the consolidatedricial statements if another, also reasonableyatweere used, or, a change in the estimate
is reasonably likely from period to period. We base assumptions on historical experience and berastimates that we believe are
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual resoltiel differ significantly from these estimates.eféwere no changes in our accounting
policies or significant changes in our accountiggineates during 2012. In 2011, we changed the aratidn period of pension gains and los
as discussed below under the caption "Pension ighef

We periodically discuss the developmergd®mn and disclosure of the estimates with oudifCommittee. Management believes the
following critical accounting policies reflect itsore significant estimates and assumptions.
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Revenue recognitic

We recognize revenue when all of the foltaywcriteria are met: (1) we have entered intoralinig agreement, (2) the product has shippe
and title has passed, (3) the sales price to thmer is fixed or is determinable and (4) collbiiy is reasonably assured. We recognize
revenue based upon a determination that all ciferirevenue recognition have been met, whichedas the majority of our shipping terms,
is considered to have occurred upon shipment dfitighed product. Some shipping terms requiregieds to be received by the customer
before title passes. In those instances, revemaasod recognized until the customer has receiiedybods. We record estimated reductions tc
revenue for customer returns and allowances andufstomer programs. Provisions for returns andwalfeces are made at the time of sale,
derived from historical trends and form a portidrih@ allowance for doubtful accounts. Customegpams, which are primarily annual
volume incentive plans, allow customers to earuitfer attaining agreed upon purchase targets fusmNe record estimated reductions to
revenue, made at the time of sale, for customegrpros based on estimated purchase targets.

Allowance for doubtful accoun

The allowance for doubtful accounts is lelithed to represent our best estimate of theaaizable value of the outstanding accounts
receivable. The development of our allowance fartdful accounts varies by region but in generélased on a review of past due amounts,
historical write-off experience, as well as agirentls affecting specific accounts and general dpeal factors affecting all accounts. In
addition, factors are developed in certain regisiizing historical trends of sales and returnd ailowances and cash discount activities to
derive a reserve for returns and allowances aru diagsounts.

We uniformly consider current economic tterand changes in customer payment terms whenagivejuhe adequacy of the allowance
doubtful accounts. We also aggressively monitorctieelitworthiness of our largest customers, anégdaally review customer credit limits to
reduce risk. If circumstances relating to spedifistomers change or unanticipated changes octhie igeneral business environment, our
estimates of the recoverability of receivables ddig further adjusted.

Inventory valuatior

Inventories are stated at the lower of cosharket with costs determined primarily on atfin first-out basis. We utilize both specific
product identification and historical product demas the basis for determining our excess or otesoleentory reserve. We identify all
inventories that exceed a range of one to foursyasales. This is determined by comparing theectiinventory balance against unit sales fo
the trailing twelve months. New products addechientory within the past twelve months are exclufiledh this analysis. A portion of our
products contain recoverable materials, therefoeeekcess and obsolete reserve is established aey oecoverable amounts. Changes in
market conditions, lower-than-expected customeratehor changes in technology or features couldtregsadditional obsolete inventory that
is not saleable and could require additional inegnteserve provisions.

In certain countries, additional inventoegerves are maintained for potential shrinkage®gepced in the manufacturing process. The
reserve is established based on the prior yeaesiary losses adjusted for any change in the dnvesntory balance.

Goodwill and other intangibles

We have made numerous acquisitions oveyehes which included the recognition of a sig@ifitamount of goodwill. Goodwiill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if areav or circumstance indicates that an impairmesg toay have been incurred. Applicatiol
the goodwill impairment test requires judgmentjuding the identification of reporting units, assigent of assets and liabilities to reporting
units, and determination of the fair value of eegyborting unit. We
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estimate the fair value of our reporting units gsém income approach based on the present vaksiofated future cash flows. We believe
approach yields the most appropriate evidenceio¥&ue as our reporting units are not easily cared to other corporations involved in
similar businesses.

Revised accounting guidance issued in $amte 2011 allows us to review goodwill for impaimmatilizing either qualitative or
guantitative analyses. We have the option to éisstess qualitative factors to determine whetheexistence of events or circumstances lea
a determination that it is more likely than nottttree fair value of a reporting unit is less thendarrying amount. If, after assessing the tgtalit
of events and circumstances, we determine it isrtibely than not that the fair value of a repagtiumit is greater than its carrying amount, 1
performing the two-step (quantitative) impairmesgttis unnecessary.

We first identify those reporting units thige believe could pass a qualitative assessmatgteymine whether further impairment testin
necessary. For each reporting unit identified,qualitative analysis includes:

1) A review of the most recent fair value calciglatto identify the extent of the cushion betweain ¥alue and carrying amount, to
determine if a substantial cushion existed.

2) A review of events and circumstances that haveroedisince the most recent fair value calculatmddtermine if those events
or circumstances would have affected our previairsvilue assessment. Items identified and reviemeldde macroeconomic
conditions, industry and market changes, cost fadtanges, events that affect the reporting uiminfcial performance against
expectations and the reporting unit's performaetative to peers.

We then compile this information and make assessment of whether it is more likely thanthat the fair value of the reporting unit is
less than its carrying amount. If we determine i@t more likely than not, then no further quantitie analysis is required. We determined we
have eight reporting units in continuing operatjamse of which, Water Quality, has no goodwill.2012, we performed a qualitative analysis
for the Drains and Water Re-use (formerly Oriondyidont and Asia reporting units. As it was detemudirthe fair value was substantially in
excess of the carrying value.

The second analysis for goodwill impairmienblves a quantitative two-step process. In 201 performed a quantitative impairment
analysis for Residential and Commercial, EMEA, Biéicand BRAE, including an impairment analysis dgithe second quarter for the EM
reporting unit due to results below expectatior® first step of the impairment test requires aganson of the fair value of each of our
reporting units to the respective carrying valti¢hé carrying value of a reporting unit is lesarthts fair value, no indication of impairment
exists and a second step is not performed. If éngyimg amount of a reporting unit is higher thenfair value, there is an indication that
impairment may exist and a second step must benpeefl. In the second step, the impairment is coetphy comparing the implied fair value
of the reporting unit's goodwill with the carryiaghount of the goodwill. If the carrying amount bétreporting unit's goodwill is greater than
the implied fair value of its goodwill, an impairmdoss must be recognized for the excess and etldogoperations.

Inherent in our development of the presaiite of future cash flow projections are assunmgtiand estimates derived from a review ol
operating results, business plans, expected gnatis, cost of capital and tax rates. We also makain assumptions about future economic
conditions and other market data. We develop asuraptions based on our historical results includialgs growth, operating profits, working
capital levels and tax rates.

We believe that the discounted cash flovdehds sensitive to the selected discount rateugéethird-party valuation specialists to help
develop appropriate discount rates for each repprtnit. We use standard valuation practices ioeat a weighted average cost of capital
based on the market and guideline public compaiies.higher the discount rate, the lower the diated cash flows. While we believe that
our estimates of future cash flows are reasondifferent assumptions could significantly affect @aluations and result in impairments in the
future.
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During the third quarter of 2012 and therth quarter of 2011, we recognized a pre-tax restgoodwill impairment charge of
$1.0 million and $1.2 million, respectively, reldtt® our BRAE reporting unit within our North Ameai segment. The charges were taken as
result of reduced expectations regarding the remptinit.

As of our October 28, 2012 testing date hae approximately $503.9 million of goodwill onrdaalance sheet. Our impairment testing
indicated that the fair values of the reportingtsieixceeded the carrying values, thereby resuimgp impairment. The results of this
impairment analysis are summarized in the tablevizel

Estimated fair value

Book value of equity of (implied value of
Goodwill balance at reporting unit at equity) at
October 28, 2012 October 28, 2012 October 28, 2012
(in millions)
Reporting unit
Europe € 162.¢ € 3232 € 463.1
Blicher € 57.t € 85.c € 133.(
Residential &
Commercia $ 128.¢ $ 446.¢ $ 850.(

The underlying analyses supporting ourvalue assessment are related to our outlook diul@ess' long-term performance, which
included key assumptions as to the appropriatedigaate and long-term growth rate. In connecitigth our October 28, 2012 impairment
test, we utilized discount rates ranging from 1@%@.5%, growth rates beyond our planning periadging from 4% to 7% and long-term
terminal growth rates from 3% to 4%. Future incesais discount rates due to changing interest mtasdeclining economic environment
could impact our assumptions and the value of eponting units.

Intangible assets such as trademarks adéd mames are generally recorded in connectionanlitinsiness acquisition. Values assigned to
intangible assets are determined by an indepenadurtion firm based on our estimates and judgmesgiarding expectations of the success
and life cycle of products and technology acquitgdring 2012, 2011 and 2010, we recognized non-pasttax charges of approximately
$0.4 million, $1.4 million and $1.4 million, resgaely, as an impairment of certain of our indetinlived intangible assets. In addition, during
2011, we recognized non-cash pretax charges ob$adion as an impairment of certain amortizalsitangible assets in our EMEA segment.
The Company determined that the prospects for Afiek, part of our EMEA segment, were lower thaigiorlly estimated due to current
operating profits below forecast and tempered &ugrowth expectations. Accordingly, the Companyqeared a fair value assessment and, a:
a result, wrote down the long-lived assets by $idilBon, or approximately 78%, including customrefationships of $12.1 million, trade
names of $1.4 million, and property, plant and pment of $1.3 million. Fair value was based ondisited cash flows using market
participant assumptions and utilized an estimatejiied average cost of capital.

Revised accounting guidance issued in 20ib#s us to perform a qualitative impairment ass@nt of indefinite-lived intangible assets
consistent with the goodwill guidance noted preslguFor our 2012 impairment assessment, we peddrguantitative assessments for all
indefinite-lived intangible assets. The methodolagyemployed was the relief from royalty methoduhset of the income approach. That
impairment review occurred as of October 28, 2012.

Product liability and workers' compensation cc

Because of retention requirements assatiai our insurance policies, we are generallj-selured for potential product liability claims
and for workers' compensation costs associatedwatikplace accidents. We are subject to a variepotential liabilities in connection with
product liability cases and we maintain produdiilisy and other insurance coverage, which we lveli® be generally in accordance with
industry practices. For product liability caseshia U.S., management
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establishes its product liability accrual by ufilig third-party actuarial valuations which incorptas historical trend factors and our specific
claims experience derived from loss reports pravio third-party administrators. In other countri@e maintain insurance coverage with
relatively high deductible payments, as produdiility claims tend to be smaller than those exparéal in the U.S. Changes in the nature of
claims or the actual settlement amounts could affecadequacy of this estimate and require chatuge provisions. Because the liability is
an estimate, the ultimate liability may be mordemss than reported.

Workers' compensation liabilities in theSUare recognized for claims incurred (includingjrals incurred but not reported) and for
changes in the status of individual case reseAMethe time a workers' compensation claim is filadiability is estimated to settle the claim.
The liability for workers' compensation claims etekrmined based on management's estimates oftilme r@ad severity of the claims and be
on analysis provided by third-party administratansl by various state statutes and reserve requitsm&’e have developed our own trend
factors based on our specific claims experienaeadinted based on risk-free interest rates. Weantpird-party actuarial valuations to help
us estimate our workers' compensation accrualthera@ountries where workers' compensation costgpplicable, we maintain insurance
coverage with limited deductible payments. Becdhediability is an estimate, the ultimate liabjilinay be more or less than reported and is
subject to changes in discount rates.

We determine the trend factors for prodiatdility and workers' compensation liabilities lkdson consultation with outside actuaries.

We maintain excess liability insurance witltside insurance carriers to minimize our riskated to catastrophic claims in excess of all
self-insured positions. Any material change inaferementioned factors could have an adverse ingraour operating results.

Legal contingencie

We are a defendant in numerous legal nsittefuding those involving environmental law anmdquct liability as discussed in more detail
in Part I, Item 1. "Business—Product Liability, Eronmental and Other Litigation Matters." As reqaby GAAP, we determine whether an
estimated loss from a loss contingency should beuad by assessing whether a loss is deemed peohatiithe loss amount can be reasonabl
estimated, net of any applicable insurance procé®tien it is possible to estimate reasonably ptessilss or range of loss above the amount
accrued, that estimate is aggregated and discl&stidnates of potential outcomes of these contioigsrare developed in consultation with
outside counsel. While this assessment is based alpavailable information, litigation is inheréntincertain and the actual liability to fully
resolve litigation cannot be predicted with anyuagace of accuracy. In the event of an unfavorabteome in one or more legal matters, the
ultimate liability may be in excess of amounts euntly accrued, if any, and may be material to querating results or cash flows for a
particular quarterly or annual period. However,dahsn information currently known to us, managenietieves that the ultimate outcome of
all legal contingencies, as they are resolved tiwes, is not likely to have a material effect orr financial position, results of operations, cash
flows or liquidity.

Pension benefit

We account for our pension plans in acaoecdavith GAAP, which involves recording a liability asset based on the projected benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. Agstions are made regarding the valuation of beoéligations and the performance of plan
assets. The primary assumptions are as follows:

. Weighted average discount rate—this rate is usedtimate the current value of future benefitssThte is adjusted based on
movement in long-term interest rates.
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. Expected long-term rate of return on assets—thésisaused to estimate future growth in investmantsinvestment earnings.
The expected return is based upon a combinatitistdrical market performance and anticipated fiteturns for a portfolio
reflecting the mix of equity, debt and other inveshts indicative of our plan assets.

We determine these assumptions based cuitation with outside actuaries and investmentsams. Any variance in these assumptions
could have a significant impact on future recogdipension costs, assets and liabilities.

On October 31, 2011, our Board of Directarged to cease accruals effective December 311 g@dler both the Pension Plan and
Supplemental Employees Retirement Plan. We recadrdtailment charge of approximately $1.5 milliorthe fourth quarter of 2011 in
connection with this action. Effective NovembeP011, we began amortizing the unamortized gainda@ssis over the remaining life
expectancy of the participants instead of our forpwdicy of average remaining service period.

Income taxe

We estimate and use our expected annuedtefé income tax rates to accrue income taxegchfe tax rates are determined based on
budgeted earnings before taxes, including our &&fhate of permanent items that will affect theafve rate for the year. Management
periodically reviews these rates with outside tdxisors and changes are made if material variainogsexpectations are identified.

We recognize deferred taxes for the expkfttire consequences of events that have beeattedl in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilitieslarermined based on differences between the baloles and tax bases of particular assets ar
liabilities, using tax rates in effect for the ygam which the differences are expected to reve&saluation allowance is provided to offset any
net deferred tax assets if, based upon the avaiwhtlence, it is more likely than not that somalbof the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. We consider estimated future taxablerireand ongoing prudent tax planning strategiessessing the need for a valuation
allowance.

New Accounting Standard

In July 2012, the FASB issued an amendreetite requirements for indefinite-lived intangilalgset impairment testing. We have the
option to first assess qualitative factors to datee whether the existence of events or circumsiaigads to a determination that it is more
likely than not that the fair value of an indefatiived intangible asset is less than its carrngnmgunt. If, after assessing the totality of evemts
circumstances, we determine it is more likely thahthat the fair value of an indefinite-lived ingable asset is greater than its carrying
amount, then performing the impairment test is gessary. We adopted this new standard effectie auit annual impairment testing date of
October 28, for the year ending December 31, 20h2.adoption of this accounting pronouncement dichave a material impact on our
financial statements.

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

We use derivative financial instrumentsnaiily to reduce exposure to adverse fluctuatiorfelieign exchange rates, interest rates and
costs of certain raw materials used in the manufang process. We do not enter into derivativeriizial instruments for trading purposes. As ¢
matter of policy, all derivative positions are usededuce risk by hedging underlying economic expe. The derivatives we use are
instruments with liquid markets. See Note 15 ofdddb the Consolidated Financial Statements irAomual Report on Form 1B-for the yeal
ended December 31, 2012.

Our consolidated earnings, which are reggbitt United States dollars, are subject to trdioslaisks due to changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. This risk is concentrated in tiobanxge rate between the U.S. dollar and the EleoJtS. dollar and the Canadian dollar; and
the U.S. dollar and the Chinese yuan.
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Our foreign subsidiaries transact mostfess, including certain intercompany transactionfreign currencies. Such transactions are
principally purchases or sales of materials anddare@minated in European currencies or the U.Samadian dollar. We use foreign currency
forward exchange contracts to manage the riskaglat intercompany purchases that occur duringadliese of a year and certain open foreigr
currency denominated commitments to sell producthitd parties. For 2012, we recorded a $0.1 anilloss in other income associated with
the change in the fair value of such contracts.

We have historically had a low exposurégtancost of our debt to changes in interest rédésrmation about our long-term debt including
principal amounts and related interest rates agpaadote 10 of Notes to the Consolidated Finarstatements in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

We purchase significant amounts of bromgei, brass rod, cast iron, steel and plastic, whie utilized in manufacturing our many
product lines. Our operating results can be adiyeeséected by changes in commodity prices if we anable to pass on related price increase
to our customers. We manage this risk by monitoréigted market prices, working with our suppliersichieve the maximum level of stabi
in their costs and related pricing, seeking alteveasupply sources when necessary and passinggises in commodity costs to our customers
to the maximum extent possible, when they occur.

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

The financial statements listed in secf@mn(1) of "Part IV, ltem 15. Exhibits and Finarlcéatement Schedules" of this annual report are
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under theuides Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or Exgldct, as of the end of the period
covered by this report, we carried out an evalwmatioder the supervision and with the participatbour management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, tieteffectiveness of our disclosure controls andguiares. In designing and evaluating our
disclosure controls and procedures, we recognieatiny controls and procedures, no matter how desligned and operated, can provide only
reasonable assurance of achieving the desiredotatfectives, and our management necessarily epjts judgment in evaluating and
implementing possible controls and procedures. éffextiveness of our disclosure controls and praceslis also necessarily limited by the
staff and other resources available to us andeogrgphic diversity of our operations. Based upan ¢valuation, the Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, ashef €nd of the period covered by this report, osicldsure controls and procedures were
effective, in that they provide reasonable asswdhat information required to be disclosed byruthe reports we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegadted within the time periods specified in 8exurities and Exchange Commission's
rules and forms and are designed to ensure tt@aniattion required to be disclosed by us in the nspbat we file or submit under the
Exchange Act are accumulated and communicatedrttmanagement, including our Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure.

There was no change in our internal cordvelr financial reporting that occurred during tharter ended December 31, 2012, that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, our internal control over financi@porting. In connection with these rules, we
will continue to review and document our discloscoatrols and procedures, including our internaitaa over financial reporting, and may
from time to time make changes aimed at enhantieig éffectiveness and to ensure that our systemisewith our business.
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Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsibledtablishing and maintaining adequate internatrobover financial reporting as defined
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securkieshange Act of 1934. The Company's internal cémiver financial reporting are designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding théilélieof financial reporting and the preparatiohfimancial statements for external purpose
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptesz The Company's internal control over finahmorting includes those policies and
procedures that:

() pertain to the maintenance of records that, inaralsle detail, accurately and fairly reflect thengactions and dispositions of
assets of the Company;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofiiahstatements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes; and that receipts and expenditures of theg2my are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of manageraed directors of the Company; and

(i)  provide reasonable assurance regarding prigwe or timely detection of unauthorized acqusitiuse or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material affetite financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Management, including our Chief Executiviic@r and Chief Financial Officer, assessed tHeaiveness of the Company's internal
control over financial reporting as of December&112. In making this assessment, management heediteria set forth by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis€@SO) in Internal Control—Integrated Framework.

Based on our assessment and those criteaidagement believes that the Company maintairiedtie® internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2012.

The independent registered public accogrfirm that audited the Company's consolidatedrai@ statements included elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K has issued an auditrtepothe Company's internal control over finanecgdorting. That report appears
immediately following this report.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Watts Water Technologies, Inc.:

We have audited Watts Water Technologi®s,d internal control over financial reportinga$ecember 31, 2012, based on criteria
established imnternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission
(COSO0). Watts Water Technologies, Inc.'s manageisessponsible for maintaining effective internahtrol over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internaraebaver financial reporting, included in the aogeanyingManagement's Annual Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reportin. Our responsibility is to express an opinion aa @ompany's internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet andbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is:. audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operaffiectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included perfaggreiuch other procedures as we considered necesghgy/circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A company's internal control over finangigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repagtincludes those policies and procedures thatdftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witibaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely detecfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could havaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Watts Water Technologies;.Imaintained, in all material respects, effectnternal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2012, based on criteria establishbdemal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatd8oard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Watts Water Techmsplnc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 20822011, and the related consolidatec
statements of operations, comprehensive incomeklstdders' equity, and cash flows for each of tharg in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2012, and our report dated Februgr@I3 expressed an unqualified opinion on thossa@daated financial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 27, 2013
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Item 9B.

None.

OTHER INFORMATION.
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PART Il

ltem 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNRCE.

Information with respect to the executificers of the Company is set forth in Part I, It&oof this Report under the caption "Executive
Officers and Directors" and is incorporated hetsineference. The information provided under thatioas "Information as to Nominees for
Director," "Corporate Governance," and "Sectiora)@eneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" im definitive Proxy Statement for our
2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held aayM5, 2013 is incorporated herein by reference.

We have adopted a Code of Business Coragapticable to all officers, employees and Board tners. The Code of Business Conduct is
posted in the Investor Relations section of oursitebyww.wattswater.comWe will provide you with a print copy of our CodéBusiness
Conduct free of charge on written request to KemifetLepage, Secretary, Watts Water Technolognes, 815 Chestnut Street, North
Andover, MA 01845. Any amendments to, or waiverstioé Code of Business Conduct which apply to diefeexecutive officer, chief
financial officer, corporate controller or any pamsperforming similar functions will be disclosed our website promptly following the date of
such amendment or waiver.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information provided under the captitidBector Compensation,” "Corporate Governanc€drhpensation Discussion and Analys
"Executive Compensation,” "Compensation Committgerlocks and Insider Participation,” and "Compé¢nsaCommittee Report” in our
definitive Proxy Statement for our 2013 Annual Megtof Stockholders to be held on May 15, 2013 weorporated herein by reference.

The "Compensation Committee Report" comtaiim our Proxy Statement shall not be deemedcigoly material” or “filed" with the
Securities and Exchange Commission or otherwisgsutm the liabilities of Section 18 of the Seties Exchange Act of 1934, nor shall it be
deemed incorporated by reference in any filingseurnkle Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Axtept to the extent we specifically
request that such information be treated as salicihaterial or specifically incorporate such imf@tion by reference into a document filed
under the Securities Act or Exchange Act.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS.

The information appearing under the capt®mincipal Stockholders” in our definitive ProxyaBment for our 2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held on May 15, 2013 is incaapeat herein by reference.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Cpensation Plans

The following table provides information@sDecember 31, 2012, about the shares of Cla8sAmon Stock that may be issued upor
exercise of stock options issued under the Comp&®p4 Stock Incentive Plan, 1991 Directors' Noralied Stock Option Plan, and the
settlement of restricted stock units granted undemManagement Stock Purchase Plan as well aahéer of shares
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remaining for future issuance under our 2004 Stockntive Plan and Management Stock Purchase Plan.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
Number of securities remaining

Number of securities to be available for future issuance
issued upon exercise of Weighted-average exercist under equity compensation
outstanding options, price of outstanding options, plan (excluding securities
warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (c)
Equity
compensatiol
plans
approved by
security
holders 1,256,45(1)$ 31.7: 1,475,90(2)
Equity
compensatiol
plans not
approved by
security
holders None None None
Total 1,256,45(1)$ 31.7¢ 1,475,90(2)

Q) Represents 1,060,550 outstanding options uheéet991 Directors' Non-Qualified Stock OptionrPénd 2004 Stock
Incentive Plan, and 195,906 outstanding restristedk units under the Management Stock Purchase Pla

(2) Includes 573,965 shares available for future isseamder the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, and 901s8ares available
for future issuance under the Management StockhasecPlar

ltem 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, ANDDIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The information provided under the captit@erporate Governance" and "Certain Relationshimb Related Transactions" in our
definitive Proxy Statement for our 2013 Annual Megtof Stockholders to be held on May 15, 2013 worporated herein by reference.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

The information provided under the captiBatification of Independent Registered Public Acating Firm" in our definitive Proxy
Statement for our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockhdde be held on May 15, 2013 is incorporated Inelogireference.
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PART IV

ltem 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

(a)(1) Financial Statements

The following financial statements are ut#d in a separate section of this Report commgrairnthe page numbers specified below:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimg 51
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeradsed December 31,

2012, 2011 and 201 52
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomthéyears ended

December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2( 53
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&012011 54
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equitytferyears ended

December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2( 55
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the ymaied December 31,

2012, 2011 and 201 56
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 57-97

(a)(2) Schedules

Schedule ll—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts fbetyears ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2( 98

All other required schedules for which gsian is made in the applicable accounting regoitegiof the Securities and Exchange
Commission are included in the Notes to the Codatdid Financial Statements.

(a)(3) Exhibits
The exhibits listed in the Exhibit Indexrimadiately preceding the exhibits are filed as phathis Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, rbgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduty authorized.

WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: /s DAVID J. COGHLAN

David J. Coghlan
Chief Executive Officer President and
Director

DATED: February 27, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidrelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ DAVID J. COGHLAN Chief Executive Officer, President
and February 27, 2013
David J. Coghlai Director

[s/ DEAN P. FREEMAN Chief Financial Officer (Principal

Financial Officer)

February 27, 2013
Dean P. Freeme

s/ TIMOTHY M. MACPHEE Treasurer and Chief Accounting

Officer (Principal Accounting Office

February 27, 2013
Timothy M. MacPhe

/sl ROBERT L. AYERS

Director February 27, 2013
Robert L. Ayers
/sl BERNARD BAERT
Director February 27, 2013
Bernard Baer
/sl KENNETT F. BURNES
Director February 27, 2013
Kennett F. Burne
/s RICHARD J. CATHCART
Director February 27, 2013
Richard J. Cathca
49
Signature Title Date
/sl W. CRAIG KISSEL
Director February 27, 2013
W. Craig Kisse
/s/ JOHN K. MCGILLICUDDY
Chairman of the Board February 27, 2013

John K. McGillicuddy



/sl MERILEE RAINES

Director February 27, 2013
Merilee Raine
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Watts Water Technologies, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying conselitibalance sheets of Watts Water Technologiesahit subsidiaries as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statsmé&operations, comprehensive income, stockingldguity, and cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended Decenthet(3.2. In connection with our audits of the cditksted financial statements, we also hav
audited the financial statement Schedule Il—Vatraand Qualifying Accounts. These consolidatedrfai@ statements and financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the@amy's management. Our responsibility is to exgpa@sopinion on these consolidated
financial statements and financial statement sdedshised on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated finan@ttements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the financial position of Watts
Water Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries as oebBdxer 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of tipeiradions and their cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended Decenthet(3 2, in conformity with U.S. generally accepéedounting principles. Also in our
opinion, the related financial statement scheduhlen considered in relation to the basic consaidifihancial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly, in all material respects, the infation set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatd8oard (United States), Watts Water
Technologies, Inc.'s internal control over finaho@gporting as of December 31, 2012, based onriigstablished internal Control—
Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COSO), and our reghaied
February 27, 2013 expressed an unqualified opiaiothe effectiveness of the Company's internalrobotver financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 27, 2013
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(Amounts in millions, except per share information)

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Net sales $ 1,445.¢ $ 1,428.0 $ 1,274.
Cost of goods sol 928.1 915.c 809.7

GROSS PROFI 517.t 512.¢ 464.¢
Selling, general and administrative exper 384.¢ 377.¢ 336.
Restructuring and other charges, 4.3 8.¢ 12.€
Goodwill and other lor-lived asset impairment charg 3.4 17.¢ 1.4
(Gain on) adjustment to disposal of busir 1.€ (7.7) —

OPERATING INCOME 123.¢ 116.5 114.2
Other (income) expens

Interest incomy (0.7) (2.0 (2.0

Interest expens 24.¢ 25.¢ 22.¢

Other expense (income), r (0.9 0.€ (2.3
Total other expens 23.1 25.¢ 19.7
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE

INCOME TAXES 100.: 91.1 94.t
Provision for income taxe 29.7 26.1 31.4
NET INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATION! 70.€ 64.4 63.1
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, nearés (2.2) 2.C (4.9
NET INCOME $ 68.2 $ 66.< $ 58.¢
Basic EPS
Income (loss) per shar

Continuing operation $ 19%€ $ 170 $  1.6¢

Discontinued operatior (0.06) 0.0t (0.1

NET INCOME $ 19C $ 1.7¢ $ 1.5¢
Weighted average number of sha 36.C 37.2 37.2
Diluted EPS
Income (loss) per shar

Continuing operation $ 1.9€¢ $ 172 $ 1.6¢

Discontinued operatior (0.06 0.0t (0.12)

NET INCOME $ 19C $ 1.7¢ $ 1.57
Weighted average number of sha 36.1 37.t 37.4
Dividends per shar $ 042 $ 04z $ 0.44

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(Amounts in millions)

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Net income $ 684 $ 664 $ 58.
Other comprehensive income (los
Foreign currency translation adjustme 14.: (16.9) (26.7)
Foreign currency adjustment for sale of foreigritgt — (8.6) —
Defined benefit pension plans, net of t
Net loss, net of tax benefits of $4.1, $2.7, and$32012, 2011
and 2010, respective (6.5) (4.2 (5.9
Amortization of prior service cost included in petriodic pensio
cost, net of tax expense of $0.1 in 2011 and : — 0.2 0.2
Amortization of net losses included in net perigoénsion cost,
net of tax expense of $0.2, $1.0, and $0.9 in 22021 and
2010, respectivel 0.4 1.7 1.4
Reduction in obligation related to pension curtaih net of tax
expense of $5. — 8.€ —
Defined benefit pension plans, net of (6.2) 6.2 (3.7
Other comprehensive income (lo 8.2 (18.7) (30.9
Comprehensive incon $ 766 $ 477 $ 28«

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetheasolidated financial statements.
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Amounts in millions, except share information)

December 31

2012 2011
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 271.¢ $ 250.¢
Shor-term investment securiti 2.1 4.1
Trade accounts receivable, less allowance for doludtcounts of $9.7 in
2012 and $9.1 in 201 207.1 205.¢
Inventories, ne 290.7 280.¢
Prepaid expenses and other as 22.7 26.4
Deferred income taxe 21.€ 28.2
Assets held for sal — 4.€
Assets of discontinued operatic — 14.C
Total Current Asset 816.( 814.t
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NE’ 223.¢ 223.]
OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill 508.2 488.¢
Intangible assets, n 146.€ 151.C
Deferred income taxe 4.¢ 6.7
Other, ne 9.8 10.1
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,709.C $ 1,694.(
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl $ 131¢ $ 126.]
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 116.¢ 109.(
Accrued compensation and bene 42.F 45.¢
Current portion of lon-term debt 77.1 2.C
Liabilities of discontinued operatiol — 2.€
Total Current Liabilities 368.( 285.¢
LONG-TERM DEBT, NET OF CURRENT PORTIO 307.t 397.4
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 45.2 52.7
OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 48.¢ 38.t

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred Stock, $0.10 par value; 5,000,000 stard®rized; no shares

issued or outstandir — —
Class A Common Stock, $0.10 par value; 80,000,0@0es authorized; 1

vote per share; issued and outstanding, 28,67 368%s in 2012 and

29,471,414 shares in 20 2.6 2.6
Class B Common Stock, $0.10 par value; 25,000,6@0es authorized; 1

votes per share; issued and outstanding, 6,588}@&@&@s in 2012 and

6,953,680 shares in 20. 0.€ 0.7
Additional paic-in capital 448. 420.1
Retained earning 498.1 515.1
Accumulated other comprehensive | (10.9) (29.0

Total Stockholders' Equit 939.t 919.¢

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 1,709.C $ 1,694.(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

(Amounts in millions, except share information)

Class A Class B - Accumulated

Common Stock Common Stock Addl_tlonal . Other . Total
Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Stockholders'

Shares  Amount  Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity

Balance at December 2
2009 29,506,52 $ 3. 7,193,888 $ 0.7 $ 393.7 $ 45271 $ 301 $ 879.¢
Comprehensive

income (loss 58.¢ (30.9 28.¢

Shares of Class B

Common Stock

converted to

Class A Common

Stock 240,20( (240,20()
Shares of Class A

Common Stock

issued upon the

exercise of stock

options 185,47( 34 34
Stock-based
compensatiol 4.7 4.7

Issuance of shares o

restricted Class A

Common Stock 93,60: (0.5) (0.5)
Net change in

restricted stock

units 76,88: 3.4 (1.3 24
Common Stock
dividends (16.9 (16.9
Balance at December 3
2010 30,102,67 $ 3. 6,953,68 $ 07 $ 405.2 $ 492¢ $ 03 % 901.t
Comprehensive
income (loss 66.4 (18.%) 477

Shares of Class A
Common Stock
issued upon the
exercise of stock

options 247,87 5.4 5.4
Stock-based
compensatiol 8.2 8.2

Issuance of net share

of restricted Class

Common Stocl
Stock repurchas (1,000,001 (0.7) (27.7) (27.2)
Issuance of net share

of restricted Class

Common Stocl 79,43¢ (0.5) (0.5)
Net change in

restricted stock

units 41,42¢ 1.z (0.9 0.¢
Common Stock
dividends (16.9) (16.9)
Balance at
December 31, 201 29,471,41 $ 2. 6,953,68 $ 0.7 $ 420.2 $ 5151 $ (19.0 $ 919.¢
Comprehensive
income 68.4 8.2 76.€

Shares of Class E

Common Stock

converted to

Class A Common

Stock 365,00( 0.1 (365,000 (0.7
Shares of Class #

Common Stock

issued upon the

exercise of stock

options 589,79t 0.1 173 17.¢
Stock-based

compensation 6.€ 6.€
Stock repurchase (2,000,001 (0.2 (65.€) (65.¢)

Issuance of ne

shares of restrictec

Class A Common

Stock 141,76 (0.9) (0.§)
Net change in

restricted stock

units 105,66( 4.3 3.0 1.3
Common Stock

dividends (16.0) (16.0)
Balance at

December 31, 201 28,673,63 $ 2.¢ 6,588,68 $ 0€ $ 448.1 $ 498.1 $ (10.9) $ 939.t




The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.

55




Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Amounts in millions)

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income $ 684 $ 664 $ 58.¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, n¢arés (2.2) 2.C 4.3
Net income from continuing operation 70.€ 64.4 63.1

Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing r@iens to net cash provided by continui
operating activities

Depreciatior 33.¢ 33.C 30.5
Amortization of intangible: 15.€ 17.¢ 14.2
Loss on disposal and impairment of goodwill, préyeplant and equipment and ott 4.1 5.2 2.€
Stock-based compensatic 6.€ 8.2 4.7
Deferred income tax bene — (0.5) (6.9)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffetts from business acquisitions and
divestures
Accounts receivabl 1. 34 (8.2
Inventories (6.2) 34 0.8
Prepaid expenses and other as 0.€ (7.9 9.C
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitied 4.7 0.2 SE
Net cash provided by continuing operatit 131.¢ 127.¢ 113.¢
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipmi (30.6) (22.¢) (24.¢
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and eqeip BiE 0.8 2.2
Investments in securiti¢ (2. (8.1 4.0
Proceeds from sale of securit 4.1 8.1 6.5
Purchase of intangible assets and o (0.7) (0.9) (1.0
Business acquisitions, net of cash acqu (17.5) (165.5) (36.9)
Net cash used in investing activit 42.%) (188.9) (57.2)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from lor-term debt 9.2 184.( 75.C
Payments of lor-term deb: (23.9 (168.0 (50.9)
Payment of capital leases and ot (2.9 (2.6 1.2
Proceeds from share transactions under employek glans 17.¢ 5.4 3.4
Tax benefit of stock awards exercis 0.€ 0.8 0.2
Debt issuance co — — 3.2
Payments to repurchase common s! (65.¢) (27.2) —
Dividends (16.0) (16.9) (16.9)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (80.7) (23.9 6.S
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiaénts 3.z o 2.7
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activititdiscontinued operatior 14 (1.3 5.5
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitésliscontinued operatiot 8.1 (0.3 5.1
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 21.2 (78.€) 71.C
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 250.€ 329.2 258.%
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAF $ 271.¢ $ 250.6 $ 329.C

NON CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of businesse

Fair value of assets acquir $ 252 $ 225& $ 47¢€
Cash paid, net of cash acquil 17.t 165.5 36.2
Liabilities assume: $ 7 $ 60C $ 11:
Acquisitions of fixed assets under financing agreet $ 11 % 28 —
Issuance of stock under management stock purchias $ 0f $ 04 $ 21
CASH PAID FOR:

Interest $ 23¢ $ 247 $ 21«<

©®

Taxes 271 $ 355 $ 20z

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(1) Description of Business

Watts Water Technologies, Inc. (the Compatesigns, manufactures and sells an extensivefinater safety and flow control products
primarily for the water quality, water conservatiovater safety and water flow control markets ledgtredominantly in North America and
Europe with a presence in Asia.

(2) Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidatio

The consolidated financial statements idelthe accounts of the Company and its majorityveimally owned subsidiaries. Upon
consolidation, all significant intercompany accauand transactions are eliminated.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of instrumenth wétnaining maturities of three months or leshatdate of purchase and consist primarily of
certificates of deposit and money market fundswbich the carrying amount is a reasonable estimitair value.

Investment Securitie

Investment securities at December 31, 20122011 consisted of certificates of deposit wiilyinal maturities of greater than three
months.

Trading securities are recorded at faiugallhe Company determines the fair value by olstgimarket value when available from quo
prices in active markets. In the absence of quptegs, the Company uses other inputs to deterthiméair value of the investments. All
changes in the fair value as well as any realizédsgand losses from the sale of the securitieseggded when incurred to the consolidated
statements of operations as other income or expense

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

Allowance for doubtful accounts includesarves for bad debts, sales returns and allowarzksash discounts. The Company analyzes
the aging of accounts receivable, individual act®uaceivable, historical bad debts, concentratioreceivables by customer, customer credit
worthiness, current economic trends, and changesgstomer payment terms. The Company specificalffyaes individual accounts receive
and establishes specific reserves against findntialbled customers. In addition, factors arealeped in certain regions utilizing historical
trends of sales and returns and allowances anddissbunt activities to derive a reserve for resuaind allowances and cash discounts.

Concentration of Credit

The Company sells products to a diversifiestomer base and, therefore, has no significamtentrations of credit risk. In 2012 and
2011, no customer accounted for 10% or more oCini@pany's total sales.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of €osing primarily the first-in, first-out method) market. Market value is determined by
replacement cost or net realizable value. Histbrisage is used as the basis for determining gerve for excess or obsolete inventories.
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
(2) Accounting Policies (Continued)
Assets Held for Sa

The Company accounts for assets held fervgaen management has committed to a plan tatselsset or group of assets, is actively
marketing the asset or group of assets, the asgebop of assets can be sold in its current caordih a reasonable period of time and the plar
is not expected to change. As of December 31, 2082Company had completed the disposition of #sets held for sale. In connection with
the disposal, one of the assets held for sale laasified as discontinued operations (see Notth3012 and 2010, the Company recorded
estimated losses of $1.6 million and $1.0 millilmspectively, to reduce these assets to their asihfair value, less any costs to sell. These
amounts are recorded as a component of goodwilbémer long-lived asset impairment charges in thesolidated statements of operations.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill is recorded when the considerapiard for acquisitions exceeds the fair value dftargible and intangible assets acquired.
Goodwill and other intangible assets with indeénitseful lives are not amortized, but rather astetkat least annually for impairment. The tes
was performed as of October 28, 2012.

Impairment of Goodwill and Lor-Lived Assets
The changes in the carrying amount of galbéhy geographic segment are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 201

Gross Balance Accumulated Impairment Losses Net Goodwill
Acquired Foreign Impairment
Balance During Currency Balance Balance Loss Balance
January 1, the Translation December 31, January 1, During December 31, December 31
2012 Period and Other 2012 2012 the Period 2012 2012
(in millions)
North
Ameri $ 213.6$ 117 $ 01$ 2256% (239% (1L.O$ (249$%$ 201«
Europe,
Middli
East
and
Africa
(EME 285.¢ — 8.€ 293.¢ — — — 293.¢
Asia 12.7 — 0.2 12.¢ — — — 12.¢

Total $§ 511.6% 11.:% 8¢ $ 532.3% (2329$% (10OS$  (242$ 508

Year Ended December 31, 201

Gross Balance Accumulated Impairment Losses Net Goodwill
Acquired Foreign Impairment

Balance During Currency Balance Balance Loss Balance

January 1, the Translation December 31, January 1, During December 31, December 31
2011 Period and Other 2011 2011 the Period 2011 2011
(in millions)
North

Amer $ 213£$ — $ —$ 213f% (220%$ (1.9$ (239%  190.€
EMEA 228.1 T2 (15.6) 285.: — — — 285.%
Asia 8.1 4.2 0.4 12 — — 12.7

Total $ 450 % 77.C$ (15629% 51163 (220% (1.29$  (232%  488¢

Goodwill is tested for impairment at leashually or more frequently if events or circumsgmindicate that it is "more likely than not"
that goodwill might be impaired, such as a changauisiness
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
(2) Accounting Policies (Continued)
conditions. The Company performs its annual goddmipairment assessment in the fourth quarter ohgaar.

On January 31, 2012, the Company complteccquisition of tekmar Control Systems (teknag share purchase transaction. The
initial purchase price paid was CAD $18.0 millievith post-closing adjustments related to workingitz and an earnout based on the
attainment of certain future earnings levels. Tigal purchase price paid was equal to approxitya#7.8 million based on the exchange rate
of Canadian dollar to U.S. dollar as of January2R11,2. The total purchase price will not exceed C¥d8.2 million. The Company is
accounting for the transaction as a business catibm The Company completed a purchase priceatltwtthat resulted in the recognition of
$11.7 million in goodwill and $10.1 million in intgible assets.

Operating results for the EMEA reportingtuvad been hindered by the downturn in the econ@nvironment in Europe and continuec
fall below expectations during the six months endiglgt 1, 2012, triggering the decision to updateithpairment analysis during the second
quarter. As a result of the updated fair value sssent, it was determined that the fair value efEMEA reporting unit continued to exceed
carrying value, a result of a decrease in discoatetand a reduction of net debt offset by lowersterm projections.

The Company determined that the future grots for its Blue Ridge Atlantic Enterprises, I(BRAE) reporting unit in North America
were lower than originally estimated as future Saiewth expectations had been reduced since thé &juisition of BRAE. The Company
recorded pre-tax goodwill impairment charges oB$tillion and $1.2 million in 2012 and 2011, respealy, for that reporting unit. The
impairment charges were offset by the reductiocanticipated earnout payments of equal amounts Cidmpany estimated the fair value of the
reporting unit using the expected present valuetofe cash flows.

Intangible assets with estimable lives atigér long-lived assets are reviewed for impairnvemenever events or changes in circumstanc
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset setagroup may not be recoverable. Recoverabiliintahgible assets with estimable lives and
other long-lived assets is measured by a compadstre carrying amount of an asset or asset grodyture net undiscounted pretax cash
flows expected to be generated by the asset or gisa®. If these comparisons indicate that antasset recoverable, the impairment loss
recognized is the amount by which the carrying amofithe asset or asset group exceeds the radatedated fair value. Estimated fair value
is based on either discounted future pretax opeyatsh flows or appraised values, depending onahee of the asset. The Company
determines the discount rate for this analysis thasethe weighted average cost of capital baseatl@market and guideline public companies
for the related businesses and does not allocteest charges to the asset or asset group beiaguneel. Judgment is required to estimate
future operating cash flows.
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
(2) Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible assets include the following:

December 31

2012 2011
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
(in millions)
Patents $ 165 $ (11.97 $ 4€ $ 165 $ (10§ $ 5.7
Customer relationshiy 134.: (68.7) 65.€ 133.( (57.5) 75.5
Technology 28.t (9.3 19.2 19.¢ (7.2 12.7
Trade name 13.¢ (1.9 12.C 12.4 (0.8 11.€
Other 8.7 (5.5) 3.2 8.5 (5.4) 3.1
Total amortizable
intangibles 201.¢ (97.1)  104.¢ 190.: (81.6)  108.¢
Indefinite-lived intangible
asset: 41.¢ — 41.¢ 424 — 424
Total $ 2437 $ (97.) $ 1466 $ 232.¢ $ (81.6) $ 151.(

Aggregate amortization expense for amadtingangible assets for 2012, 2011 and 2010 wass$h8lion, $17.9 million and
$14.3 million, respectively. Additionally, futurermrtization expense on amortizable intangible assetxpected to be $14.9 million for 2013,
$14.8 million for 2014, $14.6 million for 2015, $04million for 2016, and $13.7 million for 2017. Amization expense is provided on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lokthe intangible assets. The weighted-averagairgnyg life of total amortizable intangible
assets is 9.2 years. Patents, customer relatiaghighnology, trade names and other amortizatdagibles have weighted-average remaining
lives of 6.4 years, 6.5 years, 11.8 years, 11.6syaad 41.6 years, respectively. Indefinite-livethngible assets primarily include trade names
and trademarks.

In 2011, the Company determined that tlespects for Austroflex Rohr-Isoliersysteme GmbH g#aoflex), part of our EMEA segment,
were lower than originally estimated due to curigmrating profits being below plan and temperddrugrowth expectations. Accordingly,
the Company performed an evaluation of the asseipgutilizing the undiscounted cash flows and deieed the carrying value of the assets
was no longer recoverable. The Company perfornfadt aalue assessment and, as a result, wrote dosvlong-lived assets, including
customer relationships, trade names, and propaeyt and equipment, by $14.8 million. Fair valuasvibased on discounted cash flows using
market participant assumptions and utilized anmestttd weighted average cost of capital.

Adjustments to indefinite-lived intangildssets during the year ended December 31, 2012 plenarily to an impairment charge of
$0.4 million for a trade name in the North Amergeyment and the concurrent reclassification to tinatnie intangibles.

Property, Plant and Equipme

Property, plant and equipment are recoedaxbst. Depreciation is provided on a straight-limsis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, which range from 10 to 40 years for bugsliand improvements and 3 to 15 years for machizedyequipment.
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
(2) Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxes, Other than Income Taxes

Taxes assessed by governmental authooitissle transactions are recorded on a net bagisxatuded from sales, in the Company's
consolidated statements of operations.

Income Taxe

Income taxes are accounted for under thetamd liability method. Deferred tax assets #@tllities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betwe=firthncial statement carrying amounts of existingets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carwafrds. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arasueed using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which thteseporary differences are expected to be recovaredttled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax ratesdegnized in income in the period that includeseghactment date.

The Company recognizes tax benefits wheritém in question meets the more-likely-than-igoeéter than 50% likelihood of being
sustained upon examination by the taxing authsjitiereshold. During 2012, unrecognized tax besiefithe Company increased by a net
amount of $2.8 million. As a result of the ongofederal audit, unrecognized tax benefits incredsedpproximately $4.0 million because of
an adjustment to temporary differences that didmggct overall income tax expense. The Companyedsed unrecognized tax benefits by
approximately $1.2 million, of which $0.6 millioelated to reduced exposures in the U.S. and $0lémassociated with settlements in
Europe. The Company estimates that it is reasonaidgible that approximately $3.6 million of theremtly remaining unrecognized tax
benefit may be recognized by the end of 2013 a&sualtrof the conclusion of the federal income tadita The amount of expense accrued for
penalties and interest is $0.7 million worldwide.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company hadgjunrecognized tax benefits of approximately $4lion, approximately $0.6 million of
which, if recognized, would affect the effective tate. The difference between the amount of urgeized tax benefits and the amount that
would affect the effective tax rate consists ofrbibie federal tax benefit of state income tax itaimd the temporary differences resulting from
the federal audit.

A reconciliation of the beginning and erglamount of unrecognized tax benefits and accmeddst related to the unrecognized tax
benefits is as follows:

(in millions)
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 1.8
Increases related to prior year tax positi 4.C
Decreases related to prior year tax positi (0.6)
Settlement: (0.6)
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 4.€

In February 2012, the United States IntelRevenue Service commenced an audit of the Compa099, 2010 and 2011 tax years. The
Company does not anticipate any material adjustenethier than those mentioned above as a resuiioatdit. The Company conducts
business in a variety of locations throughout tleelévresulting in tax filings in numerous domesitd foreign jurisdictions. The Company is
subject to tax examinations regularly as part efribrmal course of business. The Company's majedjations are the U.S., Canada, China,
Netherlands, U.K., Germany, Italy a
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
(2) Accounting Policies (Continued)

France. With few exceptions the Company is no losgéject to U.S. federal, state and local, or bo&- income tax examinations for years
before 2006. The statute of limitations in our nmgymisdictions is open in the U.S. for the yeaB2@nd later; in Canada for 2008 and later;
in the Netherlands for 2007 and later.

The Company accounts for interest and piesalelated to uncertain tax positions as a corapbaf income tax expense.
Foreign Currency Translatio

The financial statements of subsidiariesied outside the United States generally are measising the local currency as the functional
currency. Balance sheet accounts, including goddefiforeign subsidiaries are translated into ©diStates dollars at year-end exchange rate
Income and expense items are translated at weiglverdge exchange rates for each period. Net &t@osigains or losses are included in othe
comprehensive income, a separate component oftuitutes' equity. The Company does not provide f@&.lihcome taxes on foreign currency
translation adjustments since it does not providesfich taxes on undistributed earnings of forsigipsidiaries. Gains and losses from foreign
currency transactions of these subsidiaries ataded in net earnings.

Stock-Based Compensation, Former Chief ExecutifieddBSeparation Costs and Former Chief Financidfi€er Retention Costs

The Company records compensation expente ifinancial statements for share-based awarskscben the grant date fair value of those
awards. Stock-based compensation expense incladestinate for pre-vesting forfeitures and is rexipgd over the requisite service periods
of the awards on a straight-line basis, which isegally commensurate with the vesting term. Theefitnassociated with tax deductions in
excess of recognized compensation cost are repastadinancing cash flow.

At December 31, 2012, the Company had thteek-based compensation plans with total unrézegrcompensation costs related to
unvested stock-based compensation arrangemenppabémately $15.6 million and a total weighted mage remaining term of 2.6 years. For
2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company recognized corapenscosts related to stock-based programs ofoappately $5.8 million, $5.3 million
and $4.7 million, respectively, in selling, geneaatl administrative expenses. The Company recapprbximately $0.7 million of tax benet
during 2012, 2011 and 2010 for the compensatioemesg relating to its stock options. For 2012, 28dd 2010, the Company recorded
approximately $1.4 million, $1.5 million and $1.2llion, respectively, of tax benefit for its othstock-based plans. For 2012, 2011 and 2010
the recognition of total stock-based compensatigperse impacted both basic and diluted net incoene@mmon share by $0.10, $0.09 and
$0.08, respectively.

On May 23, 2012, William C. McCartney prded notice of his intention to retire as Chief Ficial Officer of the Company. On June 14,
2012, the Company entered into a retention agreewiémMr. McCartney. Pursuant to the retentionesgnent, Mr. McCartney continued
employment with the Company until December 14, 2@h2l assisted in transitioning his responsibdiaad duties to the new Chief Financial
Officer. The Company recorded a pre-tax chargeppf@imately $1.5 million over the retention periednsisting of expected cash payments
of $0.7 million and a non-cash charge of $0.8 willfor the modification of stock options and reg&d stock awards

On January 26, 2011, Patrick S. O'Keefgynesl from his positions as Chief Executive Offideresident and Director. Pursuant to a
separation agreement, the Company recorded a cbhrge
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
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$6.3 million consisting of $3.3 million in expectedsh severance and a non-cash charge of $3.0mfitli the modification of stock options
and restricted stock awards.

Net Income Per Common Shz

Basic net income per common share is catedlby dividing net income by the weighted avemagmber of common shares outstanding.
The calculation of diluted income per share assutmesonversion of all dilutive securities (see &bR).

Net income and number of shares used t@utemet income per share, basic and assumindifution, are reconciled below:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Per Per Per
Net Share Net Share Net Share
Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount

(Amounts in millions, except per share information)

Basic EP¢ $ 68.£ 36 $ 1.9C $ 66.£ 37.2 $ 1.7t $ 58.¢ 37. $ 1.5¢
Dilutive

securitit

principe

commo

stock

options — 0.1 — — 0.2 — — 0.1 (0.7
Diluted

EPS $ 68.4 361 $ 1.9C $ 66.£ 37t $ 1.7t $ 58.¢ 374 $ 1.57

The computation of diluted net income gwaars for the years ended December 31, 2012, 204 2@10 excludes the effect of the poter
exercise of options to purchase approximately (lzom, 0.7 million and 0.5 million shares, respegety, because the exercise price of the
option was greater than the average market pritleeo€lass A Common Stock and the effect would lmeen anti-dilutive.

On May 16, 2012, the Board of Directorshauized a stock repurchase program of up to twéanishares of the Company's Class A
Common Stock. The stock repurchase program was letedpn July 2012, as the Company repurchasedrtiee two million shares of
Class A common stock at a cost of approximately.&@illion.

On August 2, 2011 the Board of Directorthatized a stock repurchase program. Under theranogthe Company was authorized to
repurchase up to one million shares of our Clagnfkmon Stock. During the three months ended Octdb2011, the Company repurchased
the entire one million shares at a cost of $27 IRani

Financial Instrument:

In the normal course of business, the Cappaanages risks associated with commodity pricesign exchange rates and interest rates
through a variety of strategies, including the okkedging transactions, executed in accordandetw&é Company's policies. The Company's
hedging transactions include, but are not limitedte use ofarious derivative financial and commaodity instruttse As a matter of policy, tt
Company does not use derivative instruments uiess is an underlying exposure. Any change inevafuthe derivative instruments would
be substantially offset by an opposite changeeénvidue of the underlying hedged items. The Compkrgs not use derivative instruments for
trading or speculative purposes.
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Derivative instruments may be designatetiaatounted for as either a hedge of a recognigset ar liability (fair value hedge) or a het
of a forecasted transaction (cash flow hedge).aHair value hedge, both the effective and ineffecportions of the change in fair value of the
derivative instrument, along with an adjustmentt carrying amount of the hedged item for faiueathanges attributable to the hedged risk
are recognized in earnings. For a cash flow hedugmges in the fair value of the derivative insteatthat are highly effective are deferred in
accumulated other comprehensive income or lossthetunderlying hedged item is recognized in eagsi There were no cash flow hedges a
of December 31, 2012 or December 31, 2011.

If a fair value or cash flow hedge wereéase to qualify for hedge accounting or be tertathat would continue to be carried on the
balance sheet at fair value until settled, but leelgcounting would be discontinued prospectivélg.forecasted transaction were no longer
probable of occurring, amounts previously defeiredccumulated other comprehensive income woulskbegnized immediately in earnings.
On occasion, the Company may enter into a derigatistrument that does not qualify for hedge actingrbecause it is entered into to offset
changes in the fair value of an underlying trarisacivhich is required to be recognized in earnifrggural hedge). These instruments are
reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets avédiie with changes in fair value recognized imawas.

Foreign currency derivatives include ford/éareign exchange contracts primarily for Canadialtars. Metal derivatives included
commodity swaps for copper.

Portions of the Company's outstanding debtexposed to interest rate risks. The Companyitorerits interest rate exposures on an
ongoing basis to maximize the overall effectiverafass interest rates.

Fair Value Measuremen

Fair value is defined as the exchange ghaewould be received for an asset or paid tosfiex a liability (an exit price) in the principad
most advantageous market for the asset or lialilign orderly transaction between market partitipan the measurement date. An entity is
required to maximize the use of observable inpuktgre available, and minimize the use of unobsédevialputs when measuring fair value.

The Company has certain financial assaddiahilities that are measured at fair value ar@urring basis and certain nonfinancial assets
and liabilities that may be measured at fair valne nonrecurring basis. The fair value disclosofdhese assets and liabilities are based on
three-level hierarchy, which is defined as follows:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identicaktssr liabilities that the entity has the ability
to access at the measurement ¢

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, sgajuated prices for similar assets or
liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are active or other inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market dataufustantially the full term of the assets or
liabilities.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlammarket activity and that are significant
to the fair value of the assets or liabiliti
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Assets and liabilities subject to this hrehy are classified in their entirety based onldleest level of input that is significant to thearf
value measurement. The Company's assessmentsifjthificance of a particular input to the fair valmeasurement in its entirety requires
judgment and considers factors specific to thetamd@bility.

Shipping and Handling

Shipping and handling costs included itirsgl general and administrative expense amouraté$8.0 million, $38.1 million and
$33.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2@021 and 2010, respectively.

Research and Developme

Research and development costs includedliing, general, and administrative expense ansolta $20.7 million, $20.9 million and
$18.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2@021 and 2010, respectively.

Revenue Recognitic

The Company recognizes revenue when alefollowing criteria have been met: the Compaay éntered into a binding agreement, the
product has been shipped and title passes, the [mate to the customer is fixed or is determinaatel collectability is reasonably assured.
Provisions for estimated returns and allowancesrerge at the time of sale, and are recorded aduatien of sales and included in the
allowance for doubtful accounts in the Consoliddathnce Sheets. The Company records provisionsafes incentives (primarily volume
rebates), as an adjustment to net sales, at tleedfirpale based on estimated purchase targets.

Basis of Presentatio

Certain amounts in the 2011 and 2010 casteste!d financial statements have been reclasdifi@grmit comparison with the 2012
presentation. These reclassifications had no effieceported results of operations or stockhold=ysity.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfenetttae reported amounts of assets and liakslgied disclosure of contingent assets anc
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeantsl the reported amounts of revenues and expdunsieg the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

New Accounting Standar:

In July 2012, the FASB issued an amendrteetite requirements for indefiniteed intangible asset impairment testing. The Camypha
the option to first assess qualitative factorsetetmine whether the existence of events or cirtamees leads to a determination that it is mor
likely than not that the fair value of an indefatiived intangible asset is less than its carngnmgunt. If, after assessing the totality of evemts
circumstances, the Company determines it is mkedylithan not that the fair value of an indefinliteed intangible asset is greater than its
carrying amount, then performing
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the impairment test is unnecessary. The Companptaddhis new standard effective with its annuglaimment testing date of October 28, for
the year ending December 31, 2012.

(3) Discontinued Operations

On December 21, 2012, the Company compltiedale of all of the outstanding shares oftits&liary, Flomatic Corporation (Flomatis
The sale excluded the backflow product line of Fdtim which was retained by the Company. Flomatigp@ration, located in Glens Falls,
New York, specializes in manufacturing and sellthgck valves, foot valves and automatic hydrauittiol valves for the well water industi
The Company acquired Flomatic as part of its adimisof Danfoss Socla S.A.S. (Socla) in April 20The Company evaluated the operation:
of Flomatic and determined that it would not havaibstantial continuing involvement in Flomatigemtions and cash flows. As a result,
Flomatic's cash flows and operations were elimoh&tem the continuing operations of the Company eladsified as discontinued operations
for all periods presented.

In the first quarter of 2010, the Compaegarded an estimated reserve of $5.3 million inatiinued operations in connection with its
investigation of potential violations of the ForeiGorrupt Practices Act (FCPA) at Watts Valve (Gsira) Co., Ltd. (CWV), a former indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in China. @ctober 13, 2011, the Company entered into aesettht for $3.8 million with the
Securities and Exchange Commission to resolveatil@gs concerning potential violations of the FCRACWYV. (see Note 14). The Company
received a $1.1 million payment from a service fewrrelated to issues concerning a former divespestation.

Condensed operating statements for distoed operations are summarized below:

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)

Operating income (los—FCPA matter (CWV $ 11 $ 17 $ (B.9)
Operating incom—Flomatic 1.3 0.4 —
Loss on dispos—Flomatic (3.8 — —
Other 0.3 0.2 (0.9)
Income (loss) before income tax (1.7 2.3 (6.0
Income tax benefit (expens (1.2 (0.3 1.7
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of

taxes $(229% 2C $ 4.9

The Company did not recognize a tax bewefithe loss on the disposal of the Flomatic shagthe Company does not believe it is more
likely than not that a tax benefit would be reatize

Revenues reported in discontinued operatioa as follows:

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Flomatic revenue—discontinued operatior $ 12¢ $ 85 $ —
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The carrying amounts of major classes sétssand liabilities at December 31, 2012 and Déeer81, 2011 associated with discontinued
operations are as follows:

December 31 December 31
2012 2011
(in millions)

Inventory and accounts receival $ — $ 4.8
Prepaid expenses and other as — 5.€
Property, plant and equipme — 3.6
Assets of discontinued operatic $ — $ 14.C
Accrued expenses and other liabilit — 0.€
Deferred income taxe — 2.C
Liabilities of discontinued operatiol $ — $ 2.€

(4) Restructuring and Other Charges, Net

The Company's Board of Directors approviesiajor restructuring programs that involve theatintinuance of product lines or the
shutdown of facilities. From time to time, the Camp takes additional restructuring actions, inalgdinvoluntary terminations that are not
part of a major program. The Company accountshfiese costs in the period that the individual engdayare notified or the liability is
incurred. These costs are included in restructuaimg) other charges in the Company's consolidastdmnsents of operations.

In April 2011, the Board approved an intggm program in association with the acquisitiéisocla. The program was designed to
integrate certain operations and management stasctf Socla with a total estimated pre-tax cosi6fl million, with costs being incurred
through 2012. The Company has revised its fore¢oeh4.2 million primarily to reflect reduced seveca costs. The total net after-tax charge i
$2.8 million, with costs being fully incurred in 22.

The Company also periodically initiatesestactions which are not part of a major progran2012, the Company commenced
restructuring activities in North America to relée@ertain production activities, which includeé ttiosure of a manufacturing site. Total
expected costs are $2.2 million, including sevesaamad shutdown costs. The net after tax chargé.8frillion will be incurred through mid-
2013. In December 2012, the Company initiated wesdring activities in Europe to relocate certaianufacturing activities. Total expected
costs are $1.7 million, including severance andaation costs.

During 2011, the Company initiated sevacions that were not part of a major program.dpt8mber 2011, the Company announced a
plan of termination that would result in a reduntaff approximately 10% of North American non-dirpatyroll costs. The Company recorded &
charge of $1.1 million for severance in connectigit the plan during the year ended December 31128Iso in 2011, the Company initiated
restructuring activities with respect to the Compaioperating facilities in Europe, which includée closure of a facility. The Europe
restructuring activities included pre-tax costapproximately $4.0 million, including costs for seance and shut-down costs. All costs were
incurred as of December 31, 2012.
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During 2012 and 2011, the Company recoalerkdit in restructuring and other charges, rlated to the reduction in the contingent
liability for the anticipated earnout payment imaection with the BRAE acquisition of $1.0 milliamd $1.2 million, respectively.

A summary of the pre-tax cost by restruamiprogram is as follows:

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)

Restructuring costt

2007 Actions $ —$ — $ 1C

2009 Actions — — 1.8

2010 Actions 0.€ 3.3 11.1

2011 Actions 1.1 3.1 —

Other Actions 3.€ 3.€ 0.2
Total restructuring costs incurr: 5.3 10.C 14.1
Income related to contingent liability reducti (1.0 (1.2 —
Less: amounts included in cost of goods — — (1.5
Total restructuring and other char $ 432 $ 88 $ 12¢

The Company recorded net pre-tax restrimgun its business segments as follows:

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010

(in millions)
North America $ 1% 12 $ 41
Europe 4.C 8.€ 9.2
Asia — 0.2 0.8
Total $ 52 $ 10C $ 141

Also, during 2011, the Company recordedxacharge of $1.1 million related to restructurindrrance offset by a net tax benefit of
$3.7 million realized in connection with the disims of TWVC.

2011 Actions

The following table summarizes the totgb@osted, incurred and remaining pre-tax costs f@e2il1l Socla integration program:

Total Expected Additional Costs
Incurred through Incurred through ~ Remaining Costs ai
Reportable Segmen Costs December 31 201, December 31 201: December 31, 201,
(in millions)
Europe $ 4C $ 29 % 1.1 % —
Asia 0.2 0.2 — —
Total $ 42 $ 31 % 11 % —
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Details of the Company's 2011 Socla integnareserves for the years ended December 31, 20d2011 are as follows:

Severance
Balance at December 31, 20 $ —
Net pre-tax restructuring charge 3.1
Utilization and foreign currency impa (2.7)
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 0.4
Net pre-tax restructuring charges 11
Utilization and foreign currency impact (2.0

Balance at December 31, 201 $ 0.5

The Company expects to exhaust the rengirgiserve by mid-2013.

The following table summarizes expecteduired and remaining severance costs for the 20t $tegration actions by type:

Severance
Expected cost $ 4.2
Costs Incurre—2011 (3.2
Costs Incurred—2012 (1.2
Remaining costs at December 31, 20: $ —

2010 Actions

On February 8, 2010, the Board approvessaucturing program with respect to the Compaopgésating facilities in France. The
restructuring program included the consolidatiofive# facilities into two facilities. The programas originally expected to include pre-tax
charges totaling approximately $12.5 million, irdihg costs for severance, relocation, clean-upcaniin asset write-downs. The Company
revised its forecast to $17.1 million primarilyreflect additional severance and legal costs. Téra@any recorded certain severance costs
related to this program in 2009 as the amountsae @ contractual or statutory obligations. Th&@€@estructuring program is substantially
complete.

On September 13, 2010, the Board approvedtaucturing program with respect to certainhaf Company's operating facilities in the
United States. The restructuring program includedshutdown of two manufacturing facilities in No@arolina. Operations at these facilities
have been consolidated into the Company's manufagtfacilities in New Hampshire, Missouri and athecations. The program originally
included pre-tax charges totaling approximatel\@$4illion, including costs for severance, shutdawests and equipment write-downs and pre
tax training and pre-production set-up costs ofagimately $2.0 million. The Company revised itseficast to $2.5 million due to reduced
shutdown costs. The total net after-tax chargehfisrrestructuring program was approximately $1iian. The restructuring program was
completed in 2012.
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The following table summarizes the totgb@oted, incurred and remaining pre-tax costs fe2l0 Europe and North America footprint
consolidation-restructuring programs by the Com{mrgportable segments:

Additional Costs

Total Expected Incurred through incurred through
Costs December 31, 201 December 31, 201 Remaining Costs
(in millions)
Europe $ 171 $ 165 $ 0.€ $ —
North
Ameri 2.5 2.5 — % —
Total $ 19.€ $ 19.C $ 0.€ $ —

Details of the Company's 2010 Europe andhiNamerica footprint consolidation-restructuringpgram reserves through December 31,
2012 are as follows:

Asset Facility exit
Severance write-downs and other Total
(in millions)

Balance at December 31, 20 $ 42 % — 3 — $ 42
Net pre-tax restructuring charge 4.¢ 1.7 4.5 11.1
Utilization and foreign currency

impact (1.7) 1.7 (4.5) (7.9
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 74 $ — 3 — $ 74
Net pre-tax restructuring charge i1.g 0.5 1.3 3.3
Utilization and foreign currency

impact (6.0 (0.5 1.3 (7.9
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 2¢ $ — $ — $ 2¢
Net pre-tax restructuring

charges 0.2 — 0.3 0.€
Utilization and foreign currency

impact (1.6) — (0.3 (1.9
Balance at December 31, 201  $ 1€ $ — 3 — $ 1€

The following table summarizes expectedurired and remaining costs for the Company's 20k0e and North America footprint
consolidation-restructuring actions by type:

Asset Facility exit
Severance write-downs and other Total
(in millions)

Expected cost $ 10¢ $ 22 $ 6.5 $ 19.¢
Costs incurre—2009 (4.2 — (0.9 (4.6)
Costs incurre—2010 4.9 1.7 (4.5 (22.0)
Costs incurre—2011 (1.5 (0.5 (1.3 (3.3
Costs incurrec—2012 0.3 — (0.3 (0.6)
Remaining costs at

December 31, 2012 $ — $ — % — % —
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tekmar

On January 31, 2012, the Company complstedcquisition of tekmar in a share purchase &r@ion. A designer and manufacturer of
control systems used in heating, ventilation, andanditioning applications, tekmar is expecte@dthance the Company's hydronic systems
product offerings in the U.S. and Canada and isqfahe North America segment. The initial purahasice paid was CAD $18.0 million, wi
an earn-out based on future earnings levels baihigeed. The initial purchase price paid was etmalpproximately $17.8 million based on
the exchange rate of Canadian dollar to U.S. doliarof January 31, 2012. The total purchase piiitaot exceed CAD $26.2 million. Sales
for tekmar in 2011 approximated $11.0 million. T®@@mpany is accounting for the transaction as anlkessi combination. The Company
completed a purchase price allocation that resutftélde recognition of $11.7 million in goodwill d$10.1 million in intangible assets.
Intangible assets consist primarily of acquiredhtetogy with an estimated life of 10 years, digitdr relationships with an estimated life of
7 years, and a trade name with an estimated lig0gfears. The goodwill is not expected to be debliecfor tax purposes. The results of
tekmar are not material to the Company's consauifihancial statements.

Socla

On April 29, 2011, the Company completeal dlequisition of Socla and the related water cégtvasiness of certain other entities
controlled by Danfoss A/S, in a share and assefhfaise transaction. The final consideration paid dR 116.3 million. The purchase price
was financed with cash on hand and euro-basedwimge under our Credit Agreement. The purchaseemwias equal to approximately
$172.4 million based on the exchange rate of Emtd.8. dollars as of April 29, 2011.

Socla is a manufacturer of water protectialves and flow control solutions for the waterked and the heating, ventilation and air
conditioning market. Its major product lines inatuolackflow preventers, check valves and pressuiecieg valves. Socla is based in France,
and its products are distributed for commerciaidential, municipal and industrial use. Soclargjteens the Company's European plumbing
and flow control products and also adds to its HW#r6duct line.

The Company accounted for the transactsoa lausiness combination. The Company completegichase price allocation that resulted ir
the recognition of $83.1 million in goodwill and %3 million in intangible assets. Intangible assetssist primarily of customer relationships
with estimated lives of 10 years and trade nam#s eiiher 20 year lives or indefinite lives. Theogwiill is attributable to the workforce of
Socla and the synergies that are expected toasiagesult of the acquisition. The

71




Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
(5) Business Acquisitions and Disposition (Continug

goodwill is not expected to be deductible for taxgmses. The following table summarizes the vafitb@assets and liabilities acquired (in
millions):

Cash $ 74
Accounts receivabl 28.2
Inventory 24.¢
Fixed asset 46.¢
Other asset 6.¢
Intangible assel 39.¢
Goodwill 83.1
Accounts payabl (8.2
Accrued expenses and ott (20.7)
Deferred tax liability (25.9)
Debt (20.¢)
Purchase pric $ 172.¢

The consolidated statement of operationshi® year ended December 31, 2011 includes thétsexf Socla since the acquisition date and
includes $94.8 million of revenues and $1.6 milladroperating income, which includes acquisition@mting charges of $4.7 million and
restructuring charges of $2.7 million.

Supplemental pro-forma information (unaudited)

Had the Company completed the acquisitioBazla at the beginning of 2010, net sales, nainme from continuing operations and
earnings per share from continuing operations wbake been as follows:

Year Ended
December 31 December 31
Amounts in millions (except per share information) 2011 2010

Net sales $ 1471t $ 1,392
Net income from continuing operatio $ 70.z $ 66.5
Net income per shar

Basic EP.—continuing operation $ 1.8t $ 1.7¢
Diluted EP{—continuing operation $ 1.87 $ 1.7¢

Net income from continuing operations foe {/ears ended December 31, 2011 and Decembe®@Bd was adjusted to include
$0.7 million and $2.1 million, respectively, of rinterest expense related to the financing and $@ll&n and $2.3 million, respectively, of net
amortization expense resulting from the estimatietaion of purchase price to amortizable tangdité intangible assets. Net income from
continuing operations for the years ended Decer®beP011 and December 31, 2010 was also adjustexttade $4.3 million and
$1.5 million, respectively, of net acquisition-redd charges and third-party costs. The supplempndérma information was adjusted to
exclude revenues and net income of Flomatic whiah gliminated from the continuing operations of@wmpany and classified as
discontinued operations. (See Note 3)
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Austroflex

On June 28, 2010, the Company acquired 160%te outstanding stock of Austroflex for approgitely $33.7 million. Austroflex is an
Austrian-based manufacturer of pre-insulated fllexfiipe systems for district heating, solar appiaces and under-floor radiant heating
systems. The acquisition of Austroflex provides@mmpany with a full range of pre-insulated PEXigjy pre-insulated solar tubes, under-
floor heating insulation, and distribution capailind positions the Company as a major suppligrefinsulated pipe systems in Europe. The
Company completed a purchase price allocationrésatited in the recognition of $17.2 million ofangible assets and $12.3 million of
goodwill. Intangible assets were based on fair@&stimates and are comprised primarily of custawiationships with estimated useful lives
of 8 years and trade names with indefinite liveso@will is expected to be tax deductible up to @aie limit established under Austrian tax
rules. Austroflex had annual sales prior to theu@ition of approximately $23.0 million. In 201het Company determined that the prospects
for Austroflex, part of the Europe segment, wergdothan originally estimated due to current opegaprofits being below plan and tempered
future growth expectations. (See Note 2)

The results of operations for tekmar acduided in the Company's North America segment haddsults of operations of Austroflex are
included in the Company's EMEA segment since tfespective acquisition dates and were not materigle Company's consolidated finan
statements. The results of Socla are includeddrEMIEA and Asia operating segments since acquisitade, with the majority of its operatic
recorded in the EMEA segment.

TWVC

In March 2010, in connection with the Comya manufacturing footprint consolidation, the Gamy closed the operations of Tianjin
Watts Valve Company Ltd. (TWVC) and relocated itsmafacturing to other facilities. On April 12, 2018e Company signed a definitive
equity transfer agreement with a third party to e Company's equity ownership and remainingtasseT WVC. The sale was finalized in
fourth quarter of 2011. The Company received net@eds of approximately $6.1 million from the sahel recorded a receivable for the
remaining proceeds. The Company recognized a eeagrgain of $7.7 million and an after-tax gairapproximately $11.4 million relating
mainly to the recognition of a cumulative tranglatadjustment and a tax benefit related to thersav®f a tax claw back in China. During
2012, the Company recorded a charge of $1.6 mitltetted to an adjustment to the gain on dispdsa\dvC.

(6) Inventories, net
Inventories consist of the following:

December 31

2012 2011
(in millions)
Raw material $ 1117 $ 104.¢
Work-in-process 20.t 28.€
Finished good 158.t 147.¢

$ 290.7 $ 280.¢
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Raw materials, work-in-process and finisgedds are net of valuation reserves of $28.1 anilind $26.3 million as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively. Finished goods ofa8llion and $13.3 million as of December 31, 2@t® 2011, respectively, were
consigned.

(7) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment consist effttlowing:

December 31

2012 2011
(in millions)
Land $ 15& $ 15.¢
Buildings and improvemen 156.4 151.¢
Machinery and equipme 327.: 316.5
Construction in progres 15.t 7.5
515.( 491.(
Accumulated depreciatic (291.9 (267.9)

$ 223¢€ $ 223.1

(8) Income Taxes
The significant components of the Compadg®rred income tax liabilities and assets arf®lésvs:

December 31

2012 2011
(in millions)
Deferred income tax liabilitie:
Excess tax over book depreciat $ 227 $ 20.€
Intangibles 31.¢ 33.€
Other 15.7 14.1
Total deferred tax liabilitie 70.2 68.2
Deferred income tax asse
Accrued expense 16.7 17.¢
Net operating loss car-forward 5.t 6.5
Inventory reserve 8.7 8.1
Pensio—accumulated other comprehensive incc 15.¢ 12.C
Other 14.¢ 15.2
Total deferred tax asse 61.t 59.7
Less: valuation allowanc (20.) (9.0
Net deferred tax asse 51.¢ 50.€
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (18.) $ (17.9)
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The provision for income taxes from contimguoperations is based on the following pre-tacome:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

(in millions)
Domestic $ 27.: $ 39.€ $ 43¢
Foreign 73.C 51.t 51.C

$ 100.2 $ 91.1 $ 94t

The provision for income taxes from contimguoperations consists of the following:

Years Ended
December 31

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Current tax expens:

Federal $ 5C % 62 $ 12.C
Foreign 21.4 18.€ 20.t
State 1.2 1.8 2.6
27.1 27.5 35.4

Deferred tax expense (benef
Federal 4.4 5.5 1.€
Foreign (3.5 (7.3 (5.9
State 11 1.2 0.2

2C (06 @40
$ 297 $ 26,1 $ 311

Actual income taxes reported from contiguaperations are different than would have beenpeed by applying the federal statutory
rate to income from continuing operations befomime taxes. The reasons for this difference afellasvs:

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010

(in millions)
Computed expected federal income exp $ 351 $ 31.¢ $ 33.C
State income taxes, net of federal tax bel 1kt 1.8 2.1
Foreign tax rate differenti (7.€) (2.6) (3.3
China tax clawbac — (4.2 —
Other, ne 0.7 (0.3 (0.9

$ 297 $ 267 $ 314

At December 31, 2012, the Company had doreiet operating loss carry forwards of $21.2 wnillfor income tax purposes; $7.4 million
of the losses can be carried forward indefinitgly,1 million of the losses expire in 2017, and $1illion expire in 2020. The net operating
losses consist of $5.0 million related to Austrigrerations, $2.4 million to Italian operations, ®18illion to Dutch operations, and
$0.6 million related to Chinese operations.
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At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 20EICompany had a valuation allowance of $10.lianiend $9.1 million, respectively, all
of which relates to U.S. capital losses. Managerbeli¢ves that the ability of the Company to usehdosses within the applicable carry
forward period does not rise to the level of theerlikely than not threshold. The Company doeshaoke a valuation allowance with respect tc
other deferred tax assets, as management belieaeis is more likely than not that the Companyl wécover such deferred tax assets.

Changes enacted in income tax laws hadatenml effect on the Company in 2012, 2011 or 2010

Undistributed earnings of the Company'eifgm subsidiaries amounted to approximately $3g8llfon at December 31, 2012,
$282.2 million at December 31, 2011, and $313.0Gonilat December 31, 2010. Those earnings are deresd to be indefinitely reinvested &
accordingly, no provision for U.S. federal and stacome taxes has been recorded thereon. Upaibdti&in of those earnings, in the form of
dividends or otherwise, the Company will be subjeatithholding taxes payable to the various foneiguntries. Determination of the amount
of U.S. income tax liability that would be incurrednot practicable because of the complexitiee@ated with its hypothetical calculation;
however, unrecognized foreign tax credits may lalable to reduce some portion of any U.S. incoaxdlifibility. Withholding taxes of
approximately $9.8 million would be payable upomittance of all previously unremitted earnings acBmber 31, 2012.

(9) Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other liabilities wired the following:

December 31

2012 2011
(in millions)
Commissions and sales incentives pay: $ 40 $ 39t
Product liability and workers' compensat 31.4 30.t
Other 427 38.¢
Income taxes payab 2.1 0.2

$ 116.6 $ 109.(
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Long-term debt consists of the following:

December 31

2012 2011
(in millions)
5.85% notes due April 201 $ 225.C $ 225.(
5.47% notes due May 20: 75.C 75.C
5.05% notes due June 20 75.C 75.C
Revolving credit facility—Eurocurrency loans acergiat
LIBOR or Euro Libor plus an applicable percenta®®§%
as of December 31, 201 — 13.C
Other—consists primarily of European borrowings (at ietd
rates ranging from 5.0% to 6.0¢ 9.€ 11.4
384.¢ 399.¢
Less Current Maturitie 77.1 2C

$ 307.t $ 397«

Principal payments during each of the fiiextyears and thereafter are due as follows (iions): 2013—$77.1; 2014—$2.2; 2015—
$2.2; 2016—%$228.1; 2017—$—, and thereafter—$75.0.

The Company maintains letters of credit thaarantee its performance or payment to thirtigmin accordance with specified terms and
conditions. Amounts outstanding were approxima$3¥.8 million as of December 31, 2012 and $34.%anilas of December 31, 2011. The
Company's letters of credit are primarily assodiatéh insurance coverage and, to a lesser extmatign purchases. The Company's letters of
credit generally expire within one year of issuaand are drawn down against the revolving creditifp. These instruments may exist or
expire without being drawn down. Therefore, theyndbnecessarily represent future cash flow ohilgast

On June 18, 2010, the Company enterecaimote purchase agreement with certain institutiowastors (the 2010 Note Purchase
Agreement). Pursuant to the 2010 Note Purchaseefggat, the Company issued senior notes of $75lmih principal, due June 18, 2020.
The Company will pay interest on the outstandinigibge of the Notes at the rate of 5.05% per anpayable semi-annually on June 18 and
December 18 until the principal on the Notes shatlome due and payable. The Company may, at isngpipon notice, and subject to the
terms of the 2010 Note Purchase Agreement, prejpayyaime all or part of the Notes in an amourttlass than $1 million by paying the
principal amount plus a makehole amount (which is dependent upon the yieltkepective U.S. Treasury securities). The 2010 Rorehas
Agreement includes operational and financial conéavith which the Company is required to compigjuding, among others, maintenance
of certain financial ratios and restrictions onitiddal indebtedness, liens and dispositions. ABetember 31, 2012, the Company was in
compliance with all covenants related to the 20b8eNPurchase Agreement.

On June 18, 2010, the Company enterechimi@dit agreement (the Credit Agreement) among@timpany, certain subsidiaries of the
Company who become borrowers under the Credit Ageed, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Ageswing line lender and letter of
credit issuer, and the other lenders referredeéoeth. The Credit Agreement provides for a $300iom five-year, senior unsecured revolving
credit facility which may be increased by an addlitil $150 million under certain circumstances anglect to the terms of the Credit
Agreement. The Credit
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Agreement has a sublimit of up to $75.0 milliorétters of credit. Borrowings outstanding under@redit Agreement bear interest at a
fluctuating rate per annum equal to (i) in the cafsEurocurrency rate loans, the British Bankersad&sation LIBOR rate plus an applicable
percentage, ranging from 1.70% to 2.30%, determidyecference to the Company's consolidated leeeratip plus, in the case of certain
lenders, a mandatory cost calculated in accordaitbethe terms of the Credit Agreement, or (iilre case of base rate loans and swing line
loans, the highest of (a) the federal funds ratis pL5%, (b) the rate of interest in effect fortsday as announced by Bank of America, N.A. a
its "prime rate,” and (c) the British Bankers Adation LIBOR rate plus 1.0%, plus an applicableceatage, ranging from 0.70% to 1.30%,
determined by reference to the Company's conselidatverage ratio. In addition to paying interesder the Credit Agreement, the Company
is also required to pay certain fees in conneatih the credit facility, including, but not limiteto, a facility fee and letter of credit fees. The
Credit Agreement expires on June 18, 2015. The @ommay repay loans outstanding under the Credi¢ément from time to time without
premium or penalty, other than customary breakagéscif any, and subject to the terms of the Grdgreement.

Under the Credit Agreement, the Compamgdgiired to satisfy and maintain specified finahagios and other financial condition tests.
As of December 31, 2012, the Company was in compdéiavith all covenants related to the Credit Agreetrand had $265.4 million of unus
and available credit under the Credit Agreemem,&illion of stand-by letters of credit outstamglion the Credit Agreement and no
borrowings outstanding under the Credit Agreement.

On April 27, 2006, the Company completqaigate placement of $225.0 million of 5.85% seniosecured notes due April 2016 (the
2006 Note Purchase Agreement). The 2006 Note Psechgreement includes operational and financiaénawnts, with which the Company is
required to comply, including, among others, maiatece of certain financial ratios and restrictionsadditional indebtedness, liens and
dispositions. Events of default under the 2006 NRatechase Agreement include failure to comply vitgHinancial and operational covenants,
as well as bankruptcy and other insolvency evdrts.Company may, at its option, upon notice tortbie holders, prepay at any time all or
part of the Notes in an amount not less than $1lldmby paying the principal amount plus a makbhele amount, which is dependent upon
the yield of respective U.S. Treasury securitiessoADecember 31, 2012, the Company was in comggiavith all covenants related to the
2006 Note Purchase Agreement. The payment of stterethe senior unsecured notes is due semi-agrarafpril 30™ and October 38 of
each year.

On May 15, 2003, the Company completed\af# placement of $125.0 million of senior unsedunotes consisting of $50.0 million
principal amount of 4.87% senior notes due 2010%#%0 million principal amount of 5.47% seniore®tue May 2013. The payment of
interest on the senior unsecured notes is due aemially on May 18" and November 1% of each year. In May 2010, the Company repaid
$50.0 million in principal of 4.87% senior notesedupon maturity. As of December 31, 2012, the Campeas in compliance with all
covenants related to the note purchase agreememiCdmpany expects to pay off the 2013 notes witing cash, use its line of credit, or a
combination of both.

(11) Common Stock

The Class A Common Stock and Class B Com8took have equal dividend and liquidation righiach share of the Company's Class A
Common Stock is entitled to one vote on all matsetsmitted to stockholders, and each share of ®a&smmon Stock is entitled to ten votes
on all such matters. Shares of Class B Common Staxkonvertible into shares of Class A CommoniStoa a
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one-to-one basis, at the option of the holder. ABacember 31, 2012, the Company had reservedbab®, 732,358 of Class A Common
Stock for issuance under its stock-based compemsplans and 6,588,680 shares for conversion afsaCommon Stock to Class A
Common Stock.

On May 16, 2012, the Board of Directorshauized a stock repurchase program of up to twéanishares of the Company's Class A
Common Stock. The stock repurchase program was letedpn July 2012, as the Company repurchasedrtiee two million shares of
Class A common stock at a cost of approximately.&@illion.

On August 2, 2011 the Board of Directorthatized a stock repurchase program. Under theranogthe Company was authorized to
repurchase up to one million shares of our Clagnfkmon Stock. During the three months ended Octdb2011, the Company repurchased
the entire one million shares at a cost of $27 IBani

(12) Stock-Based Compensation

As of December 31, 2012, the Company meaiaththree stock incentive plans under which kepleyees and outside directors have k
granted incentive stock options (ISOs) and nonfjadlistock options (NSOs) to purchase the Compadigss A Common Stock. Only one
plan, the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, is currentigilable for the grant of new stock options, whigk currently being granted only to
employees. Under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plangopthecome exercisable over a four-year periddeatate of 25% per year and expire ten
years after the grant date. ISOs and NSOs gramiger ihe plans may have exercise prices of nothess100% and 50% of the fair marl
value of the Class A Common Stock on the date afitgrespectively. The Company's current practide grant all options at fair market va
on the grant date. At December 31, 2012, 573,96@Bestof Class A Common Stock were authorized fauréugrants of new equity awards
under the Company's 2004 Stock Incentive Plan.

The Company grants shares of restrictetkdtmkey employees and stock awards to non-emplayembers of the Company's Board of
Directors under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan. [Stxeards to non-employee members of the ComparpasdBof Directors vest immediately,
and employees restricted stock awards vest ovaea-year period at the rate of athéd per year. The restricted stock awards arertizeal to
expense on a straight-line basis over the vesgnpg.

The Company also has a Management StoathBse Plan that allows for the granting of restdcttock units (RSUSs) to key employees.
On an annual basis, key employees may elect tiveeagoortion of their annual incentive compensatioRSUs instead of cash. Each RSU
provides the key employee with the right to purehashare of Class A Common Stock at 67% of therfarket value on the date of grant.
RSUs vest ratably over a three-year period frongtla@t date. An aggregate of 2,000,000 sharesasfsCh Common Stock may be issued
under the Management Stock Purchase Plan. At Dezre®ih 2012, 901,937 shares of Class A Common Steck authorized for future gra
under the Company's Management Stock Purchase Plan.

2004 Stock Incentive Plan

At December 31, 2012, total unrecognizemipensation cost related to the unvested stockmpti@as approximately $7.6 million with a
total weighted average remaining term of 3.0 ydarns.2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company recognizegpeansation cost of $2.1 million,
$1.6 million and $1.7 million, respectively, in ke, general and administrative expenses. The Gomypecognized additional stock
compensation expense in 2012 of approximately 80llén in connection with the
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modification of our former Chief Financial Officerdptions related to his retention agreement. Tévagany recognized additional stock
compensation expense in 2011 of approximately 82llfbn in connection with the modification of tHiermer Chief Executive Officer's
options related to his separation agreement.

The following is a summary of stock optictivity and related information:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average
Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Exercise
Options Price Value Options Price Options Price

(Options in thousands)
Outstanding at

beginning of yea 1,272 $ 30.4: 1,30: $ 29.0( 1,30C $ 26.2¢
Grantec 41t 37.61 29t 29.3¢ 282 33.6¢
Cancelled/Forfeiture (33 31.1¢ (78) 30.3¢ (99 23.3¢
Exercisec (590 30.1¢ (24%) 21.6¢ (18t 19.6¢
Outstanding at end «

year 1,06¢ $ 3337 $ 9.62 1,272 $ 30.4: 1,30: $ 29.0C
Exercisable at end ¢

year 36C $ 3091 $ 12.0¢ 745 $ 30.61 76 $ 27.5¢

As of December 31, 2012, the aggregatesitr values of exercisable options were approxéfya#4.3 million, representing the total pre-
tax intrinsic value, based on the Company's clo€ilags A Common Stock price of $42.99 as of Decer8be2012, which would have been
received by the option holders had all option hiddixercised their options as of that date. Thed totrinsic value of options exercised for
2012, 2011 and 2010 was approximately $5.7 millgh9 million and $2.7 million, respectively.

Upon exercise of options, the Company issiiares of Class A Common Stock.

The following table summarizes informatetmout options outstanding at December 31, 2012:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average
Remaining Contractual
Number Exercise Number Exercise
Range of Exercise Price Outstanding Life (years) Price Exercisable Price
(Options in thousands)

$17.30- $29.05 32z 7.5C $ 28.21 12C $ 27.4¢
$29.35- $33.65 282 6.01 32.61 20t 32.22
$35.20- $35.70 46 5.31 35.3¢ 35 35.2¢
$37.41- $40.17 414 9.61 37.67 — —
1,06 78 % 33.3i 36C $ 30.91
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The fair value of each option granted urttler2004 Stock Incentive Plan is estimated ordtte of grant, using the Black-Scholsiton
Model, based on the following weighted average mgsions:

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Expected life (years 6.C 6.C 6.C
Expected stock price volatilit 41.2%  40.9% 41.2%
Expected dividend yiel 1.2% 15% 1.2%
Risk-free interest rat 0.% 16% 1.%

The risk-free interest rate is based upenUd.S. Treasury yield curve at the time of grantlie respective expected life of the option. The
expected life (estimated period of time outstangofgoptions and volatility were calculated usirigtbrical data. The expected dividend yield
of stock is the Company's best estimate of the @rpeuture dividend yield. The Company applieceatimated forfeiture rate of 6.75% for
2012, 2011 and 2010, for its stock options. This veas calculated based upon historical activityiaran estimate of granted shares not
expected to vest. If actual forfeitures differ frdine expected rates, the Company may be requirethke additional adjustments to
compensation expense in future periods.

The above assumptions were used to deterthenweighted average grafate fair value of stock options of $13.49, $1(ah8l $12.36 fc
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2&dgkatively.

The following is a summary of unvestednietdd stock activity and related information:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

(Shares in thousands

Unvested at beginning of ye 152 $  30.3¢ 16z $  31.3¢ 117 $ 28.
Granted 17C 37.62 11¢ 29.51] 10t 33.6¢
Cancelled/Forfeiture (€3] 30.6¢ (14 31.1Z @) 28.0¢
Vested (79) 30.61 (110 30.9¢ (53) 29.2¢
Unvested at end of ye 237 $ 354t 155 $ 30.3¢ 16z $  31.3¢

The total fair value of shares vested duéif12, 2011 and 2010 was $2.5 million, $2.5 millesd $1.5 million, respectively. At
December 31, 2012, total unrecognized compensatienrelated to unvested restricted stock was appedely $7.0 million with a total
weighted average remaining term of 2.2 years. B&222011 and 2010, the Company recognized compensasts of $2.9 million,
$2.4 million and $1.8 million, respectively, in ke, general and administrative expenses. The Gamypecognized additional stock
compensation expense in 2012 of approximately 80ll®n in connection with the modification of ofsrmer Chief Financial Officer's
restricted stock awards related to his retentioe@gent. The Company recognized additional stookpemsation expense in 2011 related to
restricted stock of approximately $0.8 million imnnection with the modification of the former Chiefecutive Officer's stock awards related
to his separation agreement.
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The Company applied an estimated forfeitate of 9.0%, 9.0% and 9.75% for 2012, 2011 arkD2B:spectively, for restricted stock
issued to key employees. The aggregate intrindievaf restricted stock granted and outstanding@pmated $10.2 million representing the
total pre-tax intrinsic value based on the Commaalgsing Class A Common Stock price of $42.99fd3ezember 31, 2012.

Management Stock Purchase P

Total unrecognized compensation cost réladainvested RSUs was approximately $1.0 milliobPecember 31, 2012 with a total
weighted average remaining term of 1.4 years. B&222011 and 2010 the Company recognized compensatst of $0.8 million,
$1.3 million and $1.2 million, respectively, in kafj, general and administrative expenses. Divideteklared for RSUs, that are paid to
individuals, that remain unpaid at December 31 22@ial approximately $0.1 million.

A summary of the Company's RSU activity agldted information is shown in the following tabl

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average
Purchase Intrinsic Purchase Purchase
RSUs Price Value RSUs Price RSUs Price

(RSU's in thousands,
Outstanding at beginning

period 392 $ 18.7¢ 361 $ 16.92 35C $ 18.1¢
Granted 64 99 25.1¢ 15¢ 19.87
Cancelled/Forfeiture (110) (20 20.92 (22) 16.6¢
Settled (150 (58) 18.01 (127 23.9¢
Outstanding at end of peri 19¢ $ 22.8¢ $ 20.11 392 $ 18.7¢ 361 $ 16.92
Vested at end of peric 81 $ 20.3t $ 22.6: 157 $ 15.57 10t $ 15.21

As of December 31, 2012, the aggregat@sitr values of outstanding and vested RSUs wepeoapmately $3.9 million and $1.8 millio
respectively, representing the total pre-tax isidrvalue, based on the Company's closing Classririon Stock price of $42.99 as of
December 31, 2012, which would have been receiyatiddRSUs holders had all RSUs settled as ofdai. The total intrinsic value of RSUs
settled for 2012, 2011 and 2010 was approximatgl@ fillion, $1.2 million and $0.7 million, respetly. Upon settlement of RSUs, the
Company issues shares of Class A Common Stock.
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The following table summarizes informatetvout RSUs outstanding at December 31, 2012:

RSUs Outstanding RSUs Vestec

Number Weighted Average ~ Number Weighted Average

Range of Purchase Price Outstanding Purchase Price Vested Purchase Price

(RSUs in thousands

$10.51- $19.87 86 $ 19.1¢4 61 $ 18.8¢
$25.15- $25.15 55 25.1¢ 20 25.1¢
$26.51- $26.51 55 26.51 - -
19€ $ 22.8¢t 81 § 20.3¢

The fair value of each share issued unteManagement Stock Purchase Plan is estimatdteatate of grant, using the Black-Scholes-
Merton Model, based on the following weighted agerassumptions:

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010

Expected life (years 3.C 3.C 3.C

Expected stock price volatilit 38.2% 44.% 45.¢%
Expected dividend yiel 11% 1.2% 1.5%
Risk-free interest rat 0% 1.2% 1.5%

The risk-free interest rate is based upend.S. Treasury yield curve at the time of grantlfie respective expected life of the RSUs. The
expected life (estimated period of time outstanfsfdRSUs and volatility were calculated using biigtal data. The expected dividend yield of
stock is the Company's best estimate of the exgdatare dividend yield. The Company applied arnested forfeiture rate of 6.3% for 2012,
2011 and 2010, for its RSUs. This rate was caledlagsed upon historical activity and are an estimbgranted shares not expected to vest.
actual forfeitures differ from the expected ratbs, Company may be required to make additionalstidjents to compensation expense in ft
periods.

The above assumptions were used to deterthenweighted average grant-date fair value of R@idnted of $15.68, $16.25 and $12.81
during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The Company distributed dividends of $Qoé4 share for each of 2012, 2011 and 2010 on tinep@oy's Class A Common Stock and
Class B Common Stock.

(13) Employee Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors funded and unfundaetantributing defined benefit pension plans tlogether cover substantially all of its
domestic employees. Benefits are based primarilyeans of service and employees' compensationfurtteng policy of the Company for
these plans is to contribute an annual amountdb@é not exceed the maximum amount that can bectémtifor federal income tax purposes.

On October 31, 2011, the Company's Boatdidctors voted to cease accruals effective Deegr@h, 2011 under both the Company's
Pension Plan and Supplemental Employees RetireRlant The Company recorded a curtailment charg@pfoximately $1.5 million to
write-off previously
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unrecognized prior service costs and reduced thjeqied benefit obligation by $12.5 million. Thedd of Directors also voted to enhance the
Company's existing 401(k) Savings Plan.

The funded status of the defined benefihpland amounts recognized in the consolidateddxalksheets are as follows:

December 31

2012 2011
(in millions)
Change in projected benefit obligatior
Balance at beginning of the ye $ 1212 $ 112
Service cos 0.€ 553
Administration costs pai (0.9 (0.6)
Interest cos 5.7 6.C
Actuarial loss 15.€ 13.€
Benefits paic (4.2 (3.2
Curtailment adjustmet — (12.5)
Balance at end of ye $ 138.C $ 121:
Change in fair value of plan assets
Balance at beginning of the ye $ 108« $ 90.2
Actual gain on asse 11.¢ 14.1
Employer contribution 0.7 7.8
Administration costs pai (0.9 (0.6)
Benefits paic (4.2 (3.2
Fair value of plan assets at end of the $ 1156 $ 108«
Funded status at end of y $ (2229 $ (129

Amounts recognized in the consolidated mz#asheets are as follows:

December 31

2012 2011
(in millions)
Current liabilities $ (06 $ (0.2
Noncurrent liabilities (21.¢) (12.6)
Net amount recognize $ (22.2) $ (129

Amounts recognized in accumulated otherpretmensive income consist of:

December 31
2012 2011
(in millions)
Net actuarial loss recogniz $ 412 $ 31.1
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Information for pension plans with an acalated benefit obligation in excess of plan asastsas follows:

December 31

2012 2011

(in millions)
Projected benefit obligatic $ 138.( $ 13.¢
Accumulated benefit obligatic $ 138.( $ 13.¢€
Fair value of plan asse $ 115¢ $ —

Information for pension plans with planetssn excess of accumulated benefit obligatiorearfollows:

December 31

2012 2011

(in millions)
Projected benefit obligatic $ — $ 107.¢
Accumulated benefit obligatic $ — $ 107.¢
Fair value of plan asse $ — $ 108.¢

The components of net periodic benefit enstas follows:

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010

(in millions)

Service co—benefits earne $ 0€ $ 53 $ 4¢€
Interest costs on benefits obligati 5.7 6.C 5.7
Expected return on asst (6.9 (7.5) (6.0
Prior service cost amortizatic — 0.3 0.3
Net actuarial loss amortizatic 0.6 2.7 2.3
Curtailment charg — 1kt —

Net periodic benefit cos $ — $ 83 $ 6.

The estimated net actuarial loss for thfendd benefit pension plans that will be amortizesn accumulated other comprehensive incoms
into net periodic benefit cost over the next ysa$1.0 million.

Assumptions:
Weighted-average assumptions used to dateripenefit obligations:

December 31
2012 2011
Discount rate 4(% 4.8(%
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Weighted-average assumptions used to detemet periodic benefit costs:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Discount rate 4.8(% 5.50%/4.70%  6.0(%
Long-term rate of return on ass 6.5(% 7.75% 8.5(%
Rate of compensation incree N/A N/A 4.0(%

Discount rates are selected based upos cdteturn at the measurement date utilizing alboatching approach to match the expected
benefit cash flows. In selecting the expected ltergi rate of return on assets, the Company corssitleraverage rate of earnings expected or
the funds invested or to be invested to providdgHerbenefits of this plan. This includes consiagthe trust's asset allocation and the expecte
returns likely to be earned over the life of tharplThis basis is consistent with the prior yede ®riginal 2011 discount rate of 5.5% was
revised to 4.70% at October 31, 2011, the curtaitrdate of the plans.

Plan asset:

The Company's written Retirement Plan Itmest Policy sets forth the investment policy, abijes and constraints of the Watts Water
Technologies, Inc. Pension Plan. This Retiremeah Rivestment Policy, set forth by the Pension Rlammittee, defines general investment
principles and directs investment management padidgressing preservation of capital, risk aversioth adherence to investment discipline.
Investment managers are to make a reasonable tffoontrol risk and are evaluated quarterly againemonly accepted benchmarks to
ensure that the risk assumed is commensurate lgtgiven investment style and objectives.

The portfolio is designed to achieve a beda return of current income and modest growttagpftal, while achieving returns in excess of
the rate of inflation over the investment horizororder to preserve purchasing power of Plan asaBtlan assets are required to be investec
in liquid securities. Derivative investments are allowed.

Prohibited investments include, but arelmoited to the following: futures contracts, priegplacements, options, limited partnerships,
venture-capital investments, interest-only (I0O)npipal-only (PO), and residual tranche collater@di mortgage obligation (CMOs), and Watts
Water Technologies, Inc. stock.

Prohibited transactions include, but arelingited to the following: short selling and mangransactions.
Allowable assets include: cash equivalditsd income securities, equity securities, mufualds, and guaranteed investment contracts.

Specific guidelines regarding allocatiorasets are followed using a liability driven intvesnt (LDI) strategy. Under an LDI strategy,
investments are made based on the expected caghridguired to fund the pension plan's liabiliti€kis cash flow matching technique
requires a plan's asset allocation to be heavilghted toward fixed income securities. The Compsuaytrent allocation target is 85% fixed
income, 15% equities and other investments. Wighréltent plan curtailment, the Company expectsallasation target to increase to 90% or
more in fixed income in 2013. Investment performeaiscmonitored on a regular basis and investmentseaallocated to stay within specific
guidelines. The securities of any one company eegunent agency should not exceed 10% of the
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total fund, and no more than 20% of the total fehduld be invested in any one industry. Individuedsury securities may represent 50% of
the total fund, while the total allocation to tregsbonds and notes may represent up to 100% d?ldngs aggregate bond position.

The weighted average asset allocationsbgtacategory are as follows:

December 31

Asset Category 2012 2011
Equity securities 9.6% 13.2%
Debt securitie! 85.2 77.4
Other 5.1 9.2
Total 100.% 100.(%

The following table presents the investraéntthe pension plan measured at fair value aebéer 31, 2012 and 2011:

December 31, 201, December 31, 201
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in millions)
Money market
funds $ 12 $ 03 $ — $ 18 $ — $ 4¢ $ — $ 49
Equity securities
U.S. equity
securities(a 8.3 — — 8.3 8.0 — — 8.0
Non-U.S.
equity
securities(a 1.4 — — 1.4 2.3 — — 2.3
Other equity
securities(b 1.3 — — 1.3 4.1 — — 4.1
Debt securities
U.S.
governmen 18.¢ — — 18.¢ 19.€ — — 19.€
U.S. and non-
uU.S.
corporate(c — 79.C — 79.C — 63.2 — 63.2
Other
investments
(d) 4.4 1.1 — 5.5 4.9 1.C — 5.9
Total
investments $ 354 $ 804 $ — $ 115¢ $ 392 $ 692 $ — $ 108.
(a) Includes investments in common stock from digendustries

(b) Includes investments in index and exchangaetidunds
(c) Includes investment grade bonds from divens@stries

(d) Includes investments in real estate investmentsuegchanc-traded funds, commodity mutual funds and accrutstes:
Cash flows
The information related to the Companyssen funds cash flow is as follows:

December 31

2012 2011
(in millions)
Employer Contribution: $ 07 $ 7.€

Benefit Payment $ 42 $ 3.z
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The Company expects to contribute approteiya50.6 million in 2013.

Expected benefit payments to be paid byp#hesion plans are as follows:

(in millions)

During fiscal year ending December 31, 2! $ 4.t
During fiscal year ending December 31, 2! $ 4.¢
During fiscal year ending December 31, 2( $ 5.3
During fiscal year ending December 31, 2! $ 5.€
During fiscal year ending December 31, 2( $ 6.C
During fiscal years ending December 31, 2018 thinoug

December 31, 202 $ 34.¢

Additionally, all of the Company's domestimployees are eligible to participate in the Comyfs®401(k) savings plan. Effective
January 1, 2012, the Company provided a base batitn of 2% of an employee's salary, regardlesstather the employee participates in
the plan. Further, the Company matched the contabwf up to 100% of the first 4% of an employessatribution. The Company's match
contribution for the year ended December 31, 2042 $4.0 million. During 2011 and 2010, the Compar@jched a specified percentage of
employee contributions, subject to certain limdas. The Company's match contributions for thegyeaded December 31, 2011 and 2010
were $0.5 million in each year. Charges for Europgension plans approximated $6.0 million, $6.dianiland $3.5 million for the years enc
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivelysd hests relate to plans administered by certaiogean subsidiaries, with benefits
calculated according to government requirementspaidi out to employees upon retirement or changamgfloyment.

The Company entered into a Supplementalgemsation Agreement (the Agreement) with TimothiA&ne on September 1, 1996. Per
the Agreement, upon ceasing to be an employeeeattmpany, Mr. Horne must make himself availaldereguested by the Board, to work a
minimum of 300 but not more than 500 hours per wsaa consultant in return for certain annual caorepton as long as he is physically able
to do so. Mr. Horne retired effective December&102, and therefore the Supplemental Compensativacbegan on January 1, 2003. If
Mr. Horne complies with the consulting provisiorfgle agreement above, he shall receive suppleinemtgpensation on an annual basis,
subject to cost of living increases each yearxthange for the services performed, as long as phyisically able to do so. The payment for
consulting services provided by Mr. Horne will bepensed as incurred by the Company. During thesyeaded 2012, 2011 and 2010,
Mr. Horne received payments of $0.6 million, $0.Bion and $0.5 million, respectively. In the evesitphysical disability, Mr. Horne will
continue to receive this payment annually. In adaonce with GAAP, the Company accrues for the fupaogtretirement disability benefits o\
the period from January 1, 2003, to the time incltVr. Horne becomes physically unable to perforsncbnsulting services (the period in
which the disability benefits are earned). Mr. Hors still active as a consultant in accordancé tie terms of the Agreement.

(14) Contingencies and Environmental Remediation
Accrual and Disclosure Polic

The Company is a defendant in numeroud lag#ers arising from its ordinary course of opierss, including those involving product
liability, environmental matters and commercialpdites.
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The Company reviews its lawsuits and otbgal proceedings on an ongoing basis and follqpsapriate accounting guidance when
making accrual and disclosure decisions. The Compatablishes accruals for matters when the Compassgsses that it is probable that a
has been incurred and the amount of the loss cagdsenable estimated, net of any applicable imserproceeds. The Company does not
establish accruals for such matters when the Coyngaes not believe both that it is probable thiaisa has been incurred and the amount of
the loss can be reasonable estimated. The Compssgssment of whether a loss is probable is lmasisl assessment of the ultimate outc
of the matter following all appeals.

There may continue to be exposure to logxcess of any amount accrued. When it is postildstimate the reasonably possible loss or
range of loss above the amount accrued for theensatisclosed, that estimate is aggregated antbsiést The Company records legal costs
associated with its legal contingencies as incurred

As of December 31, 2012, the Company estisnthat the aggregate amount of reasonably pedsis in excess of the amount accrued
for its legal contingencies is approximately $4 iHliom pre-tax. With respect to the estimate ofseaably possible loss, management has
estimated the upper end of the range of reasomeatsyible loss based on (i) the amount of money damalaimed, where applicable, (ii) the
allegations and factual development to date, dugilable defenses based on the allegations, atidjather potentially liable parties. This
estimate is based upon currently available infoilonaéind is subject to significant judgment and @eig of assumptions, and known and
unknown uncertainties. The matters underlying gtemate will change from time to time, and actwults may vary significantly from the
current estimate. In the event of an unfavorabteaue in one or more of the matters described helosvultimate liability may be in excess
amounts currently accrued, if any, and may be riztierthe Company's operating results or cashdgléaw a particular quarterly or annual
period. However, based on information currentlywndo it, management believes that the ultimateamue of all matters described below, as
they are resolved over time, is not likely to havmaterial effect on the financial position of tBempany.

On March 8, 2012, Watts Water Technolodies., Watts Regulator Co., and Watts Plumbing Tedbgies, Inc. were named as
defendants in a putative nationwide class actionpiaint filed in the U.S. District Court for the Rbern District of California seeking to
recover damages and other relief based on theedlzglure of toilet connectors. The complaint seaknong other items, damages in an
unspecified amount, replacement costs, injunctliefr and attorneys' fees and costs.

The Company is unable to estimate a rafgeasonably possible loss for the above mattarhith damages have not been specified
because: (i) the proceedings are in the early stgiethere is uncertainty as to the likelihoddacclass being certified or the ultimate sizehs
class; (iii) there is uncertainty as to pendingiom; (iv) there are significant factual issuedéoresolved; and (v) there are novel legal issues
presented. However, based on information curréattywn to the Company, it does not believe thatdahprsceedings will have a material efi
on its financial position, results of operationasle flows or liquidity.

Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA) Settlem

On October 13, 2011, the Company entereddrsettlement with the SEC to resolve allegatmmrecerning potential violations of the
FCPA at CWV, a former indirect wholly-owned subaigi of the Company in China. Under the terms ofsilement, without admitting or
denying the SEC's allegations, the Company condaatentry of an administrative cease-and-desagrounder the
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books and records and internal controls provisadithe FCPA. The Company also agreed to pay t&H€ $3.6 million in disgorgement and
prejudgment interest, and $0.2 million in penalties

The amounts paid by the Company in conaratiith the settlement were fully accrued by thenpany as of December 31, 2010. The
Company believes that this settlement resolvegaalernment investigations concerning CWV's salestimes and potential FCPA violations.
In 2012, Company received a $1.1 million paymeofra service provider related to issues conceraiftgmer divested operation.

Product Liability

The Company is subject to a variety of pog liabilities in connection with product lialiif cases. The Company maintains product
liability and other insurance coverage, which tltempany believes to be generally in accordance wihstry practices. For product liability
cases in the U.S., management establishes its girbaloility accrual by utilizing third-party actual valuations which incorporate historical
trend factors and the Company's specific claim&s&pce derived from loss reports provided by tpiagty administrators. In other countries,
the Company maintains insurance coverage withivelgthigh deductible payments, as product liapititaims tend to be smaller than those
experienced in the U.S.

Environmental Remediatic

The Company has been named as a potentaippnsible party with respect to a limited numifddentified contaminated sites. The
levels of contamination vary significantly fromesib site as do the related levels of remediatfforts. Environmental liabilities are recorded
based on the most probable cost, if known, or eresitimated minimum cost of remediation. Accruadsrent discounted to their present value,
unless the amount and timing of expenditures aszlfand reliably determinable. The Company accegémated environmental liabilities
based on assumptions, which are subject to a nuafifactors and uncertainties. Circumstances thataffect the reliability and precision of
these estimates include identification of additi®ies, environmental regulations, level of clganeiquired, technologies available, number
and financial condition of other contributors tonediation and the time period over which remedratiay occur. The Company recognizes
changes in estimates as new remediation requirsnae@tdefined or as new information becomes availab

Asbestos Litigatiol

The Company is defending approximatelyal@siuits in different jurisdictions, alleging injuoy death as a result of exposure to asbhestos
The complaints in these cases typically name &latgnber of defendants and do not identify andquaar Watts Water products as a source
of asbestos exposure. To date, the Company haismethta dismissal in every case before it has rehtisd because discovery has failed to
yield evidence of substantial exposure to any WWAliser products

Other Litigation

Other lawsuits and proceedings or claimisjrey from the ordinary course of operations, @s® pending or threatened against the
Company.
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Fair Value

The carrying amounts of cash and cash atpnts, short-term investments, trade receivablddrade payables approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of these financisirirments.

The fair value of the Company's 5.47% sendaies due 2013, 5.85% senior notes due 2016 @d&bsenior notes due 2020 is based on
guoted market prices of similar notes (level 2)e Tair value of the Company's variable rate debt@gmates its carrying value. The carrying
amount and the estimated fair market value of the@any's long-term debt, including the currentipartare as follows:

December 31

2012 2011
(in millions)
Carrying amoun $ 384.6 $ 399
Estimated fair valu $ 420.6 $ 440t

Financial Instrument:

The Company measures certain financialtassel liabilities at fair value on a recurringisascluding foreign currency derivatives,
deferred compensation plan assets and relatetitifaBihere are no cash flow hedges as of DecerBbeP012. The fair value of these certain
financial assets and liabilities were determinedgighe following inputs at December 31, 2012 afd12

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2012 Usin

Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other Significant
Markets for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in millions)
Assets
Plan asset for deferred
compensation(1 $ 42 % 42 % — $ —
Total asset $ 42 $ 42 $ — 3 —
Liabilities
Plan liability for deferred
compensation(Z $ 42 % 4.2 $ — 3 —
Contingent consideration(; 5.2 — — 5.2
Total liabilities $94 % 42 $ — 3 5.2
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(15) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011 Usin

Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other Significant
Markets for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in millions)
Assets
Plan asset for deferred
compensation(1 $ 4C 9 4C $ — 3 —
Total asset $4C $ 4C $ — 3 —
Liabilities
Plan liability for deferred
compensation(Z $ 4C $ 4.C $ — 3 —
Contingent consideration(; 1.1 — — 11
Total liabilities $ 51 % 4C $ — % 1.1
Q) Included in other, net on the Company's cadatéd balance sheet.

(2) Included in other noncurrent liabilities on the Gmany's consolidated balance sh:

The table below provides a summary of thenges in fair value of all financial assets aadilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis using significant unobservable inputs (L&ydbr the period December 31, 2011 to Decembef312.

Total realized and
unrealized gains
(losses) included in

Balance Purchases Balance
December 31, sales, Comprehensive December 31,
2011 settlements, net Earnings income 2012
(in millions)
Contingent consideratic $ 11 % 51 ¢ @10 % — 3 5.2

In 2010, a contingent liability of $1.9 tiwh was recognized as an estimate of the acquistate fair value of the contingent
consideration in the BRAE acquisition. This liatyilwas classified as Level 3 under the fair valigedrchy as it was based on the weighted
probability of achievement of a future performanuetric as of the date of the acquisition, which wasobservable in the market. During the
year ended December 31, 2011 and the year endesivibec 31, 2012, the estimate of the fair valudefdontingent consideration was redt
to $1.1 million and subsequently to $0.2 millioasbkd on the revised probability of achievemenhefftiture performance metric. Failure to
meet the performance metric would reduce thislitgtid zero, while complete achievement would gase this liability to the full remaining
purchase price of $4.8 million.

In connection with the tekmar Control Sysseacquisition in 2012, a contingent liability &.$ million was recognized as the estimate of
the acquisition date fair value of the contingesgideration. This liability was classified as LeSeinder the fair value hierarchy as it was
based on the probability of achievement of a fupgdormance metric as of the date of the acqaisitivhich was not observable in the market
During the year ended December 31, 2012, the eiofdair value of contingent consideration wadueed by $0.1 million based on the
revised probability of achievement of the futurefpemance metric. Failure to meet the performane¢rics would reduce this liability to zero;
while complete achievement would increase thisllighio the full remaining purchase price of $&lion.
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Short-term investment securities as of Dewmer 31, 2012 consist of a certificate of depodih & remaining maturity of greater than three
months at the date of purchase, for which the aagrgmount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Cash equivalents consist of instrumenth wétnaining maturities of three months or leshatdate of purchase and consist primarily of
certificates of deposit and money market fundswbich the carrying amount is a reasonable estim@tair value.

The Company uses financial instruments ftiome to time to enhance its ability to manage,riskluding foreign currency and commod
pricing exposures, which exist as part of its ongdiusiness operations. The use of derivativessgthe Company to counterparty credit risl
for nonperformance and to market risk related @nges in currency exchange rates and commoditgpriche Company manages its expo
to counterparty credit risk through diversificatiohcounterparties. The Company's counterpartigeiivative transactions are substantial
commercial banks with significant experience usingh derivative instruments. The impact of marlksit on the fair value and cash flows of
the Company's derivative instruments is monitoned the Company restricts the use of derivativerfaia instruments to hedging activities.
The Company does not enter into contracts fortigagurposes nor does the Company enter into arntyacts for speculative purposes. The
of derivative instruments is approved by senior aggament under written guidelines.

The Company has exposure to a number efgorcurrency rates, including the Canadian Dotla,Euro, the Chinese Yuan and the
British Pound. To manage this risk, the Companyegaty uses a layering methodology whereby at tteeaf any quarter, the Company has
generally entered into forward exchange contratislwhedge approximately 50% of the projected aummpany purchase transactions for the
next twelve months. The Company primarily uses stiategy for the purchases between Canada and $1ér'he average volume of contracts
can vary but generally approximates $5 to $15 amilin open contracts at the end of any given quatteDecember 31, 2012, the Company
had contracts for notional amounts aggregatingapmately $4.5 million. The Company accounts fag forward exchange contracts as an
economic hedge. Realized and unrealized gainscmseéd on the contracts are recognized in othesr(iaf expense in the consolidated
statement of operations. These contracts do ng¢ciuihe Company to significant market risk frontleange movement because they offset
gains and losses on the related foreign currenogrd@éated transactions. As of December 31, 201228id, the Company had no outstanc
swaps.

The Company recorded income (loss) of axprately $0.1 million, $0.6 million and $0.5 milliain 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, tc
other expense (income), net in the consolidatedrsint of operations from the impact of derivativ&ruments.
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Leases

The Company leases certain manufacturioiitfas, sales offices, warehouses, and equipn@enerally, the leases carry renewal
provisions and require the Company to pay mainteaaosts. Future minimum lease payments underatdgéises and non-cancelable
operating leases as of December 31, 2012 arelas/fol

Capital Leases Operating Leases
(in millions)
2013 $ 15 $ 9.t
2014 1.2 7.4
2015 1.4 5.2
2016 14 £
2017 14 0.7
Thereafte 4.C 2.2
Total $ 11.C $ 27.€
Less amount representing interest (at rates rarfging 4.2% to
8.7%) 1.z
Present value of net minimum capital lease payn 9.¢
Less current installments of obligations under dpease: 1.2
Obligations under capital leases, excluding curiestallments $ 8.€

Carrying amounts of assets under capitaldenclude:

December 31

2012 2011
(in millions)
Buildings $ 16.6 $ 16.5
Machinery and equipme 1.2 2.1
18.C 18.€
Less accumulated depreciati (3.9 (4.9
$ 141 $ 13.¢

(16) Segment Information

The Company operates in three geograplgimsats: North America, EMEA, and Asia. Each of thesgments sells similar products, is
managed separately and has separate financialstisal are reviewed by the Company's chief opggatecision-maker. All intercompany
sales transactions have been eliminated. Salesgiyrr are based upon location of the entity recgytle sale. The accounting policies for €
segment are the same as those described in theayrofrsignificant accounting policies (see Note 2)
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The following is a summary of the Comparsygificant accounts and balances by segmentnoded to its consolidated totals:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Net Sale:
North America $ 835.( $ 810¢ $ 785t
EMEA 583.¢ 595.k 468.3
Asia 26.¢ 21.7 20.¢
Consolidated net sali $1,445.¢ $1,428.. $1,274.¢
Operating income (los!
North America $ 96F $ 111¢ $ 106..
EMEA 52.€ 28.7 437
Asia 6.5 12.2 (0.5)
Subtotal reportable segmel 155.¢ 152.t 149.¢
Corporate(*) (32.2) (35.9) (35.9
Consolidated operating incor 123.¢ 116.5 114.2
Interest incom 0.7 1.C 1.C
Interest expens (24.6) (25.9) (22.9)
Other income (expense), r 0.8 (0.9 2.1
Income from continuing operations before
income taxe: $ 1002 $ 911 $ 94t
Identifiable Assets (at end of peric
North America $ 810¢ $ 814 $ 871¢
EMEA 813.¢ 773.2 692.¢
Asia 84.c 92.t 79.7
Discontinued operatior — 14.C 1.8
Consolidated identifiable asst $1,709.C $1,694.C $1,646.:
Long-Lived Assets (at end of perio
North America $ 80€ $ 748 $ 774
EMEA 128.2 133.: 104.¢
Asia 14.¢ 15.C 15.F
Consolidated lor-lived asset: $ 223¢ $ 2231 $ 197t
Capital Expenditure
North America $ 17¢ $ 8.3 $ 9.1
EMEA 10.t 13.€ 14.¢
Asia 1.¢ 0.7 0.7
Consolidated capital expenditul $ 306 $ 22¢€6 $ 24.¢
Depreciation and Amortizatic
North America $ 19.€ $ 187 $ 17.€
EMEA 27.7 30.2 24.¢
Asia 2.1 2.C 2.C

Consolidated depreciation and amortizas $ 494 $ 50.¢ $ 44.¢

* Corporate expenses are primarily for administeatompensation expense, internal controls cpstdessional
fees, including legal and audit expenses, sharehgsletvices and benefit administration costs. Tlests are not
allocated to the geographic segments as they aveedi as corporate functions that support all aivi
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The following includes U.S. net sales an8.Uproperty, plant and equipment of the CompaXgish American segment:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
U.S. net sale $ 7474 $ 732.¢ $ 7127
U.S. property, plant and equipment, net (at enc
period) $ 751 $ 69¢ $ 724

The following includes intersegment sales for N@&ktherica, EMEA and Asia:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Intersegment Sale
North America $ 53 $ 33 % 3¢
EMEA 10.¢ 8.4 7.€
Asia 139.( 132.¢ 115.¢
Intersegment sale $ 155.2 $ 144.¢ $ 127.(

The Company sells its products into variend markets around the world and groups net salsrd parties into four product categories.
Because many of the Company's sales are througfbdisrs and third-party manufacturers' repres@rds, a portion of the product
categorization is based on management's underatanéifinal product use and, as such, allocatiasetbeen made to align sales into a prc
category. Net sales to third parties for the fawdpct categories are as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Net Sales

Residential & commercial flow contr $ 785¢ $ 751 $ 652.:
HVAC & gas 448.F 471.F 433.¢
Drains & water r-use 138.¢ 135.c 122.2
Water quality 72.4 70.2 66.¢
Consolidated net sal $ 1,445¢ $ 1,428.. $ 1,274.¢
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(17) Quatrterly Financial Information (unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(in millions, except per share information)

Year ended December 31, 201

Net sales $ 361 $ 367« $ 357.& $ 359.
Gross profit 128.t 130.¢ 128.¢ 129.%
Income from continuing operations 15.t 18.2 18.t 18.4
Net income 15.7 18.5 18.7 15.5
Per common share;
Basic
Income from continuing operations 0.4z 0.5C 0.5: 0.52
Net income 0.4z 0.51 0.5¢ 0.44
Diluted
Income from continuing operations 0.4z 0.5C 0.52 0.52
Net income 0.4z 0.51 0.5: 0.44
Dividends per common share 0.11 0.11 0.11 0.11
Year ended December 31, 2C
Net sales $ 329.¢ $ 3732 $ 367t $ 357t
Gross profit 121.( 129.¢ 134.5 127.¢
Income from continuing operatiol 11.1 12.7 23.4 17.2
Net income 11.1 14.€ 23.7 17.C
Per common shar
Basic
Income from continuing operatiol 0.3C 0.34 0.63 0.47
Net income 0.3C 0.3¢ 0.6: 0.47
Diluted
Income from continuing operatiol 0.2¢ 0.34 0.62 0.47
Net income 0.2¢ 0.3¢ 0.6% 0.47
Dividends per common sha 0.11 0.11 0.11 0.11

(18) Subsequent Events

On February 19, 2013, the Company declargdarterly dividend of eleven cents ($0.11) parsion each outstanding share of Class A
Common Stock and Class B Common Stock.
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For the Three Years Ended December 31:

Balance At Additions Additions Balance At
Beginning of Charged To Charged To End of
Period Expense Other Accounts Deductions Period

Year Ended December 31,

2010
Allowance for doubtful

accounts $ 7.5 2.7 — 1.9 $ 8.¢
Reserve for excess and

obsolete inventorie $ 25.% 4.4 0.4 6.6) $ 23.¢
Year Ended December 31,

2011
Allowance for doubtful

accounts $ 8.9 1.1 0.2 1.2) $ 9.1
Reserve for excess and

obsolete inventorie $ 23.¢ 6.1 1.2 (5.1) $ 26.2
Year Ended December 31

2012
Allowance for doubtful

accounts $ 9.1 1.2 1.C (1.6 $ 9.7
Reserve for excess an

obsolete inventories $ 26.2 6.€ 0.4 (6.2 $ 27.C
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Exhibit No. Description
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amend&x
3.2 Amended and Restated -Laws(1)
9.1 The Amended and Restated George B. Horne Votingt kgreement-1+997 dated as
September 14, 1999(1
10.1" Supplemental Compensation Agreement effective &epfember 1, 1996 between the
Registrant and Timothy P. Horne(9), Amendment Nalated July 25, 2000(16), and
Amendment No. 2 dated October 23, 200:
10.2" Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Reegig and certain directors and
officers of the Registrant(t
10.2" 1991 Non-Employee Directors' Nonqualified Stock i@ptPlan(10), and Amendment
No. 1(9)
10.£" Watts Water Technologies, Inc. Pension Plan (ameadd restated effective as of
January 1, 2006) and First Amendment(20), Secondrment, Third Amendment,
Fourth Amendment, Fifth Amendment and Sixth Ameniiiel)
10.E Registration Rights Agreement dated July 25, 198
10.€° Executive Incentive Bonus Plan, as amended andteesas of January 1, 2008
10.7 Amended and Restated Stock Restriction Agreemeaatidactober 30, 1991(2), and
Amendment dated August 26, 1997(
10.€° Retention Agreement dated as of June 14, 2012 betthe Registrant and William C.
McCartney (22
10.€" Watts Industries, Inc. 2003 N-Employee Directors' Stock Option Plan
10.1C"  Watts Water Technologies, Inc. Management Stockhase Plan (Amended and
Restated as of January 1, 2005), Amendment Nod Aamrendment No. 2(19), and
Amendment No. 3(11
10.11 Note Purchase Agreement dated as of May 15, 200&bea the Registrant and t
Purchasers named in Schedule A thereto relatitiget®egistrant's $50,000,000 4.87%
Senior Notes, Series A, due May 15, 2010 and $75000 5.47% Senior Notes,
Series B, due May 15, 2013(
10.1z Form of 5.47% Senior Note due May 15, 201:
10.1&"  Watts Water Technologies, Inc. Amended and Res2(6d Stock Incentive Plan(2
10.1° Non-Employee Director Compensation Arrangeme
10.1"  Watts Water Technologies, Inc. Supplemental Emm@eyRetirement Plan as Amended
and Restated Effective May 4, 2004, First Amendnagt Second Amendment(20),
Third Amendment and Fourth Amendment(
10.1€* Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under\Wetts Water Technologies, Inc.
2004 Stock Incentive Plan (1
10.17 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement unther Watts Water
Technologies, Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plani
10.1€  Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Empley under the Watts Water

Technologies, Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (Imezetal Vesting)(19
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.1¢*

10.2¢*

10.21

10.22

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.23

10.2¢

10.2¢

11
21
23

31.1

31.z

32.1

32.2

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Eoydes under the Watts Water
Technologies, Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (Gliéfsting)(18)

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Nongtoyee Directors under the
Watts Water Technologies, Inc. 2004 Stock Incenilan(17)

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 27, 2086veen the Registrant and
Purchasers named in Schedule A thereto relatitiget®egistrant's $225,000,000 5.85%
Senior Notes due April 30, 2016(

Form of 5.85% Senior Note due April 30, 201€

Subsidiary Guaranty, dated as of April 27, 2006 dnnection with the Registrant's
5.85% Senior Notes due April 30, 2016 executedhbysubsidiary guarantors party
thereto, including the form of Joinder to Subsidi@uaranty(4

First Amendment, dated as of April 27, 2006, todNBtirchase Agreement dated as of
May 15, 2003 among the Registrant and the purchasened therein(«

Credit Agreement, dated as of June 18, 2010, arntf@nRegistrant, certain subsidiaries
of the Registrant as Borrowers, Bank of Americad.Nas Administrative Agent, Swing
Line Lender and L/C Issuer and the other lenddesned to therein(21

Guaranty, dated as of June 18, 2010, by the Ragtsind the Subsidiaries of the
Registrant set forth therein, in favor of Bank ohérica, N.A. and other lenders referred
to therein(21

Note Purchase Agreement, dates as of June 18, B8fWleen the Registrant a
Purchasers named in Schedule A thereto relatitiget®egistrants $75,000,000 5.05%
Senior Notes due June 18, 2020(

Form of 5.05% Senior Note due June 18, 2020

Form of Subsidiary Guaranty in connection with Registrants 5.05% Senior Notes due
June 18, 2020, including the form of Joinder toSdilary Guaranty(21

Statement Regarding Computation of Earnings perr@omShare(13
Subsidiarie
Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Pukdicounting Firm

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 13da)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ame!

Certification of Principal Financial Officer purquao Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ame

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursudo 18 U.S.C. Section 13!

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursitdo 18 U.S.C. Section 13!

101.INS™* XBRL Instance Documen

101.SCHF”™ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL™ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntn
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Exhibit No. Description

101.DEP* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docun

101.LAB™ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

101.PRF™* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenir

1)
)

©)

(4)
®)

(6)

()
(8)
9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

17

(18)

(19)

(20)

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @uRReport on Form 8-K dated July 12, 2010 (File Bi@1-11499).
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @uiReport on Form 8-K dated November 14, 1991 (Nie 00111499).
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's AhReport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decemlie2802 (File
No. 001-11499).

Incorporated by reference to the Registraiiisent Report on Form 8-K dated April 27, 200dgMo. 001-11499).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrdralsn S-1 (No. 33-6515) as part of the Second Amemdro such Form S-1
dated August 21, 1986.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @ugrReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended &aper 30, 2012
(File No. 001-11499).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @tuiReport on Form 8-K dated May 15, 2003 (File B@1-11499).
Incorporated by reference to the Registraditigent Report on Form 8-K dated May 14, 2008 (Rite 001-11499).

Incorporated by reference to the Registraiisual Report on Form 10-K for year ended Junel906 (File No. 001-
11499).

Incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 1 taRbgistrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for tharyended
June 30, 1992 (File No. 001-11499).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's AhReport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decemlie2811 (File
No. 001-11499).

Incorporated by reference to the Registraisual Report on Form 10-K for year ended Junel99y (File No. 001-
11499).

Incorporated by reference to notes to Consolidkiedncial Statements, Note 2 of this Report.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @ugrReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 3uB005 (File
No. 001-11499).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's AhReport on Form 10-K for year ended June 30, 1g98 No. 001-
11499).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrapifarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarter endept&aber 30, 2000 (File
No. 001-11499).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @ugrReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 4u8010 (File
No. 001-11499).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @dgrReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended &aper 26, 2004
(File No. 001-11499).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrapifarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endldy 1, 2007 (File
No. 001-11499).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's AhReport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decemlie2807 (File
No. 00-11499).
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(21)
(22)

(23)

*%

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @uiReport on Form 8-K dated June 18, 2010 (File 004.-11499).
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @uiRReport on Form 8-K dated June 14, 2012 (File00d.-11499).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's AhReport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembe2810 (File
No. 001-11499).

Management contract or compensatory plan omageenent.

Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are fobowing formatted in XBRL (Extensible Businessgeting Language):

(i) Consolidated Statements of Operations for tearg Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,dfis@idated
Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Yeade@&December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, (iii) Codat#d Balance
Sheets at December 31, 2012 and December 31, @@lConsolidated Statements of Stockholders' Brfait the Years
Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, (v) Catadeli Statements of Cash Flows for the Years EDdegmber 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010, and (vi) Notes to Consolidkiadncial Statement
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Exhibit 10.14
WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
Non-Employee Director Compensation

The annual compensation payable by Watts Waterrk#opies, Inc. to non-employee Directors as deteechiby the Board of Directors of the
Corporation on July 31, 2012 is as follows:

. $60,000 annual retainer;

«  Annual grant of stock with a fair market value be tlate of grant equal to $90,000;

*  The Chairman of the Board shall receive an addifiannual retainer of $40,000;

*  The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall receineadditional annual retainer of $17,500;

e The Chairman of the Compensation Committee shedlive an additional annual retainer of $12,500;

*  The Chairman of the and the Nominating and CorpgoGivernance Committee shall receive an additianatial retainer of
$5,000; and

»  There shall be no additional compensation paigé&aticipation in Board or committee meetings.




Entity Name

Domestic Jurisdiction

Doing Business A«

Exhibit 21

BAR GmbH

Black Teknigas & Electro Controls Limite
BLUCHER France SARI
BLUCHER Germany Gmbt
BLUCHER Metal A/S

BLUCHER Norway AS

BLUCHER Sweden AE

BLUCHER UK LTD

Blue Ridge Atlantic, Inc

BM Stainles Steel Drains Limite
Desbordes S.A.¢

Dormont Manufacturing Compatr
Electro Controls Ltd

Flomatic Corporatiol

HF Scientific, Inc.

Kanmor Control Systems Lt
Kanmor Holdings Ltd

Orion Enterprises, Inc

Socla Benelux S.P.R.|

Socla Italia S.r.l

Socla SAS

Socla Valves and Controls Iberica !
Tekmar Control Systems Lt
Tekmar Control Systems, In
Tekmar Holdings Ltd

Valpes S.A.S

Watts (Ningbo) International Trading Co., L
Watts (Shanghai) Management Company Lim
Watts Asia Pacific Sales Pte. L
Watts Belgium Holding Bvb

Watts Canada Finance Company L
Watts Denmark Holding Ap

Watts Drainage Products, Ir

Watts Electronics S.A.¢

Watts France Holding S.A..

Watts Germany Holding Gmb
Watts Industries Belgium Bvk
Watts Industries Bulgaria EA
Watts Industries Deutschland Gml|
Watts Industries Europe B

Watts Industries France S.A.
Watts Industries Iberica S

Watts Industries Italia S.r.

Watts Industries Luxembou

Watts Industries Middle East Fz
Watts Industries Netherlands E
Watts Industries Nordic Al

Watts Industries Polska Sp. z.c

Germany
United Kingdom
France
Germany
Denmark
Norway
Sweder

United Kingdom
North Caroline
United Kingdom
France
Pennsylvani:
United Kingdom
New York
Florida

British Columbia
British Columbia
Kansas
Belgium

Italy

France

Spain

British Columbia
Washingtor
British Columbia
France

China

China
Singapore
Belgium
Delaware
Denmark
Delaware
France

France
Germany
Belgium
Bulgaria
Germany
Netherland:s
France

Spain

Italy
Luxembourg
Dubai
Netherlands
Sweder

Poland

Flo-Safe, Laboratory Enterprises, Orion Fittir




Watts Industries Tunisia S.A.
Watts Industries U.K. Ltc
Watts Insulation Gmbt

Watts Insulation N\
Watts Intermes AC

Watts Intermes Gmb!
Watts Italy Holding S.r.|
Watts Plumbing Technologies (Taizhou) Co. L

Watts Premier, Inc
Watts Regulator Co.

Watts U.K. Ltd.

Watts Valve (Ningbo) Co., Ltc
Watts Valve (Taizhou) Co., Lt
Watts Water Quality and Conditioning Products, Inc.

Watts Water Technologies (Canada), |
Watts Water Technologies Latin America S.A. de
Watts Water Technologies, Ir

Tunisia

United Kingdom
Austria

Belgium
Switzerland
Austria

Italy

China

Arizona
Massachusetts

United Kingdom
China

China
Delaware

Federally Chartere
Mexico
Delaware

Watts, FEBCO, Mueller Steam Specialty, Savard
Plumbing Company, Powers, Watts Radiant, Sea

Flowmatic Systems, Alamo Water Refiners, Topway
Global
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Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Watts Water Technologies, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by refeecincthe registration statements (Nos. 333-1423349422, 33-64627, 333-105798, 333-
108699, 333-115968, and 33-30377) on Form S-8 ldnd.(333-85862 and 333-180402) on Form S-3 of Wa#ser Technologies, Inc. of our
reports dated February 27, 2013, with respectdéatnsolidated balance sheets of Watts Water Téaties, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related cdasedl statements of operations, comprehensive iacstockholders' equity, and cash fl
for each of the years in the three-year period @mecember 31, 2012, and the related financiadistant schedule, and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2012, which reports appear in the DeceBthe2012 annual report on Form 10-K
of Watts Water Technologies, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 27, 2013
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Exhibit 31.1
WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, David J Coghlan, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fKVatts Water Technologies, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortémnstate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andtffier periods presented in this report;

4, The company's other certifying officer(s) araté responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company hade:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tlesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatiieg to the company, including its consolidatebsidiaries, is made known
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal control over finanogdorting, or caused such internal control oveairfirial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company's disctocontrols and procedures and presented inegp@st our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coueyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the pany's internal control over financial reportingtteccurred during the company's
most recent fiscal quarter (the company's fougbdi quarter in the case of an annual report)thatmaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the comparipternal control over financial reporting; and

5. The company's other certifying officer(s) and | &alisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiarteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the company's auditors and the araiitmittee of the company's board of directors @spns performing the equivalent
functions):

(&)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the comyfsaability to record, process, summarize andntdpwancial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inked management or other employees who have aisagtifole in the company's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2013 /s/ DAVID J. COGHLAN

David J. Coghlan
Chief Executive Office
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Exhibit 31.2
WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Dean P. Freeman, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fKVatts Water Technologies, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortémnstate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3 Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andtffier periods presented in this report;

4, The company's other certifying officer(s) araté responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company hade:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tlesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatiieg to the company, including its consolidatebsidiaries, is made known
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal control over finanogdorting, or caused such internal control oveairfirial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company's disctocontrols and procedures and presented inegp@st our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coueyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the pany's internal control over financial reportingtteccurred during the company's
most recent fiscal quarter (the company's fougbdi quarter in the case of an annual report)thatmaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the comparipternal control over financial reporting; and

5. The company's other certifying officer(s) and | &alisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiarteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the company's auditors and the araiitmittee of the company's board of directors @spns performing the equivalent
functions):

(&)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the comyfsaability to record, process, summarize andntdpwancial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inked management or other employees who have aisagtifole in the company's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2013 /s DEAN P. FREEMAN

Dean P. Freeman
Chief Financial Officel
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned officer of Watts Water Teathgies, Inc. (the "Company") hereby certifiesttha his knowledge, the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K to which this certificationaigached (the "Report"), as filed with the Secesitand Exchange Commission on the date
hereof, fully complies with the requirements of &t 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Secesitexchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Exchange Act"), and that the information contaiimethe Report fairly presents, in all materialgests, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company. This certification isyided solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 135DI8em 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K
("Item 601(b)(32)") promulgated under the Secusitiet of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Actiyl the Exchange Act. In accordance with
clause (i) of Item 601(b)(32), this certificati@f) shall not be deemed "filed" for purposes oftger18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise
subject to the liability of that section, and (B)p# not be deemed to be incorporated by referérioeany filing under the Securities Act or the
Exchange Act, except to the extent that the Compaeygifically incorporates it by reference.

Date: February 27, 2013 /s/ DAVID J. COGHLAN

David J. Coghlan
Chief Executive Office




QuickLinks
Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 13505ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002



QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this domnt

Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned officer of Watts Water Teathgies, Inc. (the "Company") hereby certifiesttha his knowledge, the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K to which this certificationaigached (the "Report"), as filed with the Secesitand Exchange Commission on the date
hereof, fully complies with the requirements of &t 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Secesitexchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Exchange Act"), and that the information contaiimethe Report fairly presents, in all materialgests, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company. This certification isyided solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 135DI8em 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K
("Item 601(b)(32)") promulgated under the Secusitiet of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Actiyl the Exchange Act. In accordance with
clause (i) of Item 601(b)(32), this certificati@f) shall not be deemed "filed" for purposes oftger18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise
subject to the liability of that section, and (B)p# not be deemed to be incorporated by referérioeany filing under the Securities Act or the
Exchange Act, except to the extent that the Compaeygifically incorporates it by reference.

Date: February 27, 2013 /s/ DEAN P. FREEMAN

Dean P. Freeman
Chief Financial Officel
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